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Selected key consolidated financial data

Preliminary comments

In comphance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014}, SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom and
Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013] have heen reported n Vivendr's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivendr deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and
Cctober 11, 2013, respectively, 1 e, the date of therr effective sale by Vivendt

The adjustments to previously published data are reported in Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolhdated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 These adjustments were made to all pertods as set out m the table of selected key
consohidated financial data below in respect of data from the Consohdated Statements of Earmngs and Cash Flows

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Consolidated data
Revenues 10089 10252 9597 9064 9152
EBIT 136 B37 [1131) 1269 777
Eamings attribitable to Vivend: SA shareowners 4744 1967 179 2681 2198

of which samings from continuing aperations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners {290 43 {1 565) 57 B47
EBITA (a) 999 955 1074 1086 1002
Adjusted net income (a) 626 454 e 270 514
Financial Net Debt / {Net Cash Posttion) (a) 4631 11097 13419 12077 4073
Teta! equity 22988 19030 2129 22qm 2173

of which Vivendi SA shareowners' equity 27 608 17 457 18 325 19447 24058
Cash flow from operations before capital expenditures net (CFFQ before capex net) 1 066 1139 1138 1205 1251
Capnal expenditures net {capex net} (b} (243) (245) {293) (308} 121}
Cash flow from operations (GFFO) (a) 843 894 846 897 980
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) 421 503 772 B26 370
Financial investments (1244) {107) {1689} {209} 1655}
Financial dvestments 17807 34N Fil 4206 1434
Didends paid with respect to previous fiscal year 1348 (¢ 1325 1245 1731 1721
Por share data
Waighted average number of shares outstanding 13458 13306 12989 12814 12738
Adjusted net income per share 046 034 023 01 040
Number of shares outstanding at the end cf the penod {excluding treasury shares) 13516 13386 13225 12874 12787
Equity per share attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1673 1303 1386 1511 1881
Dividends per share paid with respect to previous fiscal year 1.00 {c) 100 100 140 140

In rillions of euros, number of shares i millions, data per share in euros

a  The non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), and Cash flow from operations
(CFFQ) should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as
presented n the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes, or as described in this Financial Report, and Vivend
considers that they are relevant mdicators of the group’s operating and financial performance Each of these indicators 15 defined in the
apprapriate sectien of this Financial Report or in its Appendix In addition, 1t should be noted that ather companies may define and
calculate these indicators differently from Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability

b Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, ptant and equipment, and intangible assets

¢ On June 30, 2014, Vivend SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to 1ts shareholders from the additional paid-in capital, considered as a
return of capital distnibution to shareholders
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Nota

In accordance with European Commission Regulation {EC) 809/2004 {Article 28} which sets out the disclosure abligations for issuers of secunties
listed on a regutated market within the European Union {implementing Diwective 2003/71/EC, the “Prospectus Regulation”), the following items are
incorporated by reference into this report

« 2013 Financ:al Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 172 to 324 of the “Document de Référence” No D 14-0355, filed with the French Autorité des
Marchés Financiers (AMF} on Apnl 14, 2014, and on pages 172 to 324 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”, and

s 2012 Financ:al Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 168 to 319 of the "Document de Référence” No D 130170, filed with the AMF on March 18,
2013, and on pages 168 to 319 of the English translation of this "Document de Référence”
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I — 2014 Financial Report

Preluninary comments

« (On February 11 2015, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Having considered the Audit Committee’s
recommendation from its meeting held on February 20, 2015, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, as previously
approved by the Management Board on February 11, 2015

s  The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
with no quahfied opinion  The Statutory Auditors” Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 1s included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

+ In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reported in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations n accordance with the
following terms

- Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Viverdi and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the
sale of GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as a
discontinued operation as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contribution to each line of Vivends Cansolidated Statement of
Financial Position as of December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabilities
associated with assets of discontinued businesses”

- Completed saies as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: deconselidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

The adjustments to previously published data are reported 1n Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consohdated Financial
Statemnents for the year ended December 31, 2014

1 Significant events

11 Significant events in 2014

111 Group’s Governance

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Shareholders’ Meeting notably appointed three new Superviscry Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgen and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Vivend's Supervisory Board, which was convened immed:ately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appomnted
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanach as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, who had
chaired the group since 2002, as Honorary Chairman The Board appointed Mr Danis! Camus as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Mr
Prulippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration Committes

The Supervisory Beard also appointed the members to the Management Board, which 1s currently comprised of Messrs Amaud de
Puyfontaine, who serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe and Stéphang Roussel

The Supervisory Board 1s currently comprised of 14 membess, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative
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1.1.2 Sale of SFR

0On November 27, 2014, pursuant tc an agreement entered into on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the French Competition Authority
on October 27, 2014 subject to conditions {see bslow). Vivend announced the closing of the combination between SFR and Numerncable The
main terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash proceeds €13 5 bithon, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivend: recewved
£13366 billon n cash and, on December 3, 2014, Vivend: made a contrbution of
€200 million te the financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numencable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated 1s based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes in the net working capital, SFR's net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and 1s subject to a
contradictory accounting analysis :n accordance with the contract

Vivend:'s interest in the combined entity | 20% of Numericable - SFR {publicly-listed)

Altice's interest in the combined entity Approximately 60% of Numenicable - SFR (approximately 20% free float)

Earn-out Earn-out of €750 million if the EBITDA-Capex aggregate of the combined entity 1s equal to
or higher than €2 bullion during any fiscal year, ending not fater than December 31, 2024

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Govemnance - Minority representation for Vivend: on the Board of Directors, or 2 out of 10 directors,

subject to Vivend: retaming a 20% mterest in Numencable - SFR (1 director if Vivend
holds an interest between 10% and 20%}

Veto nights on certain exceptional matters subject to Vivend: retaining a 20% interest in
Numericable - SFR

- Numericable - SFR has notably given the French Competition Authority an undertaking
not to disclose any strategic imformation on the pay-TV market, the distribution of pay-TV
services, or ultramarine telecommunications markets to Vivends

Standard 180-day lock-up period, including restrictions on any disposal or transfer of
shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of settlement-delivery of the nghts
1ssue of Numencable Group (on November 20, 2014), at the request of the underwriting
banks

Lock-up period untit the end of November 2015, after which Vivend) may sell or distribute
its Numenicable - SFR shares, without restrictions, with a right of prionity granted to
Altice {pre-emption right or nght of first offer)

- Vivendi has agreed not to acquire any Numericable - SFR shares, directly or indirectly,
until June 30, 2018

Subject to Vivendi retaining 1ts shares, Altice will have a call option at market value
{subject to a floor') on Vivend!'s interest, exercisable in three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%) over
one-month window perods starting on June 1, 2016, June 1, 2017 and June 1, 2018

- Tag-along nghts for Vivend if Altice sells its shares

*

Liquidhty - Lack-up period

As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented in the Consohidated Statement of Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in the
Statement of Financial Posihion of Vivend) as a discontinued operation The capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €2,378 million {after
taxes), recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings under the fine “Eamings from discontinued operations”™ Excluding the
discontinuation? of amortization since Apnl 1, 2014, 1n accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to
£3.,459 miflion {please refer to Note 3 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014)

Recognition of 20% interest in Numenicable - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of its interest n SFR to Numencable and received €13 166 billion i cash as well as
97,387,845 shares n the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts Since that date,
Vivendi deconsolidated SFR Given the significant restrictive nature of the commitments given by Vivend: and Numencable - SFR to the
French Competition Authority with respect to all Numericable - SFR’s operations, Vivendi's minority representation on Numericable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nghts granted to Vivendi by Numenicable - SFR's governance (see above} helps Vivend

! Volume Werghted Average Price (VWAP) of Numericable Group s share price over the 20 business days before the closing date fwhich occurred on November 27 2014)
€29 46 grossed-up et an annual rate of 5% duning the period ranging from the closing date until the date of exercise of the call option

Z When an operation is discontinued, IFAS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation $ tangible and intangibie assets Therefore for SFA reported as &
discontinued operation since March 31 2014 Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resuiting in a positive
impact attnbutable to Vivendr SA shareholders, of €1 081 rmillton on earnings from discontinued operatrons from Apal T to November 27 2014
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adeguately protect its proprietary interests as a minonty shareholder Vivendi considers that 1t does not have the nght to participate
Numericable - SFR’s financial and operational policy-making processes, according to 1AS 28 Without having a significant influence, the 20%
interest 1n Numericable - SFR was recognized as an “available-for-sate securities”™ in Vivendi's Cansolidated Statement of Financial Position,
and, in accordance with 1AS 39, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (€3,987 mullion as of December 31, 2014) as
the unrealized gains or losses were directly recogmized in equity From November 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vivend:'s interest 1n Numericable - SFR resulted in an unrealized gain of €743 million {before taxes)

1.1.3 Plan to setl GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivendi's Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Telefonica to sell GVT After receiving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, an September 18, 2014 1t authonized the execution of an agreement with Telefonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are described below, represents a total enterprise value of €7 45 billion {based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates con the date the exclusive negotiations were entered into with Telefonica), corresponding to a
2014 estimated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction 1s subject to certain conditions, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory authonties, and Is expected to oceur during the second quarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completion date €4 66 illion subject to the sale price adjustment, based, among other things, on exceptional
changes in net working capital, GVT's bank debt {approximately €480 million), as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actual numbers as of the completion date, the
amount of cash consideration pad, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 million The net sale price s estimated at
approximately €3 75 hillion

Consideration shares 7 4% nterest m Teleforica Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and 57% interest (8 3% voting rights) in
Telecom ltalia

Financing Capital increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Telefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction 15 subject to obtaiming approvals from ANATEL (Agéncia

Nacional de Telecomunicagdes} and CADE {Conselho Administrativo de Defesa Econfimica) in

Brazil, and other conditions customary in this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Liquidity With respect to Vivendi's interest in the combmed VIVO/GVT entity

- maximum 180 day lock-up penod starting as from the completon date of the
transaction, and

- tag-along rights

Governance No specific governance rights in VIVO/GVT and Telecom ltalia

As from the third quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of thus transaction, GVT was presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in Statement of Financial Position of Vivend: as a discontinued operation

1.14 Sale of Maroc Telecom group

On May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered :nto on November 4 2013, Vivend: sold its 53% interest :n Maroc Telecom to Etisalat
and received €4,138 million in cash proceeds from the sale after a contractual price adjustment (-€49 meltion) On the same date, Vivendi
deconsolidated Maroc Telecom and recorded a capital gain of €786 miflion (before taxes and net of costs refated to the sale), which 1s
presented under "Earnings fram discontinued operations” in 2014 The agreements, which are described 1in Note 3 3 to the Consohdated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, contained representations and warranties customary to this type of transaction
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1.15 Canal+ Group
Broadcasting rights for sport events

in 2014, Canal+ Group was awarded broadcasting rights to the fotlowing sport events
« the French Professional Soccer League 1, for four seasons (2016/2017 to 2019/2020) the two premium lots for an aggregate amount
of €2,160 milhon {or €540 million per seasen), and
» the Champions League for three seasons (2015/2016 to 2017/2018)

On January 14, 2014, Canal+ Group was awarded broadcasting rights for the National French Rugby Championshtp “TOP 147 for five seasons
(2014/2015 to 2018/2019) These exclusive nghts related to al! of the "TOP 14" matches across all media and all territories in which the
Canal+ Group operates On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authonty suspended the agreement between Canal+ Group and the
Nationa! Rughy League as from the 2015/2016 season and ruled that a new call for tenders should be erganized for the four seasons
{2015/2016 to 2018/2019) Following to this call for tenders carmed out in December 2014 and January 2015, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights related to all of the “TOP 14" matches These nghts, which include zll seven games on each match day, play-off games, as
well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover seasons 2015/2016 to 2018/2019

Acquisitions by Canal+ Overseas

On February 13, 2014, following approval from the French Competition Authority, Canal+ Overseas completed its acquisition of a 51%
tnterest in Mediaserv, an overseas telecom operator

On October 28, 2014, Canal+ Overseas acquired a majonty interest in Thema, a company specializing in the distribution of genaral, thematic
and ethnic television channels in France and abroad Among other channels, Thema broadcasts the African fiction TV channe! Nollywood

Launch of the A+ charnel

On October 24, the A+ channel officially launched in Africa and will be broadcast in more than 20 countries in West and Central Africa
through Canalsat A+ ts positioning itself as “the great Afncan channe!”, seeking to bring together a wide audience and offering nich, varied
and high quality programming

TNT license in Congo

On December 12, 2014, Canal+ signed an operating agresment n relation to cable tetevision services an digital terrestnial television in the
Republic of Congo, where the company already effers television services via satellite

TVN interest in Poland

On October 16, 2014, Canal+ Group and Tl Group announced that they were jointly considering strategic options In relation ta their 51% interest
In TVN {FTA broadcaster in Poland)

Success at the box office for Non-Stop and Paddington

fn March 2014, Mon-Stop, directed by Jaume Collet-Serra and starnng Liam Neeson and Juhanne Moore, arrived in first place at the U S
weekend box office with $56 million in revenue after its first aperating weekend This success was largely confirmed wherever the film was
subsequently released, including 1n France, Germany and China where it also dominated its competitors during its release To date, the film
has generated $236 million 1n worldwide revenue

Since the end of November 2014, Paddington, produced by David Heyman {the Harry Potter saga, Gravity ) and featuring Hugh Bonneville
and Nicole Kidman has captivated audiences around the world Paddington 1s the biggest success for a Studiocanal film in the United
Kingdom, where 1t earned £34 million in revenue in eight weeks [n France, 1t sold 2 8 mitlion tickets and it (s off to a great start in the United
States where st 1s distrbuted by the Weinstein Company As of February 4, 2015, Paddington had exceeded $200 million in worldw.de
revenues, a record for a farmly film produced by an independent studio

TV Series Development

In 2014, Studiocanal produced 57 hours of series television through its substdianies Red Productron Company and Tandem Red produced
season 4 of Scotf and Bailey, and the new series Happy Valley, Prey and The Driver all of which broke audience and satisfaction records in
the United Kingdom when broadcast Tandem produced Seasan 2 of Crossing Lines, the cnme senes with an intemnational cast and the
Spotless senes, an onginal Canal+ creation
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New partnerships entered into by Studiocanal

In May 2014, Canal+ and Studiocanal joined forces with writers and creators Seren Sveistrup and Adam Price and producer and CEO Meta
Lourse Foldager to create the production company SAM Productions ApS SAM wait work with the strongest Scandinavian creative talents to
produce TV-series for the international market Studiocanal jomed SAM as a partner and will serve as the company's distributor

in September 2014, Studiocanal and The Picture Company - Andrew Rona and Alex Heineman's new production company - announced they
had entered Into a development and production agreement The first coltaboration 15 the development of the adaptation of Tom Wood's
Victor the Assassin book franchise to be directed by Pierre Morel In the past, the two producers, while at Silver Pictures, produced several
hit action films for Studiocanal including Without Identity and Non-Stop, as well as the soon-to-be released The Gunman, also directed by
Pierre More

In September 2014, Grand Electnic, the new production company created by Enc Newman, and Studiocanal entered into an agreement for
the acquisition, development and production of feature films for the European and Amencan markets Under this agreement, Studiocanal
will be both a creative and financial partner, will handle international sales and will distribute the new Grand Electric films in its territonies

On September 4, 2014, Studiocanal and Svensk Filmundustr: entered into a strategic partnership to distribute all Studiocanal films across the
Nordic market {Sweden, Norway, Denmark and Finfand) and co-produce films and TV-senies This strategic partrership capitalizes upon Nordic
ttles and talents and targets the intemational market Svensk Filmindustn will be responsible for the Nordic market and Studiocanal will be
responswhle for intemational distnbution

On October 8, 2014, Studiocanal extended 1ts multi-year SVOD agreement with Amazon in the United Kingdom and Germany Amazon will have
the exclusive first pay-TV nights to ali Studiocanal theatrical titles in both temitones, as well as hundreds of hbrary itfes added to its service

116 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Acquisition of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limited

On Aprl 8, 2014, UMG acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limited, an independent producer and
distributor of music films and programming for DVD, television and digital media

Sale of interest in Beats

On August 1, 2014, UMG sold s interest in Beats to Apple for a net amount of €250 mullion {of which €221 million was receved dunng the
period) The net gain on sale, recorded as other income in the Statement of Eamings, amounted to €179 million

Sale of Parlophone Label Group

On July 1, 2013, Vivend sold Parlophone Labe! Group to Warner Music Group for a consideration of €591 million  The arbitration pracess in
respect of contractual restatements to Parlophone Label Group's sale price completed at the end of November 2014 and UMG was awarded
a further €30 milhion As a result, this restatement took the total amount receved from Warner Music Group v respect of this sale to
€621 mullion

New agreements entered into with Havas

Havas and Unwersa! Music Group (UMG) announced the following agreements
- on September 29, 2014 digital brand integrations in select UMG music videns by using Mimad's Academy Award-winning video
technology, and
- onJanuary 5, 2015 formation of Global Music Data Alliance (GMDA) related to consumer’s data

1.1.7  Vivendi Village

Vivend: Village consists of the following companies as of December 31, 2014 Vivendi Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick), Watchever
and Wengo

Watchever

In Germany, since the stant of the second half of 2014, Vivend: 1s carrying out a transformation plan at Watchever to reduce costs while at
the same time explonng new content and platform monetization models An exceptional provision of €44 million was recorded as of June
30, 2014, reduced by £18 million
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118 Sale of Activision Blizzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered into on October 11, 2013, the B3 million Activision Blizzard shares retaned by Vivend were
subject to a two-tiered lack-up provision

¢ from October 11, 2013 until April 9, 2014, Vivendi cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Actwision Blizzard
shares directly or indirectly, from Apnit 10, unttl July 9, 2014, Vivend: can sell Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the lesser of (1} 50% of Vivendi's 83 million remaining shares and {u) 9% of the outstanding shares of Activision
Blizzard, and

s from July 10, 2014 until January 7, 2015, Vivend: was subsect to another lock-up provision, as from January 7, 2015, Vivend: may
sell its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Considenng the istial intention of Vivendi Management to sell these shares at the end of the lock-up periods if market condit:ions were
favorable, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vvendi sold a furst tranche of 41 5 million Activision Bhizzard shares far $852 million (€623 million} The €84 mitlion capital
gain 1s presented in “Eamings from discontinued operations™ Taking into account the capital gan of £123 miflion recorded in 2013, the
capital gain realized by Vivend: with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 million

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining interest of 415 million Actvision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 million (€689 million) was
reclassified in “avallable-for-sale securities” as Vivend: Management has decided not to seli this interest i the mmediate future As of
December 31, 2014, the unrealized capital gan with respect to this interest amounted to €273 miilion (before taxes), directly recognized i

equity
119 Other

Early redemption of bonds

Following receipt of the cash procesds from the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014, n order to enhance the structure of its financial position
statement, Vivend allocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its euro and US dollar
denominated bonds that contamed & make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of €4 25 bilhon and $06 tellion In
addition, Vivends cancelled all of its existing bank credit facibives for €7 1 biflion and set up a new €2 billien bank credit fagility, maturing in
five vears (2019}, with two one-year renewal options Please refer to Sectign §

Distribution to shareholders

On June 30, 2014, Vivend: SA pard an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders, from additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of
€1,348 mithon, considered as a return of capital distribution to shareholders

1 2 Subsequent events

The sigmficant events that occurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 (the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivend's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014) were as follows

«  OnJanuary 19, 2015, following a call for tenders carned out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured exclusive nights
related to alf of the National French Rugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches These nghts, which include alt seven games on
each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasans 2015-2016 to 2018-2019 please refer to
Section 115, and

+  In February 2015, Vivend announced the creation of Vivendi Contents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Belmer, Chief Executive Officer
of Canal+ Group Vivend: Contents will be in charge of the design, leadership and development of new content support for music
and visual image, and will manage related investments
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2 Earnings analysis

Preliminary comments

In compliance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR {as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom group and
Activision Blizzard fas from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported i Vivendr's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivend) deconsalidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and
October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows
- thew contribution until the effective divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivendr’s Consolidated Statement of Farnings {before non-
controlling interests) has been reported on the line "Earmings from discontinued operations”,
- mnaccordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all pertods presentad to ensure consistency of information, and
- their share of net income has been excluded from Vivendr's adjusted net income

The adjustments to previously published data are presented in Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and m Note 31 to the Consoidated
Financral Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2014

2.1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS ADJUSTED STATEMENT QF EARNINGS
Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31
2014 2013 (a} 2014 2031a)

Revenues 10089 10,252 10,089 10252 Revenves
Cost of revenues {6121} (6 097) [6121) 6097} Cost of revenuss
Margn from operations 3,968 4,155 3368 4155 Margn from operations
Selling genaral and administrative expenses axcluding Sellng peneral and adminustrative expenses excluding
amoruzation of intangible assets acquired through business amoruzation of mtangrble assats acquired through business
combinations (2811} (3 008) (2811) {3008} combnations
Rastructunng charges and other operating charges and Restructuring charges and other operating chargas and
Incoma 1158} (152} 1156} {192} incoma
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combsnations {344} {350)
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through
business combinations (92} 16)
Other income 203 8
Other charges (30} {50)
EBIT 16 [x}) 999 955 EBITA
Incoma from equity affikates (18} {21) (18} {21} Income from equity affilates
Interest {6} {286) (96) {266} Interest
Incoma from investments 3 56 3 66 Incoma from investments
Other financial income 13 13
Other financsal charges {751} {300)
Earnings from continuing operatiens before provision {107} 129 888 7™M  Adjusted earnings from continuing operations hefore
for income taxes provision for income taxes
Prowision for income taxes {130} 17 200} {170y Provision for income taxes
Eamings from continuing operations [F<¥]] 146
Earmings from discontinued operations 5§ 262 2633
Earnings 5,025 2m 588 564 Adjusted netincome hefore non-controlling intesests
Of which Of which
Earmings sttnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners 4,144 1,967 626 454 Adjusted net incoms

continuing aperations {290) 43

discontinued operations 5034 1924
Non-tontrolling interests 8 812 62 110  Non-controlkng Interests
Earnings attrshutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per
share - basic (in euros} k)73 148 046 0.34 Adusted net income per share - hasic {in euros}
Earnings atirbutable to Vivend: SA sharsowners per
sharo - diluted (sn ouros) 35 147 046 0.34 Adusted net incomo per share - diluted {in euros)

In millions of euros, except per share amounts

a  Data published with respect to the year 2013 has been adjusted following the application of IFRS 5 {please refer to the preliminary
comment above)
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2 2 Earnings review

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners analysis

in 2014, earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to €4,744 million {or €3 52 per share), compared ta €1,967 million
{or €1 48 per share} in 2013, a €2,777 mithon increase (x2 4) This change notably included the caprtal gains on the divestitures of SFR
(€2,378 million), Maroc Telecom (€786 million), Beats (€179 milkion) and half of the remaining interest in Activision Blizzard (€84 million), as
well as conversely, premium paid (€642 million) on the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR

Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners for continuing operations, after non-controlling interests (Canal+ Group,
Universal Music Group and Vivend: Viltage, as well as Corporate} was negative at €290 million in 2014, compared to a €43 million gain in
2013, an unfavorable change of €333 milion The €39 million increase in £BIT, notably included the capital gain on the divestiture of Beats
{€179 milhon), as well as the decrease in interest expense {+£170 million) more than offset by the increase i premium paid on the early
redemption of bonds (€642 millron 1n 2014 following the sale of SFR, compared to €182 million in 2013 following the sale of 88% of the
interest in Activision Blizzard) and by the income tax expense (-€147 million}

Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners for discontinued operations, after non-controlling interest (SFR, Maroc
Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT), amounted to €5,034 mithion 1n 2014, compared to €1,924 million in 2013, a £€3,110 million increase In
2014, the amount notably included the capital gains on the divestitures of SFR (€2,378 million) and Maroc Telecom (€786 million) as weli as
the capital gain on the divestiture of half of the rema:ning interest in Activision Blizzard (€84 million) In 2013, the amount notably inciuded
the capital gain on the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard (€2,915 million), as well as, conversely, the impairment of SFR's
goodwill {-€2,431 mallion}

Ad)usted net income analysis

in 2014, adjusted net income was €626 million (or €0 46 per share’) compared to €454 million in 2013 (€0 34 per share}, a €172 million
increase {+37 9%) As a reminder, according to the apphication of IFRS 5 to SFR, Maroc Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT, the Adjusted
Statement of Earnings presents the results of Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group (UMG) and Vivendi Village's activities, as well as
Corporate costs The increase in adjusted net income notably resulted from

o adecrease in interest expense (+€170 million),

*  anncrease in EBITA {+£44 million),

e adecrease in the share of adjusted net income attributable to nor-controlling interests (+€48 million), and

. a decrease i income from equity affiliates {+€3 mitlion),

partiafly offset by
. a decrease n income from investments (-€63 milhon), and
e anncrease in income tax expense (-€30 million}

Detailed analysis of the main items from the Statement of Earings

Revenues were £10,089 million, compared to €10,252 million in 2013 (-16%, or -14% at constant currency and perimeter) For a
breakdown of revenues by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of thes Financial Report

Cast of revenues amounted to €6,121 million, compared to €6,097 mullion 1n 2013
Margin from operations decreased by £187 miflion to £3,368 milkion, compared to €4,155 mulion in 2013 (-4 5%)

Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to £€2,811 million, compared to €3,008 million 1n 2013, a €197 million decrease (-6 5%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and ntangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, were
stable at €307 million (compared to €310 million 1n 2013), and were notably related to Canal+ Group's set-top boxes, as well as Studiocanal’s
catalogs, films, and television programs

* For the details of adjusted net income per share please refer to Appendix 1 to this Financral Report
* Constant penimeter refiects the following changes made in the consohdation scope
- at Canal+ Group 1t excludes the impact in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company (November 22 2013} of Mediaserv (February 13, 2014} and of Thema
{October 28 2014), and

- atUMG it excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Farlophone Label Group repertoie
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EBITA was €993 million, compared to €955 mullion in 2013, a €44 million increase {+4 6%) At constant currency, EBITA increased by
€46 million {+4 8%} At constant currency and perimeter, EBITA increased by €74 million {+8 1%} This change primanly reflected the
increase In Universal Music Group's EBITA (+€58 million at constant currency), notably due to the decrease in restructuring and integration
costs {-€78 mihion) For a breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Restructuning charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of €158 million (compared to a net charge of
€192 mulhon in 2013} They notably included restructuning charges for €104 million, a €12 million decrease compared to 2013, the decrease
in UMG's restructuring charges for €64 mitlion was offset by the €44 milhion provision recorded as of June 30, 2014 wath respect to
Watchever's transformation plan in Germany, reduced by €18 million

EBIT was £736 mllion, compared to €637 mullion in 2013, a €99 milhion increase {+15 6%} This amount included

«  amortizatron of intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €344 mill:on, compared to €350 midlion n 2013, a
€6 mtlhon decrease,

+ mpairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €92 mithon, compared to €6 miion 0 2013 In
2014, they related to goodwill attributable to Dgitick {€43 millien) and Wengo (€48 million), and

«  other charges and income for €173 million of net income and primarily included the capital gain on the sale of UMG's interest in
Beats {€179 million) tn 2013, other charges and income were a net income of €38 million and included the gain related to the
dilution of Universal Music Group’s interest dilution in Veve (€18 million)

Income from equity affiliates amounted te €18 mill:on, compared to €21 million in 2013

Interest was an expense of €36 million, compared to €266 million 1n 2013, a €170 million decrease (-64 1%)

In 2014, interest expense on borrewings amounted to €283 milhion, compared to €434 million n 2013 This €211 mullion decrease was
attnbutable for (1) €167 millon, to the decrease in the average outstanding borrowings to €9 7 billion in 2014 {compared to €15 3 llion in
2013} and {u} €44 million, to the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 2 94% in 2014 {compared to 3 22% 1 2013) The
early redemption of bonds for an aggregate amount of €3 billion carmed out :n October and November 2013 following the sale of 88% of the
interest in Activision Blizzard, as well as the redemption, at maturity, of other bonds for €700 milfion in October 2013 and €894 million in
January 2014, resulted tn a €591 million reduction in interest compared to 2013 The bond redemptions for €4 7 billion in December 2014
following to the sale of SFR will only have an impact in 2015, interest expense on remaming bonds (€1,950 million as of December 31, 2014}
amounted to €61 million in 2014, similar to 2013

Moreover, as a result of the apphication of IFRS 5 to GVT and SFR, interest expense was reparted net of interests received by Vivendi SA an
the financings granted to SFR and GVT, at market conditions, for €172 milion in 2014 {compared to €222 million in 2013}

Interest income earmed on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €15 million 1n 2014, compared to €6 million i 2013 This change was
related to the increase in average cash and cash equivalents to €2 1 ullion in 2014 {compared to €0 6 bilkion 1n 2813}, which reflected the
impact of the sales of businesses

For a breakdown of the impact of the sales camed out in 2014 on Vivend's treasury, please refer to Section 5 of this Financial Report

Income from investments amounted to €3 million, compared to €66 million 15 2013 It included interest ncome and dividends receved
from unconsolidated companies In 2013, 1t included interest income paid by PLG for £10 mullion and the dividend paid by Beats to UMG for
€54 milhon

Other financial charges and income were a net charge of €732 million, compared to a net charge of €287 million 1n 2013, a €445 milkon
increase In 2014, they mainly included the premium paid (€642 million) with respect to the early redemption of the bonds following the sale
of SFR In 2013, they mainly included the premium paid {€182 million) with respect to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of
8B% of the interest i Activision Blizzard Please refer to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
2014

Earnings from continung operations hefore provision for income taxes amounted to a €107 million loss, compared to a €129 miflion
gamn in 2013, an unfavarable change of €236 milhen

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €200 million, compared to €170 million mn 2013, a €30 milfion
increase {+17 7%} In 2013, income tax expense included certain non-recurning tems (+€149 mullien), which reflected the change, during
2013, to the assessment of risks related to previous years' income taxes The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income was at
220% in 2014 {compared to 22 5% 1n 2013}

In addition, prowision for income taxes was a net charge of €130 mullion, compared to a net gain of £17 muliion 1n 2013 In addition to the
non-recurring 1tems, which explain the increase in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this €147 million unfavorable impact
reflected the change in tax savings related to Vivendi SA's Tax Group System, which was a €110 million income in 2014, compared to a
€254 million income 1n 2013 This change was notably attributable to the entry of Canal+ France i Vivend SA's Tax Group System in 2013
(an income of €258 mullion, of which €128 million related to current tax savings realized in 2013 and €129 million related to deferred tax
savings expected m 2014} The exit of SFR from Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System was anticipated at the end of 2013, hence had no impact on
tax savings for 2014
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Eamings from discontinued operations {before non-controfling interests} amounted to €5,282 million, compared to €2,633 million n
2013 They primanly included

* with respect to SFR, the capital gain on 1ts sale on November 27, 2014 (€2,378 mifiion, after taxes) as well as net earmings until
the effective divestiture date {€1,299 million, before non-controlling interests), which compnised the discontinuation® of the
arortization of tangible and ntangible assets since Apnl 1, 2014 (impact of +€1,088 million for the period from Apntl 1 to
November 27, 2014) In 2013, SFR's net eamings were -€2,004 million, after a -€2,431 milkion loss related to the goodwiil
impairment,

« with respect to GVT, net earnings of €304 million in 2014, compared to €83 million in 2013 GVT's net eamings comprised the
discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets since September 1, 2014, in compliance with IFRS 5 (impact
of +€116 million for the penod),

« with respect to Maroc Telecom group, the capita! gain on its sale on May 14, 2014 (€786 million) as well as net eamings until the
effective divestiture date (€407 million, before non-controlling interests), which comprised the discontnuation of amortization of
tangible and intangible assets since July 1, 2013, in compliance with [FRS 5 (impact of +£181 million for 2014, compared to
+€245 million for 2613} In 2013, Maroc Telecom group's net earmings were €782 mitlion, before non-controlling interests and
before deferred taxes related to its expected sale {(-€85 million), and

+ with respect to Activision Bhzzard, the capital gain on the divestiture of 415 million Activision Blizzard shares on May 22, 2014
(€84 mullion) In 2013, 1t notably included the capital gain on the sale of B8% of the interest in Activision Blizzard on October 11,
2013 {€2,915 million) and Activision Blizard's net eamings untif the effective date of divestiture (€692 million, before non-
controlling interests)

Please refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Eamings attrihutable to non-controlling snterests amounted to €281 million, compared to €812 million in 2013, a €531 million decrease
{-B54%) This change was pnimanly attnibutable to the sale of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013 {-€269 million) and the sale of Maroc
Telecom group on May 14, 2014 (-€222 miliion) This change also included a favorable impact for Canal+ Group related to the acquisition of
non-controlling interests on November 5, 2013 {-€75 million) partially offset by the increase in earmings of nc+ in Peland {+€27 million)

Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €62 mithon, compared to €110 million in 2013, a
£48 milhon decrease resulting from the changes in Canal+ Group’s non-contrelhing interest

The reconcilation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net meome s further described in Appendix 1
to this Financial Report In 2014, this reconcihiation pnimarily included eamings from discontinued operations (+€5,034 million, after non-
controlling nterests) The reconciliation also included the prermium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of the honds
{-€698 million), the capital gain on the sale of Beats [+€179 million) as well as the amortization and wmpairment of tntangible assets acquired
through business combinations {-€327 million, after taxes} In 2013, this reconciliation pnmarly included earmings from discontinued
operations (+£1,924 million, after non-controlling interests} offset by the amortization and impairment of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations (-€246 million, after taxes), as well as the premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds
{-€202 mullion)

SWhen an operation is drscontinued, IFRS § requires the discontinyation of the amortization of the operation’s tangibie and intangible assets Thereforg for SFR reported as &
discontinued operation since March 31 2014 Vivendr aiscontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from tha second quarter of 2014
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2 3 Outlook for 2015

Preliminary comments: The outlook presented below regarding revenues, income from operations, income from operations margin ratas,
adjusted net income as well as distrbutions and share repurchases 1s based on data, assumptions, and estimates consilered as reasonable
by Vivendr Management They are subject to change or modification due to uncertainties refated i particular to the economic, fimancial,
competitive and/or regulatory environment as well as the impact of certamn transactions, if any In additon, the matenahization of certam
risks described i Section 6 of this report could have an impact on the group’s operations and its abiity to achieve its outiook Finally,
Vivendr considers that the non-GAAP measures, income from operations, income from operations margin rates, and adyusted net income are
relevant indicators of the group's operating and financral performance

Vivend: expects a slight increase in revenues thanks to the growth of UMG's streaming and subscniption activities and Canal+ Group's
international operations 2015 incame from operatrons margin should be close to 2014 level Vivend: also expects an increase i 1its adjusted
net income of approximately 10%, mainly thanks to lower restructuring charges and decrease in interest expenses

In addition, 1t will be proposed to the Annual Shareholders” Meeting to be held on April 17, 2015 that an ordinary dividend of £1 be paid with
respect to 2014%, compnsing €0 20 relative to the Group's busingss performance and a €0 80 retum to shareholders as a result of the
disposals of assets

The objective 1s to maintain this distribution level for the fiscal years 2015 ang 2016, representing an additional return to sharehalders of
€2 illion

In addit:on to this distribution, a share repurchase program 1s planned to be launched, within the legal mit of 10% of the share caprtal, for
approximately €2 7 bilhon in accordance with the market reguiations on share repurchases The program will run over a period of 18 manths

In total, the return to shareholders could reach approximately €5 7 billion by mid-Z017 in add:tion to the €1 3 bullion paid in 2014

© With an ex-distnbution date of Apnt 21 2015 and a payment date of April 23 2015
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3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comments

»  The non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO), cash flow from aperations before capital expenditures (CFFO before capex,
net), and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes (CFAIT) shouid be considered in addtion to, and not as substitutes for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consohidated Financial Statements and the related
notes or as described in the Financial Report, and Vivend: considers that they are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and
financral performance

e In comphance with IFRS 5, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom
group and Activision Bhizzard fas from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported as discontinued operations Vivend:
deconsohdated SFA. Marec Telecom group and Activision Bhizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013,
respectvely

In practice, income and charges from these four busmesses have bean reported as follows

their contribution untif the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the line “Cash flows from discontinued operations”,

in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been appired to all perods presented to ensure consistency of information, and

their cash flow from operations (CFFO), cash flow from operations before capital expenditures (CFFO before capex, net) and cash
fiow from operations after interest and income taxes [CRAIT have been excluded from Vivend:'s CFFQ, CFFQ before capex, net and
CFAIT

In 2014, cash flow from operations (CFFQ) generated by business segments was £843 million {compared to €834 milion n 2013), a
€51 mithon decrease (-5 8%) Capital expenditures remained stable at €243 mullion [compared to €245 million in 2013) and ncluded the
acquisition of set-top boxes by Canal+ Group for €115 million (compared to €133 million i 2013) Moreover, in 2013, CFFO mcluded
dividends (€54 millian} paid by Beats, sold in August 2014 Excluding dividends received and capital expenditures, net cash provided by
operating activities before income tax paid amounted to €1,073 million {compared to €1,082 million in 2013)

In 2014, cash flow from operations after interest and mcome tax paid (CFAIT) was €421 million {compared to €503 million 1n 2013), a
€82 mitlion decrease

Cash payments related to financial activities amounted to €702 m:llion (compared to €596 million 1k 2613}, a €106 million increase In 2014,
they primarily included the premium paid (€642 million) related to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR In 2013, they
mainly included the premium pard {€182 million) related to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of 88% of the interest in
Activision Blizzard Moreover, cash payments related to firancial activities included interest paid, net for €36 million {compared to
€266 million in 2013}, a decrease of €170 mitlion, and the results on foreign exchange nisk hedging (8 €47 million gain in 2014, compared te
a £142 milhion loss in 2013)

Cash flows refated to income taxes were made up of a £280 mithon infiow 1in 2014, compared with €205 million 1n 2013 These amounts
notably included refunds received by Vivend) SA related to previous years (€366 million 1 2014 with respect to 2011 Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System and €201 million receved in 2013 with respect to 2012 Vivendi SA's Tax Group System) In 2013, the amount of taxes paid
included the additional contribution of 3% on the dividend paid by Vivendi SA (€40 million)
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{in mtlhons of euros)

Revenues

Operating expenses excluding depreciation ard amortization

EBITDA

Restructuring charges paid

Content ivestments net

of which film and television nghts net at Canal+ Group

Acguisition of film and telewsion nights
Consumpnon of film and television nghts

of which sports rights net at Canal+ Group
Acquisition of sports rights
Consumption of sports nghts

of which payments to artists and repertmrg owners, net at UMG
Payments to artists and repertong owners
Recoupment of advances and other movemenis

Neutralization of change in provisions included in cperating expenses
Other cash operating items
Other changes 1n net working capitat
Not cash provided by operating activitios bafore incoma tax paid
Dividends received from equity affthates
Dmwdends recerved from unconsohdated companies
Cash flow from operations, hefore capital expendrtures, net {CFFC before capex, net
Capital expenditures net (capex, net}
Cash flow from operations (CEFQ}
Interest paid, net
Qther cash items related to financial activities
of which premium pard on early bonds redemption
gans/flosses] on currency transactions
Financial sctivites cash payments
Payment receved from the French State Treasury as part of the Vivendi SA s French Tax Group
and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems
Other taxes paid
Income tax (paid)received, nat

Lash flow from operations after interest and ncame tax paid {CFAIT)

na not applicable

Friday, February 27 2015

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 1{a) % Change
10089 10252 16%
{8 B46) {8797) +17%
tb) 1443 1455 06%
(84) (105} +202%
19 148) na
{604) {738) +1871%
713 743 41%
193 5 x197
(818) {714} -14 4%
801 758 +55%
{17) 45 na
{554) {599} +75%
613 561 +92%
59 {38} na
(154) {78) -97 9%
(221 {78 172 3%
{123) 36 na
{c) 1.078 1,082 0.2%
{d} 4 3 +323%
{d) 3 54 -86 1%
1,086 1,139 -4 7%
{e {243) {245) + 9%
843 894 -58%
if) (96) (266) +64 1%
f) {606} {330) B4 1%
{642) {182} x33
47 {142} na
{702) {59) -17 8%
366 it} +82 1%
{86} 4 na
(ch 280 205 +36.6%
an 503 -16 4%

a Data published with respect to fiscal year 2013 has been adjusted following the application of IFRS 5 (please refer to the prehiminary

comments above)

b EBITDA, a non-GAAP measurs, is described in Section 4 of this Financial Report

¢ As presented in net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer

to Section 5 3)

d As presented In net cash provided by/Aused for} mvesting activities of continwing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table

{please refer to Section 5 3)

¢ Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets as
presented (n the investing activities of continuing operations  the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer to Section 5 3)

f As presented in net cash provided by/{used for} financial activitres of continwing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table

{please refer to Section 5 3)
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4 Business segment performance analysis

Preliminary comments

Vivendr Management evaluates the performance of Vivend's business segments and allocates the necessary resources to them bassd
on certain operating performance indicators, notably the non-GAAP measures EBITA (Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Income
Taxes), and mcome from operations

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, the
impairment of goodwill and other mtangibles acquired through business combinations, and EBIT's “other charges” and “other income”
as definad in Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

As defined by Vivend:, income from operations 1s calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Farmings, before
share-based compensation costs related to equity-settied plans, and spectal rtems due to thew unusual nature or particular
significance (please refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report)

Mareaver, 1t should be noted that other comparies may define and calculate EBITA, and income from operations differently from
Vivend:, thereby affecting comparabiiity

In compliance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR {as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom
group and Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013} have been reported as discontinued operations In practice, income
and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

- thewr contribution until the effective divestiture, if any, to each ine of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controlling interests) has been reported on the Iine "Farnings from discontinued operations”,

- in accordance with IFAS 5, these adjustments have been applied to alf periods presented to ensure consistency of information,
and

- their share of net mcome has been excluded from Vivendi's adjusted net mcome

Vivend: deconsolidated SFA, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11,
2013, respectively
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4.1 Revenues, EBITA and cash flow from operations by business segment

{in mullions of euros}

Revenues

Canak Group

Unwersal Music Group

Vivend: Village

Elimination of intersegment transactions

Total Vivend:

EBITA

Canal Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend) Village
Corporate

Total Vivendi

{tn millions of euros)

Cash flow from operattons, before caprtal expenditures, net [CFFO before capex, net)

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend: Village
Corporate

Total Vivend:

Cash flow from operations {CFFO)
Canal+ Group

Uruversal Music Group

Vivend Village

Corporate

Total Vivend:

Year ended December 31
% Change at
% Change at constant rate and
2014 2013 % Change constant rate penmeter (a)
5,455 5311 +27% +26% 4%
4557 4886 67% 56% 38%
96 kAl
(20) {16}

10,089 10,252 -1 6% -11% -1 4%
583 1) 47% 48% £3%
565 511 +107% +113% +20 2%
179) (80)

(70) 187]
999 955 +§ 6% +18% +8 1%
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
2014 2013 % Change constant rate
722 683 +4 6%
an 611 228%
{38} {12}
(69) {89}

1,086 1,139 -4 7%
53t 478 +111% +109%
425 585 273% 27 8%
(a4) (80}

(69) {33}
843 8% -58% -6 4%
—

a Constant penmeter reflects the following changes made in the consolidation scope

- at Canal+ Group 1t excludes the impacts in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company {on November 22, 2013) of
Mediaserv (on February 13, 2014) and of Thema (on October 28, 2014), and

- atUMG it excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repenioire
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4 2 Comments on the operating performance of business segments

421 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at canstant rate and
{tn mullions of euros} 2014 2013 % Change constant rate penmeter (a)
Pay-TV tn Mainiand France 3454 3544 -26% -26% 26%
Free-to air TV in Mainland France 196 172 +14 8% +148% +14 8%
International Pay-TV 1273 1122 +135% +134% +6 6%
Studipeanal 533 473 +12 5% +11 6% +2 8%
Total Revenues 5,456 5311 +2 % +2 6% +0.4%
Incoma from operations 618 660 58% 66% -8 6%
Inceme from operations’ margin 113% 174%
Charges related to
equity settled share-based compensation plans 3l {t2)
Qther special nems excluded from income from aperations
{inctuding transition and restructunng costs) {32) {31
EBITA 583 (7)) -4 7% -48% -63%
EBITA margin 107% 115%
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ) 531 413 +111% +109%

Canal+ Group's Pay-TV

Individual subscribers {in thousands}

Mainland France 6062 6091 -29
Internatianal 4986 4,352 +634
Foland 2,146 2,197 51
Overseas 494 485 +3
Africa 1552 1,083 +169
Vietnam 794 587 +207
Total Canal+ Group 11,048 10,443 +505
Subscniptions (in thousands)
Mantand France {b) 9463 9534 -1
Intesnational 5,886 5137 +749
Total Canal+ Group 15,349 146N +678
Maintand France Pay-TV
Chum, per individual subscriber with commitment 14 5% 14 9% D4pt
Net ARPU, in euros per individual subscriber with commitment 449 442 05%
Mamtan n -tg-arr TV" 1ng gh
D3 33% 32% +01pt
7 12% 13% D1pt
»Télé 09% 0 8% +0 1 pt
Total 54% 5.3% H1pt
——

a  Constant penmeter excludes the impacts in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company {on November 22, 2013}, of Mediasarv
{on February 13, 2014) and of Thema (on October 28, 2014}

b Includes individual and collective subscriptions with commitment and without commitment {Canat+, Canalsat and Canalplay}

¢ Source Médiamétrie Poputation four years and older
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Revenues and EBITA
Canal+ Group's revenues amounted to £5,456 mitlon, a 2 7% increase compared to 2013 (+0 4% at constant perimeter and currency)

At the end of December 2014, Canal+ Group had a total of 15 3 million subscriptions, an increase of 678,000 year-on-year, notably thanks to
strong performance n Africa and Vietnam, as well as the growth i maintand France of Canalplay, 1ts subscription video on demand offer
For the first time, the total number of individual subscnbers exceeds 11 mithon, compared to 10 4 million at the end of 2013

Revenues from pay-TV operations tn mainland France were impacted by the higher VAT rate, which increased from 7% to 10% on January 1,
2014 Pay-TV revenues outside of manland France showed significant growth thanks to a portfalio iIncrease, notably in Africa

Advertising revenues were up dug to higher audience ratings especially at >Télé and DB, which was ranked as the fifth most watched
French national channel in 2014

Studigcanal's revenues grew significantly, thanks to strong theatrical releases and nghts sales (television and subscription video-on-
demand), including Paddington, Imitation Game, Non-Stop and RoboCop, as well as the ramping up of the TV series production business
with Red in Great Britain and Tandem 10 Germany

Canal+ Group's EBITA was €583 million, compared to €611 million at the end of 2013 This change manly reflected the VAT increase in
France, partially offset by strong results m other countries
Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Canal+ Group's cash flow from cperations amounted to €531 milhion in 2014, compared to €478 million 1n 2013, a €53 million increase This
change mainly resulted from a decrease In net content investments and net capital expenditures, partially offset by an unfavorable change m
EBITDA after changes in net working capital and transition costs paid
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Friday February 27 2015

Year ended December 31,
% Change at
% Change at constant rate and
{in mulhons of eurqs) 2014 2m3 % Change constant rate penmeter (a)
Physical sales 1417 1665 -14 9% 135% 122%
Digutal sales 1636 1705 41% 28% F4%
License and other 635 622 +2 1% +26% +# 0%
Recorded music 3,688 3992 -76% 64% -44%
Music publishing 673 §55 +28% +42% + 2%
Merchandsstng and other 232 273 -14 9% -15 8% -150%
Ehbmination of intersegment transactions {36) {34)
Total Revenues 4,557 4,886 -6 7% -5 6% -3.8%
Income from operations 606 636 -8 5% -3.8% +2.3%
{ncome from operations' margin 133% 130%
Charges related to
equity-settled share-based compensation plans (2) [6)
Special tems excluded from income from opesations
{inclughng integration and restructuning costs) (39) (119
EBITA 565 51 +10 7% +11.3% +20 2%
EBITA margin 124% 105%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 825 585 -273% -218%
Recorded music revenues by geographical area
Europe 41% 39%
North America 39% 40%
Asia 1% 12%
Rest of the world 5% 9%
100% 100%

a  Constant penmeter excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Labe! Group repertoire

Recorded music sales of physical and digital supports {albums, tracks, DVDs and streaming), in millions of equivalent album

units
Artist 2014 Artist 2013
Frozen 160 Eminem 83
Taylor Swift 88 KatyPerry 60
Sam Smith 46 Rihanna 49
Katy Perry 42  Imagine Dragons 44
Maroon § 37  Luke Bryan 41
Arana Grande 36 LadyGaGa 49
Eminem 35 Drake 39
Lana Del Rey 30 Justin Bieber 38
Helene Fischer 29 Taylor Swift 36
Lorde 29 The Beatles 34
Tatal 472 Total 464
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Revenues and EBITA

Universal Music Group’s {UMG) revenues were €4 557 mithon, down 5 6% at constant cusrency (-6 7% at actual currency) compared to 2013
Excluding the impact of Parlophone Label Group {divested in 2013 as part of the EMI Recorded Music acquisition remedies) and at constant
currency, UMG's revenues were down 3 8% compared to 2013 due ta the rap/d transformation of the recorded music industry

Recorded music digital sales were flat compared to 2013 at constant currency and penmeter, as sigrificant growth in subseription and
streaming revenues offset the deching in digital download sales  However, total recorded music revenues declined due to the continued
industry dechine in physical sales

In the United States, UMG had the top three albums of the year Disney's “Frozen” soundtrack, Taylor Swift's “1989” and Sam Smith’s “In
The Lonely Hour” Including track and stream equivalent albums, UMG had the top six, adding Anana Grande "My Everything”, Katy Perry
“Pnsm” and Lorde “Pure Hereine” In France, UMG had the top three albums of the year from Stromae, Indila and Kend)i Girac Globally,
recorded music best sellers for 2014 included sales from the Disney “Frozen” soundtrack, the new release from Taylor Swift, the
breakthrough releases from Sam Smith, Ariana Grande and 5 Seconds Of Summer and carryover sales from Katy Perry and Lorde

Reflecting this success, UMG won 33 awards and swept all four major categories at the 57th Annual Grammy Awards in February 2015 Sam
Smuth receved three of the four major awards for Record of the Year, Song of the Year and Best New Artist and Beck won for Album of the
Year

UMG's EBITA was €565 million, up 11 3% at constant currency (+10 7% at actual currency) compared to 2013 and up 20 2% excluding last
year's contnbution from divested Parlophene Label Group The favorable performance reflected the benefit of cost management and lower
restructuring and integration costs that more than offset the decling in revenues

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

UMG's cash flow from operations amounted to €425 miflion {compared to €585 million 1n 2013} In 2013, cash flow from operations
benefited from exceptional proceeds in relation to an insurance settlement, property disposals and dividends (€54 milkion} from its interest in
Beats, divested in August 2014 UMG's cash flow from operations was also impacted by the unfavorable changes in waorking capital related
to the phasing of digital income recerpts and royalty payments
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423 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,

{m mullans of euros) 2014 2013
Digitick 15 13
See Tickets 36 K1l
Watchever 26 12
Wengo 19 15
Total Revenues 9% 71
Incame from operations (34) {78)
EBITA (79} {80)
Cash flow from operations [CFFO) (44) {80}
Revenues and EBITA

Vivendi Village's revenues amounted to €96 million, an increase of €25 million It included revenues from Digitick (€15 m:dkon, compared to
€13 million 1n 2013), See Tickets (€36 million, compared to €31 million n 2013), Watchever (€26 million, compared to €12 million 1n 2013},
and Wengo (€19 million, compared to €15 million in 2013}

Vivend Village's EBITA amounted to -€73 milhon, compared to -€80 millien in 2013 In 2014, 1t was notably impacted by Watchever's
restructuring charges in Germany {-£44 million})
Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

Vivendi Village's cash flow from operations amounted to -€44 mitlion, compared to -€80 mithon in 2013 This change was mainly related to
the change i EBITDA

424 Corporate

Year ended December 31

{in millions of eures) 2014 2013
Inceme from operations {82} (87)
EBITA {70 (87)
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ) {69) (89}
EBITA

Corporate EBITA was -€70 million {compared to -€87 mitlion in 2013}, an increase of €17 mitlion This increase was primarnly due to the
decrease in operating expenses and to non-recurring items refated to pensions
Cash flow from operations (CFFD}

Corporate’s cash flow from cperations amounted to -€65 million, compared to -€89 million 1n 2013 Thus change was mainly attributable to
the change in EBITA

425 GVT (discontinued operation)

GVT’s revenues were €1,765 million, a 12 8% increase at constant currency compared to 2013 This performance was driven by continuous
growth of the core segment {retail and SME), which wcreased 14 1% at constant currency, including a 56 8% year-on-year increase in pay-
TV This service, which now represents 14 2% of GVT's total revenues, had 858,860 pay-TV subscribers, reflecting a 336% increase
compared to 2013

GVT pursued its expansion 1 Brazif in a controlled and targeted manner and launched its services m six additional cities duning 2014 It now
operates in 156 cities in the South, Southeast, Midwest and Northeast regions in Brazit

GVT's EBITDA was €702 million, a 8 4% increase at constant currency compared to 2013 Its EBITDA margin reached 39 8% (41 4% for its
telecom activities alone), which 1s the highest margin in the Brazilian telecom operator market
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5 Treasury and capital resources

Prelinary comments.

. Vivend considers Financial Net Debt and Net Cash Fosttion, non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators m measunng Vivendi's
treasury and capital resources position

- Fnancial Net Debt 1s calculated as the sum of long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities as reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posttion as well as derivative financial instruments in assets and cash deposits backing borrowings {included i the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets™}

- Net Cash Posttion 1s calculated as the sum of cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posttion, derivative financial instruments in assets, and cash deposits backing borrowangs fincluded i the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Posttron under “financial assets”) less long term and short-term borrowngs and other financial hiabilities

s Fnancial Net Debt and Net Cash Positon should be considered i addition to, and rot as substitutes for, other GAAP measures as
presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financral Position, as welf as other measures of indebtedriess reported in accordance with
GAAP, and Vivend: considers that they are relevant indicators of treasury and caprtal resources position of the group Vivend:
Management uses these ndicators for reporting, management, and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants
of Vivendy

«  naddmon, cash and cash equivalents are nat fully available for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes, ncluding but
not hmited to business acquisitions, capital expenditures, dividend payments, share repurchases, payments of contractual obligations and
working capital

51 Summary of Vivendi’s exposure to credit and liquidity risks

As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi has a Net Cash Position of £4,637 million {including cash and cash equivalents for €6,845 million and
bonds far €1,950 million}, compared to a Financial Net Debt of £11,097 million as of December 31, 2613 {includ:ng bonds for £7,827 millon,
bank credit facilities for £2,075 midlion and commercial papers for £1,906 million}, a €15,734 million favarable impact

In May 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of its 53% nterest in Maroc Telecomn group for €4,138 million and seld 41 5 million Activiston
Blizzard shares for €623 million Vivendi notably used this cash to redeem its drawn bank credit facilities and to pay an ordinary distnibution
of €1 per share to ts shareholders from additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of €1,348 million

On November 27, 2014, Vivendi completed the sale of SFR to Numenicable Group (please refer to Section 11 2} Cash proceeds received from
the sale amounted to €13,166 million, or €13,500 million, net of the price adjustments {-€£134 million) and of Vivend)'s contribution to the
financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numericable Group {-£200 million)

At that date, to further enhance its balance sheet, Vivend: allocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight
tranches of its euro and U S dollar denominated bonds that had a make-whaole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of
€425 billion and $0 6 tillien This transaction, completed in December 2014, resulted in a net cash payment of a €642 mullion in addition to
the principal amount of €4 7 billion

In addition, on November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivend cancelled all of its existing bank
credit faciiities for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 bilhion bank credit facility, matening 1n five years (2019}, with two one-year renewal
options As of December 31, 2014, this credit faciity was undrawn

As a reminder, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for £975 mdlion, matuning in March 2016, was issued in connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment (please refer to Section B} This Yetter of credit 1s guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 intemational banks with
which Vivendi signed a Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credit On July 18, 2014, Vivend: strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement
Agreement by placing a cash deposit of £375 million in an escrow account This cash deposit could be used in priority against a clam made
aganst Vivend:, if any, and if the banks were calied with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which significantly reduced the letter of
credit’s finaneing cost, resulted in a8 €975 million decrease in the group’s Net Cash Position Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-balance sheet financial commitment, with no simpact on Vivendi's Financial Net Debt

As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi had €6,845 million in cash and cash equivalents, pnmanly comprised of monetary UCITS, term deposits
and interest-beanng current accounts
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in addition, on September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telsfonica entered into an agreement for the sale of GVT The agreement represents a total
enterprise vatue of €7 45 billion {on the basis of stack market prices and exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiation agreements
were entered into with Telefonical The transaction 1s expected to close during the second quarter of 2015 After taking nto account the
estimated tax impact, GVT's external debt and the price adjustments at closing of the transaction, the expected net proceeds upon the sale
I1s expected to amount to approximately €3 8 billion {please refer to Section 11 3)

h
Casl an? ci:sh Bufrruwmgls tand o‘thJer Funancial Net Debt

{in rilirons of euros) equivalents inancial items {a
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 {1,041) 12,138 11,097
Gutflows/(inflows) related to continuing operations

(perating activities {1359 - {1359}

Investing activities {16 326) 26 {16 300)

Financing activities 11128 9212 1916
Fereign currency transtation adjustments of continuing operations 10 L] (_]l]_
Outflaws/{inflows!} related to continuing operations {6,567} (9,187} {15,754}
Outflows/{infiows) related to discontinued operations 560 {450} 110
Reclassification of discontinued operations' Financial Net Debt as of December 31 2014 203 {293) {90)
Change related to discontinued operations 163 {743) 20
Financial Net Debt/ {Net Cash Position) as of December 31, 2014 {6,645} 2208 (4,637}

a  “Other financial items” include commitments to purchase non-controlling nterests, derivative financial instruments (assets and
lahilities) and cash deposits backed to borrowings
Financial Net Debt change during fiscal year 2014

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend had a Net Cash Position of €4,637 million, compared to a Financial Net Debt of €11,097 million as of
December 31, 2013}, a €15,734 miltion favorable impact

This change notably reflected

« proceeds from the sales completed during fiscal year 2014 for €178 billion They prnmarly included net proceeds of
£13,166 million from the sale of SFR, £4,138 mullion from the sale of Yivend's 53% interest 1n Maroc Telecom group, €623 million
from the sate of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares, and €221 mithion from the sale of UMG's interest in Beats,

. cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations’ {£1,359 million),
«  cash received from the exercise of stock options by the executive management and employees (€197 million), and
. restatement of GVT's Financial Net Debt as a discontinued operation (€217 millian),
partially offset by
. the cash outflow related to the €1 per share distribution made to Vivend: SA shareowners {€1,348 mill:on),

»  the placing of cash deposits n relation to the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment (€975 million) and to the secunties’ class
action i the United States (€45 mullion),

*  cash payments related to financial activities (€702 million), of which €642 million related to the early redemption of bonds and
£96 mullion refated to net interest paid,

*  acqusitions (€303 million) made by Canal+ Group for an aggregate amount of €244 million {pnmarily comprised of acquisitions of
Medaserv, Thema, and of an additional 9% terest in N-Vision} and by UMG fer an aggregate amount of €53 million (notably
included the acquisition of Eagle Rock and the contribution to Vevo's share capital increase), and

»  cash outflows related to capital expenditures from continuing operations’ (243 millian)

? Continuing operations include Canalr Group Universal Music Group Vivends Viflage, and Corporate
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5 2 Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2014

As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi's Net Cash Posttion, in IFRS, amounted to £4.637 msllion

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to an aggregate of £6,845 million, placed primanly in monetary
UCITS {£4,754 million) and n term depasits and interest-beanng current accounts (€1,851 million}

Moreover, borrowings and other financial habiities amounted to €2,208 million {compared to €12,138 milhon as of December 31, 2013), a
£€9,930 million decrease following the redemptions of borrowings carmed out dunng fiscal year 2014 €5,564 million i bonds, €1,855 million
in bank credit facilities and €1,906 million in commercial papers

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s bonds amounted to €1,950 milhion, compared to £€7,827 midthion as of December 31, 2013 In 2014,
Vivendi redeemed at maturity a €894 million bond, SFR's €300 million bond, and early redeemed bonds with make-whole options, of which
€4,250 milhon in euro denominated bonds, and $595 mitlion (€420 million} related to US dollar denom:nated bonds

Refer to Notes to the
Consohdated December 31 2014 December 3%, 2013

{a)
{in mllions of euros] Financial Statements

Borrowings and other financial labilitigs 2 2347 12,266
of which fong-term (b} 2074 8,737
short-term (b} 273 3529

Dertvative financial instruments in assats (c) {139} {126)
Cash deposits backing borrowings {c) 2)
2,208 12138

Cash and cash eguivatents (b) {6,845} {1041)
Financial Net Debt/ {Net cash position) (4.637) 11,097

a  Asof December 31, 2014, n compliance with IFRS 5, Vivendi's Net Cash Position does not inciude the extemnal Financial Net Debt of
GVT (€217 muliion}

b Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
¢ Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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5 3 Analysis of Financial Net Debt changes

Year ended December 31 2014

Refer to tmpact on cash and Impact on borrowings Impact on Financial
section
cash equivalents and ather fimancial tems Net Debt
{n mullions of euros)
EBIT Z (736} - (736)
Adjustments (447} (447)
Content investments net 3 ng 19
Gross cash providad by op g before tax pard (1202} - {1.202)
Dther chenges n net working capital 123 123
Not cash provided by op 0 iafore tax pard 3 1,079} - {1,079)
Income tax pard net 3 {280) {2801
Net cash provided by op ' of g operat 11,389} (1.359)
Met cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 2234) 2234
Qpsratng actvities (3,593} - {3593
Financial investments
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash 100 116 218
of which ivestments realized by Canals Group 1 86 85 181
tvestments realized by UMG 1 14 21 35
Investments in eqnty affiiates a7 87
of which swvestments realized by Canalt Group 83 [ix
wwestments reatized by UMG 24 24
Increase n financial assets 1057 1057
of which cash deposit related to Vivend: s appeal against the Liberty Media judgment [ 975 §75
cash deposit refated to Secunties Class Action w the United States 8 485 45
Total financiat investmants L244 118 1,360
Financial divestments
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companias after divested cash {16 929) (s0) {17019)
of wivch cash proceeds from the sale of SFR 1 13 368} (13366}
financing of Vigm Mabile acquisstion 1 200 200
SFA s net cash deconsolidated 133 189) 44
procesds from the sale of the 53% mterest m Maroe Telecom groug 1 4 138 {4138
Decrease in financial assets (878) (878}
of which proceeds from the sale of 41 & million Activision Blzzard shares 1 (823} - (623}
proceeds from the sala of UMG s mterest in Beats 1 {221} 221}
Teotai financial divestmonts (17,807) {90) {17,897}
Financia! tavestment activities {16,563) 26 (16537}
Dwidends recerved from equity affiliates 14) [t}
Dividends recerved from unconsalidated companies {2) {2}
Net investing activit:es g capital d net {16.569) % (15.543)
Cap:tal expenditures FZE] 249
Proceeds from sales of propernty plant equipment and intangible assets (B) {6}
Caprtal sxpenditures, net 3 243 - 243
Net cash provided byflused for) mvesting actovities of continuing operations (16,325) ] {16,300)
Net cash provided by/{used for) nwesting actmities of disconunued operations 2034 55 2089
Investing agtvities (14.262) 81 {13,211)
Transactions with shareowners
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of commen shares (n conngction with Vivendi SA's share-based compensation plans (1587} (187)
af which exercise of stock options by axecutive managament and employees {197) {197
(Sales)/purchases of Vivend: SA s treasury shares kra 32
Distribution ta Vivendi SA s shareowners (€1 per share) 1 1348 1348
Cther transactions with shareowners 7 2
Dwidends paid by consolidated comparies ta thesr non controtling interests 34 34
Total with sh L219 - 1.219
Transactions on borrowings and other financial hahilitres
Setting up of long tem bosrowings and increase in other long term financial labilities 3] 3
Principal payments or long term borrowings and decrease in other long term financial labilities 1670 {1670
of whrch bank credit faciities 1655 {1655/
Pringipal payments on short term borrowings 7680 17 6801
of which bonds 5564 {5 564
commeroial paper 1 808 (1 808!
Other changes n short term borrowings and other financial habhties (140} 140
Non-cash transactions ta] (5}
Interest paid net 3 L 96
Other cash wtems related to financial actvities 3 606 606
Total transsctions on borrowings snd other financisl Iiabriines 9909 9212} 687
Net cash provided byAused for} f ] of p 1128 9212} 1916
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities of discontinued operations 756 {508} 248
Emanging activities 11.884 {9,720) 2,164
Foreign currency translztion adjustments of continuing operabiens (10) {1} {1
Forgign currency translauon ad) of disc d operations 4 3 7
Reclassification of Financial Net Debt from discentnued operations 203 {293) (90)
hange 1n Financial N 15,804) 13,930} {15 734)
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5 4 Changes to financings

e InJanuary 2014, Vivend redeemed the 7 79% bond 1ssued i January 2009, for €894 million, upon 1ts contractual matunty

+  On November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivend cancelled all of its existing bank credit
facilities for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, maturing 1n five years (2019) and with two one-year renewal
options As of December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

s  0On Decembar 15, 2014, Vivend redeemed all its euro-denominated bonds with a make-whole option representing a total pnncipal amount of
£4,250 mition and paid a net cash premium of €572 million

o On December 29, 2014, Vivendi redeemed all its US dollardenominated bonds with a make-whale option representing a total principal
amount of $595 million {€420 million} and paid a net premium of €70 million

For a detaifed analysis of the borrawings as of December 31, 2014, please refer to Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

6 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Yivend: is subject to vanous lawsuits, arbitrations and govemmental, administrative or other
proceedings {collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are hikely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated. in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivend:'s best estimate of the
nisk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such nsk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivend: for all claims and litigations amounted to €1 206 mithon, compared to £1,379 milion as of December 31, 2013

To the company's knowledge, there are no Lega! Proceedings or any facts of an excephional nature, including, to the company’s knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings 1n which it 15 a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company’s and on s group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hersunder 15 described as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivend's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivendi litigation

Secunities Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivend, Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of Califormia On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to consolidate these claims under its jurisdiction into a single action entitled /o re Vivendr Universal SA Secuntres
Litigation

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securties
Act of 1933 and US Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financiaf commumications O January 7, 2003, the plainufts
filed a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class (“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivend: {formerly Vivend! Universal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the class certfication decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivend: on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the individual actions with the secunties class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsoldated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, ths ;ury returned 1ts verdict [t found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between Octeber 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false or misleading and were made in violation of Section 10{b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Plaint:ffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misteading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged “hquidity nisk” which
reached its peak 1n December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Marie Messier nor Mr Guiltaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
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day of the class penod in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action
The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the thres weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as wall as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets (12 days) during the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Mormison v National Australia Bank case, that American
securities law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a security histed on an Amenican stock exchange”, and to "the purchase or sale of any
other secunty i the United States "

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Morrison” decision, confirmed Vivend!'s
posrtion by dismussing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ordinary shares on the Panis stock exchange and hmited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivend:'s post-trial
motions challenging the jury's verdict The Court also declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requasted by the plantiffs, saying that
to do 50 would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be i1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plantiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pans stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and issued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Mormson decision, also dismissed the claims
of the indwdual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Panis stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had unt:l August 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These
claims are currently being processed and verified by an independent claims admunistrator and by the parties Vivend will then have the right
to challenge the merits of these cfaims On November 10, 2014, at Vivendi's imtiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upen proposed
order requesting the Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covenng a substantial portion of the claims
Certain large claims were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivendi continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
those claims On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partral judgment

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed its Netice of Appeal with the Second Circurt Court of Appeals Thrs appeal will be heard together with
Vivendr's appeal in the Liberty Media case

Vivend: believes that 1t has sohd grounds for an appeal Vivend: intends to challenge, among other issues, the plaintiffs’ theories of
causation and damages and, maore generally, certain dectsions made by the judge during the eonduct of the tria! Several aspects of the
verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 1 31 (Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 {Provisions} Vivend: made a prowision on December 31, 2008, in an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivendi might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class action litigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern Distnet of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June 24, 2010 in the Mornisen case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, If any, that Vivend: mught have to pay sclely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend: considers that this provisian and the assumptions on which 1t 15 based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estmate As s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate is based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certam of its affiliates filed suit against Vivend and Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern Distriet of New York for claims anising out of the agreement entered into by Vivend! and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivendi Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the securities class action for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsohdated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Med:a’s request that they be permitted to avall themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action Jury with
respect to Vivendi's athity (theory of “collateral estoppel”)
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The Liberty Media jury returned its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend: iable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media 1n the amount of €765 million Vivend) filed certan post-trial motions chatlenging the jury’s verdict, including motians requesting that
the Court set as:de the jury’s verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tral

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2007 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return an ane-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment n the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its executron while it considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend) filed with the Court 2 Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which 1t believes 1t has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend) filed a motion in the Second Circurt Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously On April 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals 1ssued an Qrder granting Vivend:'s motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Meda case together with the Class Action Vivend: filed its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivend: maintained as of December
31, 2014, the provision in the amount of €345 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

Tnal of Vivendi's Former Officers in Pans

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor’s office {Parquet de Pars) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this tnvestigation
relating to purchases by the company of 1ts own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivendi joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The tnial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance {Tnbunal de Grande
Instance de Paris), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, in which it confirmed the previous recognition of Vivend as a civil party Messrs Jean-Mane Messier,
Guiliaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Erc Licoys recewved suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mane Messier and
Guillaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as cwil parties The former Vivend
Officers as well as some civil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Pans Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of £150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading infermation, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of £850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and & fine of
€5 million for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 19, 2014, the Panis Court of Appeal rendered 1ts judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower cnminaf court to constitute the dissemination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the criteria for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Marne Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for msider trading and they received fines in the amount of €850,000 {of which €425,000 1s suspended} and €5 miflion {of which
€25 milhon 1s suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set aside the lower court’s order for the payment of damages (€10 per share} to
certain shareholders and former shareholders of Vivend (the "civil action”) With regard to Vivend,, the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a civil party to the proceedings, exonerated 1t from any responsibility and voided the demand for damages brought against 1t by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court {Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
defendants and some civil parties

LBBW and al against Vivend

On March 4, 2011, 26 mstitutional 1nvestors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, italy, Sweden, Belgum and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivend: with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications ssued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002 Subsequently, on Apnl 5 and
April 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of ldaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the British Cofumb:a Investment
Management Corporation also filed @ complaint against Vivendi on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans
appointed a “third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their alleged holding of the securities
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Califorma State Teachers Retirement System and al aganst Vivend: and Jean-Mane Messier

On Apnil 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivend and Jean-Marie Messier before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend) and 1ts former GEQ,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined thase proceedings [n November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plaintiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appointed a "third party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence their alleged holding
of the secunties

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , 1ts Board of Directors, and Vivendi

In August 2013, a dervative action was initiated in the Los Angeles Superior Court by an indivwidual shareholder against Activision Blizzard,
In¢ {"Activision Blizzard" or the "Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivendi The plaintiff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend:'s share ownership
in the Company The plamtiff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that 1t
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Ketick and Brian Kelly, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivendi

On September 11, 2013, a second derivative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonity shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minonty shareholder, Douglas Hayes, initiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overturned this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the merits

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled /n Re
Activision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a similar new action was Initiated In the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minonty shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated into the [n Ae Activision Biizzard Inc Securities Litigation proceeding currently underway

In November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced The Court 1s expected to approve the settlement agreement at an upcoming hearing

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patrimoine to Umibait

Unibail has called its indemnification guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patnimoine {a former subsidiary of Vivendl) in eennection with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1999 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Anjou Patrimoine to indemnify Unibail for a tax hability arising
from the creation of offices and rejected all other clasms On October 31, 2008, the Versaitles Court of Appeal reversed the High Court's
ruling, denied all of Unibail's claims and ordered it to reimburse Aniou Patnmorne for all sums paid under the first ruling On November 27,
2008, Unibail appeated against this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2008 ruling of the
Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Pans Court of Appeal The hearing will take place on Apni 2, 2015

Vivendi Deutschland against FiG

Further to a claim fited by CGIS BIM {a former subsidiary of Vivend:) against FIG to obtain the retease of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 28, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend: delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoming of the judgment On Apnl 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appeaied that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regicnal Berlw Court in April 2009, which decided in
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefare overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This decision 15 now final In parallel, FIG filed a second clam for additional damages in the
Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regiona! Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of £3 9 mithon together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision
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Telefomca against Vivend: in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP [now Telefonica Brazil), filed a claim against Vivend: before the Cril Court of Sdo Paulo (3° Vara Civel do Foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de Sao Pauls) The company is seeking damages for having been blocked from acquinng control of
GVT and damages 1n the amount of 15 million Brazihan reals {currently approximately £4 9 mullion) corresponding to the expenses incurred
by Telefonica Brazil in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to unsdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of S3o Paulo to hear a case invohang parties from Curitiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Apnl 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica's claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivend's responsibiity for
Telefonica's failing to acquire GVT The Court notably highlighted the inherently nsky nature of eperations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivend's counterclaim for compensation for the damage H suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carmed out against it by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court's dectsion to the 5th
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sdo Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivend: and Telefonica concerming the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction (which 1s to be
signed on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT}, the case has been suspended

Dynamo against Vivend:

On August 24, 2011 the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivend before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
(Sao Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majority of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 (the date an which Vivend: took control of GVT), the provision 1n GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 1s crossed {the “paison pill provision ) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend:
Vivendi, noting that this poison pifl provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend)
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo’s allegations The arbitral tribunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
Chamber should be scheduled shortly In parallel, on February 6, 2013, Dynamo filed an application with the 21st Federa! Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janewro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide the arbitral tnbunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivendi This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tnbunal could make such an
apphcation On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeira Court of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision and authonzed the provision of
the above-mentioned informatien solely to the arbitral tribunal, denying Oynamo access to the information

Hedging-Gniffo against Vivend

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gniffo funds filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {S8o Paulo
Stock Exchange)} seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the condittons under which Vivend) completed the
acquisition of GVT 1n 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tribunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs The
Hedging-Gnffo funds demanded campensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivendi i connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the "poison pill” provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend! behieves that the decision taken by the Hedging-Griffo funds to selt therr GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivend against Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivendi It also denies any application of the bylaw provision mentigned above, as 1t was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend: or Telefonica

Litigation involving Vivendi subsidianes

Parabole Réunion

In Juby 2007, the Group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reumion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Maunitius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated Jung 19, 2008, the Panis Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunton was unsuccessful in its claims cancerning the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2008, the French
Supreme Court disrmussed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the context of this dispute, vanous jurnsdictions have taken the
apportunity to apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a
channel of similar attractiveness Noncompliance with this order would result 1n a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabofe Réunion filed a
claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre (Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre} seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enforcement having been previously
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rejected by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court}) On November 6, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Apnl 9, 2013, the enforcement
magstrate dismissed n part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible  He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
legal obligation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion Parabole
Réunion filed an appeal against this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared the appeal filed by Parabole
Réuruon madmissible Parabole Réunion filed an appeal on paints of law and filed a second appeal against the Apni 9, 2013 decision

In parallef, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Panis Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness simelar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages

On Aprit 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion fited a complaint agamst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Pans Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the compan:es of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated nto a single action On Apnl 29, 2014, the Pars Tribunal of First Instance recogmized the
contractual liability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quality of channels made available to Parabole Réunion The Tnbunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réumon, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Paris Tribunal of Fust Instance

BelN Sports against the National Rugby League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Competition authority against Canal+ Group and the Nationa! Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting nights to the “TOP 14" for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority imposed intenim measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreement with the National
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new call for tenders process be organized Canal+ Group and the National
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Pans Court of Appeal

On Qctober 9, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nights to the *TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision

Action brought by the French Competition Authonty regarding Practices n the Pay-TV Sector

On Januvary 9, 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authority sent Vivend! and
Canal+ Group a notification of altegations 1t alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivendi and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and MB, on the one hand, and with Lagardere, on the other Vivendi and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competitron Authority rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of collusian, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, In respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authonty requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distribution nghts on channels broadcast by the Group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF%, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On Octeber 30,
2013, the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, and France Télevision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TFt, M6 and France
Téléwision groups tn the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption nghts into co-praduction
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competition The French Competition Authonty 1s examining the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Regie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint wth the French Competition Authenity against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie in the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel during its launch The French Competition Authority is examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5. 2014, a claim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre {Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) by Copie France
who 1s seeking compensation n respect of external hard drives used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
external drive used by Canal+ 15 "dedicated” to the set-top boxes and therefore it should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France
believes that the applicable amount of the compensation s €45 per hard drive as opposed to €8 7
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Aston France aganst Canat+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notfied the French Competition Authorsty about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its sateflite
subscription cailed “cards only® (enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satellite decoders,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston) In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commereial Court of Panis, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satellite subscriptions called "cards only* On QOctober 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court issued an order denying Aston’s requests On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Paris
Court of Appeal, ruling 1 chambers, granted its request and suspended the decision of Canal + Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authority renders its decision on the merits of the case

Complaints against Music Industry Majors 1n the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Intemet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismuss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but thrs decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a mation
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process 1S underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Stnce 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on hine sales of music downloads and master nngtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions

Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 8, 2007, Capitol Records and EM! Music Publishing filed a joint complaint agatnst MP3Tunes and its founder, Michaef
Robertson, for copynight infringement on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The trial was held n March 2014, and, on March
19, 2014, the jury returned & verdict favorable to EMI and Capntal Records it found the defendants hable for knowingly aliowing the
unauthonized content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages in the amount of $41 million On October 30, 2014 the
Court confirmed the verdict but entered judgment in the raduced amount of $12 2 milkon The defendants have appealed against the
Judgment

Mireille Porte against Interscope Records, Inc , Stefan) Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireille Porte (AKA “Orlan™) filed a complaint agamst Interscope Records, Inc, Stefani Germanotta (AKA “Lady
Gaga") and Universal Music France with the Panis Tribunal of First Instance {Tribunal de Grande Instance de Paris) for the aiteged copyright
infringement of several of Orlan's artistic warks

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clar filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Paris Tribunat of First Instance {Tribunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alleged infringement of his work

Litigation volving GVT (discontinued operation)

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

GVT, like all other telecommunications operators, ts party (n several Brazithan States to various proceedings concerning the application of the
"JICMS”™ tax {Imposto Sober Circulagdo de Mercadorras e Prestagdo de Servigos), which 15 a tax on operations relating to the circulation of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electricity services

GVT 15 notably a party to hitigation in vanious Brazilian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on vaice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings initiated by GVT, all have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes in Brazil

The Brazthan tax authonties argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST” (Fundo da Umversalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomuricagdes), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazilian territory, including in
areas that are not economically viable, and "FUNTTEL" (Fundp para Desenvolumento Tecnaldgioco das Telecomunrcagies), a federal tax to
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finance technological investments in Brazlian telecommunications services, should be based on the company’s gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum being subject te double
taxation GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authority from the
federal judge

Proceedings Brought against Telecommunications Operators in Brazif Regarding the Application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were initiated against atl the telecommunications operators 1n Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” {Programa de Integragdo Social) and “COFINS” (Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Segunidade
Social), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT beligves that the arguments in
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the historic operators as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows it to
set rts own tariffs

1 Forward looking statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report, notably in Section 2 3, contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of
operations, business, strategy, plans and outlook of Vivend:, including the impact of certain transactions and the payment of dividends and
distributions as well as share repurchases Although Vivend! beheves that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ materiaily from the forward-looking
statements as a result of a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivendi’s control, including, but not limited to, the nisks
related to antitrust and other regulatory approvals as well as any other approvals which may be required in connection with certamn transactions
and the nsks descnbed in the documents of the group filed with the Autonté des Marchés Financiers (the "AMF”) (the French securities
regulator), which are also available in Enghsh an Vivendi's website (www vivend: com} Accordingly, we caution you against refying on forward
looking statements These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Repart Vivend) disclaims any intention or
obhigation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a resclt of new information, future events or otherwise

8 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendi does net sponsor an Amencan Depositary Receipt (ADR} facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 15
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivendi Vivend: disclaims any liability in respect of any such facility

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the french version of the report and 1s provided for informational purposes only This translation
is qualified in 1ts entirety by the French version, which 15 available on the company's website (www vivendi com} In the event of any
inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the French version will prevait
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1 Non-GAAP measures in Statement of Earnings

Income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income, non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute
far, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance, as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes or as described in the Financial Report, and Vivend) considers that they are relevant indicators to assess the group’s operating and
financia! performance Vivend: Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management, and
planning purposes because they better illustrate the underlying performance of continuing operations by excluding most non-recurning and
non-gperating items Each of these indicators are defined in Section 4 of this report or in Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2014

Reconciliatien of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) 2014 2013
EBIT (a) 136 637
Adjustments

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 344 350
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a) 9z B
Other income {a} {203} [88)
Qther charges (a) 30 50
EBITA 999 955
Adjustments

Charges related to

equity-settled share-based compensation plans g 23
Spectal items excluded fram ingome from aperations

{includtng transition/integration costs and restructuning costs} 100 183
Income from operations 1,108 1,131

Reconciliation of earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31,

{in mithons of euros) 2014 2013
Earmings atmbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners (a} 47143 1,97
Adustments
Amortization of (ntangible assets acquired through business combinations 344 350
impatrment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a) 92 6
Other ncome {a} {203) (88}
Other charges (a) 30 50
Other financial income {a) ) 13)
Other financial charges [a) 751 300
Earmings from discontinued operations (a) {5 262) {2633}
of which capital gai on the divestiture of SFR (2378) -
tmpairment of SFR's goodvwnl! - 2431
caprtal gam on the divestiture of Maroc Telecom group {786} -
capital gain on Activision Blizzard shares {84} {2915)
Change in defermed tax asset related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and to the Consolidated
Global Profit Tax Systems 37 {109}
Non-recurnng 1tems related to provision for income taxes 5 28
Provisian for income taxes on adjustments {112} {106}
Non-controlling interests on adjustments 219 702
Adjusted net income 626 454

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Vivend /38




Friday February 27,2015

Adjusted net income per share

Year endad December 31
2014 2013
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net income {in millions of suros) 626 626 454 454
Number of shares {in mtllions)

Weighted average aumber of shares cutstanding {a) 13458 13458 13306 1,330 6
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 55 - 47
Adjusted weighted average numbar of shares 13458 13513 13306 1,335.3
Adjusted net income per share {in euros) D46 046 034 034

a  Net of treasury shares {50,033 shares as of December 31, 2014)

2 Adjustment of comparative information

In camphiance with IFRAS 5, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014}, SFR [as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom group
and Activision Blizzard {as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported in Vivend's Consolidated Financial Statements as
discontinued operations Vivendi deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14,
2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows
- their contribution until the effective divestiture, If any, to each line of Vivendr’s Consolidated Statement of Earnings {before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the fine “Eamings from discontinued operations”,
- therr share of net income has been excluded from Vivend's adjusted net income, and
- naccordance with [FRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information

The adjustments to published data for the first quarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relate to GVT

2014
Three months Three months  Six months ended
{in milhons of euros, except per share amounts} ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30,
Adjusted earnings bofore interest and mmcome taxes (EBITA} (as
previously published) 268 358 626
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT -83 -88 -1
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA} {restated) 185 21 455
Adjusted net income (as previously published) 161 194 355
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS & for GVT -52 - 50 -102
Adjusted net incoeme (restated) 109 144 253
Adjusted net income per share (as previously published) 012 014 026
Adjusted net incoms per share (restated) (1] on 019

Financtal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /40



Friday February 27, 2015

The adsustments to data pubhshed n the 2013 Annual Report are reported below and relate to GVT and SFR

2013
Three months Three menths  Six months ended

{in mithons of euros except per share amounts) ended March 31 ended June 30, June 30
Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {as
published {a)) 629 762 139

Reclassifications related to the applrcation of iFRS 5 for GVT a9 -98 197

Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR -328 377 -705
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {rastated} 202 287 489
Ad)justed net income {as publishad (a}) 366 479 845

Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT -70 -67 137

Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR -232 254 - 486
Adjusted net income {restated) 64 158 22
Adjusted net income per share {as publhished (a}) 028 0.36 064
Adjusted nat income per share {restated) 005 012 017

213
Three months Nine months Three months Year ended
ended September  ended September  ended December December 31

{in mullions of euros except per share amounts) 30, 30 31, em !
Adjusted earnings before interest and mmcome taxes (EBITA) {as
published (a}) 730 23 312 2433

Reclassifications related to the application of {FRS 5 for GVT - 101 -298 - 107 - 405

Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR -334 -1038 -34 - 1,073
Adjustad sarnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {restated) 295 784 m 955
Adjusted net income {as published (a}) 403 1.248 292 1,540

Reclassifications related to the apphcation of IFRS 5 for GVT -75 -212 62 274

Reclassifications related to the apphcatien of IFRS 5 for SFR -249 -735 77 -812
Adjusted net income {restated) 79 301 153 a8
Adjusted net income per share {as pubhished ()} 030 094 022 116
Adjusted net income per share {restated) 006 0.23 on 034

a  As published in the 2013 Annual Report
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3 Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2014 and 2013 quarterly data

{in mullrons of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend Village

Elmination of intersegment transactions

Totat Vivendu

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Groug
Vivend: Village
Corporate

Total Vivendi

{in mullions of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

Eliminaton of intersegment transactions

Tatal Vivend)

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivendi Viliage
Corporate

Total Vivend:

Ftnanciai Report and Audited Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

2014
1st Quarter ended  2nd Quarter ended 3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 3t

1317 1,350 t 300 1,489

984 1,019 1094 1460

21 25 23 27
(5 (5} (5) (5)

2,317 2 389 2412 29M
175 245 206 (43}

56 a7 121 N

{20) {67) - B8
{26) (5) (17) 122)

185 210 310 233

2013
1st Quarterended  2nd Quarterended  3rd Quacter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

1286 1314 1,257 1,454

1091 1145 1162 1,488

16 17 18 20

{5) (3 {5) (3)

2,338 2473 2,432 2959

183 247 217 136)

55 88 112 256
{14) (23) (20) {23}

{22 {25) (14) 128)

202 287 295 1
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lll - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Shareholders,

In compiance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Shareholders’ Meetings, we hereby repart to you for the year
ended December 31, 2014 on

« the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vivends, herenafter referred to as “the Company”,

« the justification of our assessments,

+ the specific verifications required by law
These consolidated financial statements have been approved by your management board Our rale 1s to express an opinion on the financial
statements, based on our audit

1 Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures i the consolidated financial statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
We beheve that the audit evidence we have abtamned 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opimion

In our opinion, the consohidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and hatnlities and of the results of its operations
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

il Justrhication of our Assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 8239 of the French commercial code (Code d commerce/relating to the justfication of our
assessments, we draw your attention to the following matters

» Note 1358 to the financial statements descnbes the accounting principles apphcable to financial assets, including non-consohidated
investments We examined the accounting treatment applied to the group's investment 1n Numericable — SFR We ensured that Note
31 to the consolidated financial statements gives appropnate disclosures thereon

+ Note 136 to the consolidated financial statements describes the applicable criteria for classification and accounting for discontinued
operations or assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 We verified the correct application of this accounting principle and we
ensured that Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements provides appropriate disclosures with respect to management’s position
as of December 31, 2014

« At each financial year end, your Company systematically performs impairment tests on goodwill and assets with indefinite useful hves,
and also assesses whether there 1s any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the methods
described in Note 13 57 to the consolidated financial statements We examined the methods used to perform these impairment tests,
as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1 357 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements provide
appropriate disclosures thereon

« Note 139 to the consolidated financial statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and Note 138
descr:bes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We verfied the correct appiication of these accounting principles and
also examined the assumptions underlying the the positions as of December 31, 2014 We ensured that Note B to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropriate infarmation on tax assets and hiahilies and on your company’s tax positians

« Notes 138 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for
Iiigation We examined the methods used within the group to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such Iigation We
also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated n Note 13 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes i estimates and assumptions which could have an impact upon the
reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to the
opinton we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report
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Il Specific venfications
We have also venified, in accordance with professional standard applicable i France, the information provided in the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters to report as its fair presentation and 1ts consistency with the consolidated financial statements

Paris-La Défense, February 27, 2015

The statutory auditors
French oniginal signed by

KPMG AUDIT ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
Deépartement de KPMG S A
Baudoun Griton Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

Mote 2014 2013 {a}
Revenues 4 10,089 10,252
Cost of revenues 4 (6,121} (8,097)
Selling, general and administrative expenses {3,155) {3,358)
Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income {158) (192}
Impairment |osses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations 4 (92) {8)
Qther income 4 203 88
Other charges 4 {30} {50)
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 2 736 637
Income from equity affiliates 13 {18) {2
Interest 5 (96) (266}
Income from investments 3 66
Other financial income 5 19 13
Other {inancial charges 5 (751) (300}
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes (107 129
Provision for income taxes 62 (130} 17
Earnings from continuing operations (237) 146
Earnings from discontinued operations 3 5,262 2,633
Earnings 5025 27179
Of which
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 4744 1,967
of which earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (290) aQ
eamings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 5034 1,824
Non-controlling intesests 8 812
of which earnings from continuing aperations 53 103
earnings from discontinued operations 228 709
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic 7 022) 003
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted 7 (022) 003
Earmings from discontinued aperations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - hasic 7 374 145
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted 7 373 144
Earnings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share - basic 7 352 148
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - difuted 7 351 147

in m:lhons of euros, except per share amounts, in euros

a Incompliance with [FRS 5 - Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR
(as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom and Activision Blizzard {as from the second quarter of 2013) have been
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings as discontinued operations (please refer to Nate 3) Vivend deconsolidated SFR,
Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively The
adjustments to previously published data are presented in Note 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consol dated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

2013

2,179

(23)

(23)

(1.429)
58
15

{1,356)

{1,378)

1,400

789

{in millions of euros) Note 2014
Earnings 5,025
Actuanal gains/(iosses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net {68)
Items not reclassified to profit or loss {68}
Foreign currency translation adjustments 778
Unrealized gainsfllosses), net 936
Qther impacts, net {94)
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss 1,620
Charges and income directly recogmzed in equity 8 1,552
Total comprehensive mcome 6,577
of which

Total comprehensive income attnibutable to Vivendi $A shareowners 6312
Total comprehensive Income attributable to non-controlling interests 285

611

The accompanying notes are an (ntegral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwill

Non-current content assets
Other Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in equity affiliates
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventories

Current tax recevables

Current content assets

Trade accounts recewvable and gther
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Assets of discontinued businesses
Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capttal

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained earnings and other
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current provisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial liabilines
Deferred tax liabil#ies

Other non-current habilities

Nan-current iabihities

Current provisions

Short-term berrowings and other financial habiliies
Trade accounts payable and other

Current tax payatles

Liabthties associated with assets held for sale

Liabihties associated with assets of discontinved businesses

Current habilities
Total hiabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Fnday, February 27, 2015

Note December 31,2014

December 31, 2013

9 8,329 17.147
10 2,550 2,623
" 229 4,306
12 faki 7,541
13 306 446
14 6,144 654
] 710 733
19,985 33,450

15 114 330
B 234 627
10 1135 1,149
15 1,983 4,898
14 49 45
16 6,845 1,041
10,350 8,090

- 1,078

3 5,393 6,562
15,753 15,730

35,738 49,180

7434 7,358

5,160 8,381
{1 {1

10,013 1,709

22,606 17.457

382 1,573

17 22,988 19,030
18 2,888 2,904
21 2,074 8,737
6 657 680
15 121 757
5740 13,078

18 290 619
21 273 3,529
15 5,306 10,416
6 47 79
5916 14,643

3 1,094 2,429
1.010 17,0712

12,750 30,150

35,738 49,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31
{in miilions of euros) Note 2014 2013 {a)
Operating activities
EBIT 4 736 637
Adjustments 23 447 557
Cententinvestments net REN {148)
Gross cash provided by opersting activities refore income tex pard 1202 1045
Other changes in net working capital b {123) 36
Not cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid 1078 1.082
Income tax paid net 63 280 205
Net cash provided by operating activities of comtinuing operations 1,358 1.287
Net cash prowided by operating activities of discontinued operations 3 2234 3953
Net cash provided by operating activities 3593 5,240
Investing activities
Capital expenditures 2 {249) (278)
Purchases of consolidated compames after acquired cash {100} {42)
Investments in equity atfiliates 13 187)
Increase i fingncial assets 14 {1057} (65)
Investments {1,493) {385}
Proceeds from sales of property, plant equipment and intangible assets 2 B 33
Proceeds from sales of consohdated companies after divested cash 3 16 929 2739
Disposal of equity affilates 13 8
Decrease in financial assets 14 878 724
Divestitures 17813 3504
Dividends recewved from equity affiliates L 3
Divrdends received from unconsolidated companies 2 54
Net cash provided by/fused for) investing activities of continiting operatiens 16,326 3176
Net cash provided byAused for) investing activities of discontinued operations 3 [2034) 14,363
Net cash provided byAused for} investing actvities 14,292 (1,187)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivend: SA’s share-based
compensation plans 20 197 195
Sales/{purchases} of Vivend: SA's treasury shares 32} -
Distnbution to Vivend) SA's shareowners 17 {1348} {1 325)
Other transactions with shareawners ¥4 {1046}
Dividends pard by consolidated compantes to ther nen-controliing interests (3% {33}
Transactions with shargownars {1.219) {2.209)
Setting up of leng term borowings and increase in pther long-term financial labilities 21 k] 2405
Pringipal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease (n other long-term financial habiites 21 (1670) {1910)
Principal payment on short-term berrowings al (7 680) {5161}
Other changes n short-term borrowangs and other financial fiabilities A 140 36
Interest pawd net 5 {96} {266)
Other cash items related to financial activities {606) {330)
Transactions on borrowings and other financisl habihties 15,905) 15,226}
Net cash provided by/{used for} finencing activities of contmuing operations {11.128) (7435}
Net cash provided by/(used for) financing actvities of discontinued operations 3 {756) 1017
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities {11.884) (6.418)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations 10 {200
Foreign currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations 3 4) {72
Change in cash and cash equivalents 6,007 (2,457)
Reclassification of discantinued cperations' cash and cash equivalents 3 {203) {396)
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the period 16 1,04__;' 3.894
At end of the period 16 6,845 1.041

a Incomplance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR
(as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom and Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013} have been
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations {please refer to Note 3} Vivend: deconsolidated SFR,
Maroc Telecom group, and Activision Bhizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively These
adjustments are presented in Note 31 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Chenges in non-controllivg intecests that do oot resuit in # geinfoss) of comtral - [ - )
HANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON CONTROLLING INTERESTH (B {1,457} a7
Earnings - LY 7 5025
Charges and income directly in aquity - - 162} 238 bl 150
TOTAL COMPREAENSIVE INCOME (C) 4353 ] EL] 6577
—_— —
TOTAL CHANGES DVER THE PERIOSD (A+B+E) 27 [ 322) (LX) 5358 a7 ] 73
Antributable fo Vivend) SA sharsownars 1193 fii-d 2221} (3 155} §581 935 788 8304
Atiributable lo non-controling wterssts {1183} 2 10} i1 191}
BALANCE A5 OF OECEMBER 1 204 1351807 ) S0 O 1288 | 106 T Ti.360) 3%
Attrid to Vivand) SA o 1351601 734 5,160 i1 12,509 1o, 145 110 (1292 19813
| Atinbuiabiv to non-vcontroliing interests - 44 i fs2) F=]

The accempanying notes are an integra! part of the Consolidated Financia) Statements
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The accompanying notes are an iniegral part of the Consohdated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend: 15 a hmited liability company {société anonyme} incorporated under French law and subject to French commercial company law
inctuding the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) Vivendi was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless its term s extended Its registered office 1s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Faris {France} Vivend s isted on Euronext Paris {Compartment A)

Vivend: operates a number of companies that are leaders 1n content and media Canab+ Group s the French leader in pay-TV and s also
present in African countres, Poland, and Vietnam, its subsidiary Studiocanal, 1s a leading European player in the production, acquisition,
distribution and sale of films and TV series Unwersal Music Group is the wortd's leader m music Vivend Village brings together Vivend
Ticketing, Wengo (expert counseling), Watchever {subscription video-on-demand) In add:tion, Vivend: controls GVT, the leading Braz/hian
alternative operator

Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as frem November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014 and October 11, 2013,
respectively, each date being the date of therr effective sale by Vivendr Moreover, as a result of the plan to sell GVT, this business has been
reported in Vivend’s Consolidated Statement of Earuings as a discontinued operation, in accordance with [FRS 5

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and account:ng situation of Vivend: and its subsidiares {the “group’) together
with interests in equity affiliates Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 11, 2015, at a meating hald at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 They were examned by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on
February 20, 2015 and the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015

On Aprif 17, 2015, the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 will be submitted for approval at Vivends's
Annual General Shareholders’ meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

11 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2014 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivend) SA have been prepared in accordance with Intematienal Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as endorsed by the Eurepean Union (EU), and 1n accordance with IFRS published by the interational Accounting Standards
Board {IASB} with mandatory application as of December 31, 2014

Vivend: applied from the first quarter of 2014 IFRIC 21 imterpretation — Lewigs, 1ssued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IFRS IC} on May
20, 2013, endorsed by the EU on June 13, 2014 and published in the EU Official Journal on Jung 14, 2014 {FRIC 21 clanfies the treatment of
certain levies, In accordance with 1AS 37 — Prowsions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

IFRIC 21 specifically addresses the accounting of a lability to pay a levy imposed by public authorities on entities in accordance with
legislation {1 e, taws or regulations), except for income tax and value-added taxes Applying this interpretation has led to the modification,
where necessary, of the analysis of the obligating event triggening recognition of the liability This interpretation, which mandatonily applies to
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 (and retrospectively as from January 1, 2013}, had no matenial impact on Vivend:'s
Financial Statements

In addition and as a reminder, as from the Condensed Financial Statements for the first quarter of 2013, Vivend: voluntanly opted for the early
application, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, of the standards relating to the principles of consahidation IFRS 10 —
Consolidated Financial Statements, \FRS 11 — Joint Arrangements, \FRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 — Separate
Financral Statements, and IAS 28 — Investments in Assocrates and Joint Ventures {refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013 — pages 220 to 235 of the Annual Report) The application of these standards had no matenial impact
on Vivend!'s Financial Statements
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12 Presentation of the Consclidated Financial Statements
121 Consohdated Statement of Earnings

The main hine rtems presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earmings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest, provision
for incomes taxes, earnings from discontinued aor held for sale operations, and eamings The Consolidated Statement of Earnings presents &
subtotal for Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those financing activities,
equity affiliates, discentinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from mvestments, as well as ather financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 1 2 3 and presented in Note 5

122 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 1s calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided by operating actvities excludes the cash smpact of financial charges and income and net
changes in warking capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends recewved from equity affiliates} It also includes any cash flows ansing from the gan
or loss of control of subsidianes

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other tems related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrawings and the settlement of
derivative instruments It also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subs:diary that do not result 1n a loss of control
(including increases ik ownership interests)

123 Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivend: considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), Adjusted net income (ANI}, and Cash Flow From Operations (CFFD), non-
GAAF measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivend: considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the parformance of i1ts operating segments as reported in
the segment data The method used in calculating EBITA excludes the accounting impact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations, '/mpairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivend: to measure and
compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance 1s driven by the operating segment’s
arganic growth or by acquisitions

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, impairmenit
losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as well as other financial income and charges related to
financ:al investing transactions and transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and income related to financial
mvesting transactions include gains and losses recognized in business combinations, caprtal gains or losses related to divestitures or the
depreciation of equity affiliates and other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or loss of control in a
business

Adjusted netincome

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because it better iliustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excludmg most non-recurring and non-operating items Adjusted net income includes the following items

o EBITA{**),

» ncome from equity affiliates (*} (**),

e nterest {*}{**}, equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income eamed on cash and cash equivalents,
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« ncome from investments {*} (**}, including dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies, and
+ taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items

It does not :nclude the following items

* amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**) as well as impaiment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations (*} (**),
other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners (*), as defined above,
other financial charges and income {*} (**), equal to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change in value of financial liabilities, which primarily include changes in the fair value of denvative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowngs, the early unwinding of denvative instruments, the cost of 1ssuing or cancelling
credit faciliies, the cash impact of fore:gn exchange transactions (other than those related to operating activities, included in the
EBIT), as weli as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabilities, and the financial components of empioyee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),
eamings from discontinued operations (¥} (™), and
provisions for income taxes and adjustments attrbutable to non-controlling interests and nen-recurnng tax items {notably the
changes n deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liabilities relating to nsks extinguished over the period)

{*) tems as presented in the Consohdated Statement of Farmings, (**) fterns as reported by each operating segment

Cash Flow From Operations (CFFO)

Vivend: considers cash flow from operations {CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financtal performance The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities, before ncome 1ax, consists of dividends received from equity
affiliates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
ncome tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFQ

124 Consolhidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and [iabilities that are expected to be reahized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity’s normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or habihites If therr maturity exceeds this period, they are recorded as non-current
assets or hiab:lities Moregver, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
1o the presentation of the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements

1.3  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Pursuant to [FRS principles, notably IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures, the Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of certain assets and habilities detailed below

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivend and its subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup rtems and
transactions Vivendi has a December 31 year-end Subsidiaries that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare intenm financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prier to December 31

Acguired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS reguires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend:
Management based, 1n particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, 1abilities, equity or eamings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

o revenue estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees {please refer to Note 1 3 4),
e provisions risk estimates, performed on an indvidual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures
may lead to a risk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 13 8 and 18),
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+ employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining withm the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate {please refer to Notes 1 3 Band 19},

» share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
yield (please refer to Notes 1.3 10 and 20},

+ certain financial instruments fair value estimates (please refer to Notes 1358, 137 and 22),

o deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 13 9 and 8),

o goodwll and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the dentification of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations (please refer to Notes 135 2),

e goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impatrment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating units {CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates {please refer
to Notes 1357, 9,11, and 12), and

e UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficianes who were granted advances are recogmzed In the
Statement of Financial Pos:tion {please refer to Notes 135 3 and 10)

132 Principles of consolidation
A hist of Vivend's major subsidianes, joint ventures and associated entities 1s presented in Note 27

Consolidation

Ail companigs in which Vivend: has a controlling interest, namely those in which it has the power to govem financial and operational policies
i order to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consoldated

The new model of control, introduced by IFRS 10 which supersedes the revised IAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, and
interpretation SIC 12 - Consofidation - Special Purpose Entities, 1s based on the following three criteria to be fulfilled simultaneousty to
conclude that the parent company exercises contrel

+ @ parent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing nghts that give 1t the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, 1 e, the actwities that significantly affect the subsidiary's returns Power may anse from
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual agreements Voting nghts must be substantial, 1 e, they shall be exercisable at any
time without imitatian, particularly during decision making related to significant activities The assessment of the exercise of power
depends on the nature of the subsidiary’s relevant actwities, the internal decision-making process, and the allocation of nghts
among the subsidiary’s ather shareowners,

« the parent company i1s exposed, or has rights, to vanable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary’s performance The concept of returns 15 broadly defined and includes, among other things, dividends and other
economic benefit distnbutions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and bustness
synergies, and

« the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns Exercising power without having any impact on retums
does not qualify as control

Consolidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as If the group was a single economic entity with two categones of owners (i}
the owners of the parent company (Vivendi SA shareowners} and {n} the owners of non-controlling interests A non-controlbing interest 18
defined as the interest in a subsidiary that 1s not attnibutable, directly or indirectly to a parent As a result, changes to a parent company’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of cantral only impact equity, as control does not change within the economic
entity Hence, m the event of the acquisitton of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivend) recognizes the
difference between the acguisition price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change n equity attributable to
Vivend! SA shareowners Conversely any acquisition of cantrol achieved in stages or a loss of control gives nise to profit or loss (n the
statement of earmings

Accounting for joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which supersedes IAS 31 - Frnancial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, and interpretation SIC 13 - Jomtly Controlled Entities -
Non-maonetary Contnbutions by Venturers, establishes principles for financial reperting by parties to a joint arrangement

In & joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement An entity that 1s
a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once 1t has been established that il the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, joint
control exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement
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Joint arrangements are classified into two categones

e joint operations these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have jomt control of the arrangement have nights to the
assets, and obligations for the habilities, relating to the arrangement Thase parties are called joint aperators A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/labilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jointly, and

* joint ventures these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nights to the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each joint venturer shall recognize 1ts interest in a jont venture
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with 1AS 28 (please refer below)

The elimination of proportionate consolidation for joint ventures has no impact on Vivend:, which already accounted for companies that were,
directly or indirectly, jointly controlled by Vivendi under the equity method, and a imited number of other shareholders under the terms of a
contractual arrangement

Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivendi exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method

Significant influence 1s presumed to exist when Vivend: holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting rights n an entity unless it can
be clearly demonstrated that Vivend) does not exercise a significant influence Significant influence can be ewidenced through other critera,
such as representation on the board of directors or the entity's equivalent governing body, part:cipation ¢ policy-making of financial and
operational processes, material transactions with the entity or the nterchange of managerial personnel

133 Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in milkons of euros The functional currency of Vivend: SA and the presentation currency
of the group 1s the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded 1n the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity's functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resuiting from
borrowings 1n foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and (ncome directly recognized in equity unttl the divestuture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidianies, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency s not the euvro are translated nto euros as follows the Consoldated Statement of Financial Position s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the peniod, and the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the period The resulting translation gains and tosses are recorded as foreign
currency translation differences in charges and income dwectly recognized 1n equity In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to reverse the
accumulated foresgn currency translation differences against retained eamings as of January 1, 2004 These fore:gn currency translation
differences resulted from the translation into euros of the financial statements of subsidianes that use fareign currencies as therr functional
currencies Consequently, these adjustments are nat applied to eamings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidianes, joint ventures or
associates whose functional currency s not the euro

134 Revenues from operations and associated costs
Revenues from operations are recorded when it 1s probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can be
reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Canal+ Group

Pay and fres-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestral, satellite or cable pay-telewision platforms are recogrized over the service period,
net of gratuiies granted Revenues from advertising are recognized over the penod dunng the adverusing commercials are broadcast
Revenues from ancillary services {such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1s rendered Subscriber
management and acquisition costs, as well as television distribution costs, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses
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Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a right of vse 1s granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distribution and from video and television or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated retums [please refer to Nete 13 4 3} and rebates, are recognized upon
shipment and availability of the product for retall sale Amortization of film and televiston capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical print
costs, home video inventory costs and television and home video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues

1342 Umwversal Music Group {UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded mustc, net of a prowision for estimated retums {please refer to Note 13 4 3) and rebates, are
recagnized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products seld free on board (FOB} and on delivery for products sold free on
destmnation

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recognized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distnbution platform {on-line or mobile music distributor) ta UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copynights on rmusrcal compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are received and collectability 15 assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distribution costs, royalty and copynght expenses, artists’ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and administrative expenses prmanly include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful recaivables and mdirect overheads

1343 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers

Setling, general and administrative expenses priman'y include salanes and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, admunistrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction m revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
1§ treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s individualized and can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitalized financial interest

Until December 31, 2008, Vivend! did not capitalize financial interest icurred during the construction and acquisition period of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended [AS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest is included in

the cost of quaiifying assets Vivendi applies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs 1s January 1, 2009 onwards
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1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upon the init:al consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control

« the entifiable assets acquired and the habilities assumed are recogrized at their far value on the acquisition date, and
« non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at the non-controtling interest’s propormionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets This optron 1s available on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisition date, goodwilt 1s initially measured as the difference between
(1) the far value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling Interests in the acquiree and, in a business
combination achieved 1n stages, the acquisttion-date fair value of the previously he!d equity interest in the acquiree, and
(1t} the net fair value of the dentifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at far value results m an increase in goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwilF” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the acquisition
date If goodwill 1s negative, It 1s recognized in the Statement of Earnings Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwall 18 measured at its
mitial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses (ptease refer to Note 135 7 below}

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

» on the acquisttion date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit Itkely to benefit from the business
combination,

= contingent consideration in @ business combination 1s recorded at farr value on the acquisstion date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurfing after the purchase price atlocation penod 1s recognized in the Statements of Earnings,

s acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,

« n the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivend: recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquered as a change in equuty attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners, and

s goodwill 1s not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 RS 3, as published by the
[ASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, 1ts provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respect of the
main following rtems
« minonty interests were measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair value,
* contmgent consideration was recogmzed n the cost of acquisition only if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
retiably measured,
=  transaction costs that were directly attnbutable to the acqursition formed part of acquisition costs, and
s n the event of the acquisition of an additional interest 1n a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minonity interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports broadcasting rights

When entening nto contracts for the acquisiton of film, telewision or sports broadcasting nghts, the nights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recarded in the Statement of Financral Position and classified as content assets as follows
« film and television broadcasting nghts are recognized at thewr acquisitian cost when the program 1s avaslable for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting peniod,
+ sports broadcasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season ar upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
+ expensing of film, telewsion ar sports broadeasting nghts 1s included in cost of revenues

Theatrical film and telewision nights produced or acquired to be sold

Theatrnical film and televiston nights produced or acquired before their initial exhibition to be sold, are recorded as a content asset at
capitalized cost {matnly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisstion cost Theatrical film and television nghts are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method (1e, based on the ratio of the current penod’s gross
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revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis) Vivend: considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue methad reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate 15, for this actwity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
line amortization method If, however, the accumulated amortization would be lower than this charge, a mimimum straight-line amortization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year period, which correspands ta the typical screening period of each film

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided (in full against earnings for the period in which the losses are estimated, on an
individual product basis

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs compnise film nights acquired for a second television exhubition, or produced or acquired film and telewiston nights that are sold after
therr first television screening {1 e, after therr first broadcast on a free terrestnial channel} They are recognized as an asset at their acquisition
or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or indwvidually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method

UMG

Music publishing nights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and publishing rights, acquired through business combinations,
amortized in selling, general and administrative expenses over a penod not exceeding 15 years

Royalty advances to artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current populanty and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against eamings otherwise payable to
them 1s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter or
ce-publisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties is expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded 1n cost of revenues

Rovalties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense In the penod during which the sale of the product
occurs, 'ess a provision for estimated retuns

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, i particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of intarnal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized dunng the application development stage Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding. installation and testng Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionahty are also capitalized
These capitalized costs are amortized aver 5 to 10 years Maintenance, minor upgrade, and enhancement cests are expensed as incurred

1355 Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at therr fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost model is applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful |ife are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with a
finite usefut life Useful life 1s reviewed at the end of each reperting period

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses Music catalogs trade names, subscribers” bases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets
1356 Property, plant end eguipment

Property, plant and equipment are carned at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Historical cost includes
the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attributable to transporting an asset te its physical location and preparning 1t for its
operational use, the estmated costs relating to the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of
the physical location resulting from the incurred obligation
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When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization 15 calculated using the strasght-line method based on the estimated useful life of the assets Useful hves of the mamn
components are reviewed at the end of each reparting period and are as follows

s buitdings 5 to 40 years,

s equipment and machinery 3 to 8 years,

» set-top boxes 5to 7 years, and

« other Zto 10 years

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the faw value of future minimum Iease payments and of the market
value and the related debt is recorded as “Borrowings and other financial habilities™ In genaral, these assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over therr estimated useful life, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After initial recognition, the cost model 1s applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend: has elected not to apply the option avaifable under IFRS 1, mvolving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, 10 accordance with 1FRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, which currently mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group (and GVT) satellite capacity, which
are commercial service agreements that do not convey a right to use a specific asset, contract costs under these agreements are consequently
expensed as opesational costs for the period

1357 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes i the economic environment indicate a current risk of impairment of goodwll, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets in progress, Vivendi re-examnes the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an indefinste useful Ife, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual impaimment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year This test 1s performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or, if necessary, groups of CGU to
the carrying value of the corresponding assets (including goodwill} A Cash Generating Unit 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets The Vivend: group operates
through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are marketed through different
channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments Vivend: CGUs and groups
of CGUs are presented in Note 9

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of {1) the value in use, or {1} the fair value {less costs to sell) as described hereafter, for
each individual asset If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount (s determined for the group of assets In particular, an impaiment test of geodwill 15 performed by Vivend: for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the fevel at which Vivend: Management measures return on operations

The value in use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows {discounted cash flow methed
{DCF} by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to avallable extemnal sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivendi of the time value of money and nisks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value (less costs to sell) 1s the price that would be receved from the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basis of market data (stock
market prices or companson with similar histed companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) of
on discontinued future cash flows in the absence of reliable data

if the recoverable amount ts lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference 1s
recogrized in EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this mpairment loss 1s first recorded agaimst goodwitl

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {other than goodwill} may be reversed in
a later period If the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of impairment losses previously recognized
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date
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1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
initially recognized at fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, which 1s best evidenced by the acquisition cost (inciuding
associated acquisition costs, if any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at farr value include available-for-sale securties, dervative financial instruments with a positive value {please refer to
Note 137} and other financral assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded n
organized public markets, their fair value baing calewlated by reference to the pubhished market prce at penod end Fair value 1s estimated for
financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market As a last resort, when a reliable estmate of fair value
cannot be made using valuation techniques in the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at histonical cost, less any
mpairment losses

Avallable-for-sale secunties consist of uncensolidated interests and other secuniues that cannot be classified i the other financial asset
categories described below Unrealzed gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recognized in charges and income directly
recognized In equity until the financial asset 1s sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or until
there Is objective evidence that the investment (s impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
ncorne directly recognized in equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and income

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivend intends to seli in
the near future (pnmanly marketable securities) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and recevables {primartly loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsohdated interests, cash deposits, securitized loans and receivables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors}
and held-to-maturity investments (financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunty} At the end of each period, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method If there 1s objective evidence that an /mpairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and s recoverable amount (equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s intial effective interest rate), 1s recognized in profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently ncreases in the future

1359 Inventones

Inventories are valued at the fower of cost or net realizable value Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price in
the normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs

13510 Trade accounts recewable

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, which 15 generally equal to their nominal value Provisions for the impairment
of receivables are specifically valued in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference period For the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription {Canal+ Group), the depreciation rate of trade
account recenvables 15 assessed on the basis of histoncal account recevables from former customers, pnimarily on a statistical basis In
addition, account recevables from customers subject to insolvency proceedings or customers with whom Vivend: 1s involved in Iitigation or a
dispute are generally impaired in full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF position No 2011-13, and other
highly iquid investments with imtial maturities of generally three months or less Investments in securities, investments with initral matunties
of more than three months without the possitnlity of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrictions (btocked accounts), other than
restrictions due to regutations specific ta a country or activity sector (e g, exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
financial assets Moreover, the historical performance of the investments 1s morutored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification
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136 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and habihties 1s held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utihzation To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immed:ate sale and the divestiture must
be highly probable These assets and habilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liabiliies associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The refated assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value [net of divestiture
fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses and are no longer depreciated

An operation 1s quahfied as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major line of business and the critena for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivend: has sold the asset Dhscontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Eamings for the periods reported, comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued operations untif divestiture and the gan or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, Jess costs to divest the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate 1ine of the Statement of Consofidated Cash Flows for the relevant penods

Accounting principles and valuation methods specific to telecommunications activities, divested 1n 2014 (SFR, Maroc Telecom
Group) or currently in the process of being divested (GVT}

Revenues from operations and associated costs
Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiple-component sales n accordance with I1AS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment {mobile phones ang other equipment}, net of discounts granted to customers through the distribution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the line Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscription
contract period Revenues from incoming and outgoing traffic are recognized when the service 1s rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distributors, are recognized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and loyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and commissions paid to distributors are recognized as selling and general expenses

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed on behalf of content prowviders {(mainly premium rate numbers) are either accounted for
gross, or net of the content providers’ fees when the provider 1s responsible for the content and for setting the price payable by subscrbers

Custom contracts

Service access and wnstallation costs invoiced pnmarnly to the operator's clients on the mstallation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP connection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructure 1s provided to clients pursuant to various types of contracts lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements IRU agreements, which are specific to the telecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irrevocable nght to use an asset {cables, fiber opuc or bandwidth) during a {generally lengthy) defined penod without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts 1n the Netcenters and IRU agreements is recognized over the
duration of the corresponding tontract, except n the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment 1s considered as a sale on credit

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues comprise purchasing costs {including purchases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equipment costs Selling, general and admmustrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses

Other intangible assets

Licenses to operate telecom netwaorks are recorded at historical cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortized on
a straight-line basis from therr effective service start date over their estimated useful Life until matunty Licenses to operate in France are
recognized In the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The vaniable fee, which cannot be reliably determined
{equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the activity tn the case of the telecommunication licenses in France), 1s recorded as an expense
when incurred
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Property, plant and equipment

These mainly consist of the network equipment for telecammunications activities, each part of which s amortized generally over 1 to 50 years
for fiber optic equipment
In respect of commercial supply agreements for telecommunications capacities
« Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements confer an exclusive and wrrevocable right to use an asset duning a defined penod 1RU
agreements are leases which convey a specific nght of use for a defined portion of the underlying asset in the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths IRL agresments are capitalized if the agreement period covers the major part of the useful Iife of the
underlying asset IRU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and
«  some IRU contracts are commercial service agreements that do not convey a night to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operatronal costs for the penod

Accounting principles and valuation methods applicable specifically to Activision Blizzard (videc games), a business divested
mn 2013

Revenus and related costs

The major portion of Activiston Blizzard revenue 1s generated by the sale of boxes for video games, net of a prowision for estimated returns and
price guarantees as well as rebates, if any Regarding video games with significant onhine functionality or Massively Multiplayer Online Role
Playing Games, revenues are recorded ratably over the estimated relationship period with the customer, usually and respectively beginning in
the month following the shipment or upon activation of the subscription The estimated relationship penod with the customer over which
revenues are recognized currently ranges from a minimum of five months to 2 maximum of less than a year Costs of sales associated with
revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method as for
revenues

Content assets

Licensing activities and internally developed franchises are recognized as contents assets at therr acquisition cost or development cost and
are amortized over their estimated useful life on the basis of the rate at which the related economic benefits are consumed This generally
leads to an amortization pertod of 3 to 10 years for licenses, and 11 1o 12 years for franchises

Cost of software for rental, sale or commercialization

Software development costs (videc games) are capitalized when, notably, the technical feasibility of the software :s established and they are
deemed recoverable These costs are manly generated by Activision Blizzard as part of the games development process and are amortized
using the estimated revenue method {: e, based on the ratio of the current period's gross revenues 1o estimated total gross revenues) for a
given product which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum period of B months commencing on a product’s release
date Non-capitalized software development costs are immediately recorded as research and development costs

Y37 Fancial Hiabilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial habilsties include
» bonds and credit facihties, as well as various other borrowings (including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and
related accrued interest,
* obligations ansing out of comm:tments to purchase non-controlling interests,
bank overdrafts, and
the negative value of ather denvative financial instruments Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are imitally accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attnibutable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
Interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate is the intemal yreld rate
that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing [n addition, where the borrowing compnises an embedded denvative (e g, an
exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument {e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost 1s calculated for the debt component only, after
separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument {n the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g, redemption 15 earlier
than imtially expected), the amortized cost 15 adjusted against earmings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows, discounted at the
initial effective interest rate
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Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivend: has granted commvtments to purchase non-controlling interests to certain shareowners of its fully consolidated subsidianes These
purchase commitments may be optional {e g , put options) or mandatory (e g , forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted in respect of commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

= upon initizl recogn:ition, the commitment to purchase nen-controlling interests 1s recogmized as a financial liability for the present
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset through the baok value of non-
controlling nterests and the remaining balance through equity attnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners,

= subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial lrability by an adjustment to equity attnbutable to
Vivend! SA shareowners, and

*  upon maturity of the commitment, (f the nan-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed,
if the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial lizbilitres 15 reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Derivative financial instruments

Vivendi uses dervative financial instruments to manage and reduce 1ts exposure to fluctuations in nterest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on crganized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All thase derivative frnancial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses arising on these contracts are offset in earmngs against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged item When the dervative financial instrument hedges expasures to fluctuations in the fair value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment which 1s not recognized i the Statement of
Financial Position, 1t 1s a fair value hedge The instrument 1s remeasured at fair value in sarmings, with the gains or losses anising on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Eamings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to @ non-financial asset or liability, at the initial cost of the asset or hability When the dernvatwve financial instrument
hedges cash flows, tt 15 a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 1s remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gan or loss that (s
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective portion is
recognized 1n eamings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liability, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset or Lability When the hedged item s realized, accumuiated gains and losses recognized i equity are released to the Statement of
Eamings and recarded on the same line as the hedged item When the dervative financial mstrument hedges a net investment In a foreign
operation, 1t 1s recognized 1n the same way as a cash flow hedge Dervative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly in earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency nstruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and fum
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editonal content nghts (including sports, audiovisual and film nghts) are recognized
EBIT In all other cases, gains and losses ansing on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognszed in other financial charges and
Income

138 Other habilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting penod, Vivend has a legal obligation {legal, regulatery or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and 1t ts probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settie the abligation and the obligation can be reliably estmated Where the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money |f the amount of the obligation ¢annot be reliably estimated, no provision 1s recorded and a disclosure 15 made in the Notes to the
Consofidated Financial Statements

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which 1t operates, Vivend! participates in, or matntains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficianies who meet the required condettons Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contnbution plans, which are integrated with local social security and multi-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group is consistent with applicable
govemment funding requirements and regulations
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Defined contribution plans
Contnibutions to defined contribution and mutti-employer plans are expensed duning the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in various mstruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
securiiies, excluding Vivend: shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuanies using the projected unit credit method This method
1s based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivendi untl retirement, expected
changes mn future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivend maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adopted in 2013 and 2014, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented 1n Note 19 A provision is recorded in
the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuarial value of the related benefits (actuanal hability} and the fair
value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuaral gains and losses

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows

« the service cost 15 included i selling, general and administrative expenses [t compnises current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtailment, immediately recognized in profit and loss, and gains and losses on settlement,

¢ the financial component, recorded 1n other financiat charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit abligation, and

+ the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability {asset), recogmzed in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified
to profit and loss, mainly consist of actuanal gains and losses, 1 e, changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and plan assets resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments (representing the differences between
the expected effect of some actuanial assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective effect)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset 1s recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contnbutions

Same other post-employment benefits, such as life msurance and medical coverage (mainly in the United States) are subject 1o provisions
which are assessed through an actuanal catculation comparable to the method used for pension provisions

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: decided to recard unrecognized actuanal gains and losses against consolidated equity

139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabilities and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give nise to temporary differences Pursuant to the hability method, these temperary differences result in the accounting of

« deferred tax assets, when the tax base vatue I1s greater than the carrying valus (expected future tax saving), and

« deferred tax habilites, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the hability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, n line with any changes n applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for alf deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as 1t 1s
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax frability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 15
generated by initial recogrition of an asset or habiity i & transaction which 15 not a business comtination, and that, at the transaction date,
does ot iImpact eamings, nor tax income or loss

For deductible temporary differences resulting from mvestments in subsidiaries, jomnt ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temparary difference can be utilized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that rt 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to attow the deferred tax asset to be utilized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being available, account 1s taken, primanly, of prior years’ results, forecasted future results, non-recurring items unlikely to oceur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carned forward 15 to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved ta differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially matertal impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earnings
of the group
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Deferred tax habilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax lability results from goodwill or
imitial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
Impact eamings, tax Income or loss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from nvestments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
labilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, investor or venturer 1s able to
cantrol the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temparary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, if the tax relates to tems that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1310 Share-hased compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its sharehaolders’ interests by providing them with an
addiional incentive to rmprove the company’s perfarmance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivend) maintains several share-
based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans, and bonus share plans) or other equity mstruments based on the
value of the Vivend: share price {stock options}), which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board in addition, the defimtive grant of stock options and performance shares 1s
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moraover, all
granted plans are condrtional upon active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Universal Music Group mamtains Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
umts, which are settled in cash These equity units ars phantomn stock units whose value 15 intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Please refer ta Note 20 for details of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation 1s recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense 15 spread over
the vesting pened, : e, three years for stock option plans and two years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivendi, other than
In specific cases

Vivendi use a binormal model to assess the fair value of such instruments This method rehies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate carresponding to the rnisk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of their nghts

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the
expense will differ

Equity-settled instruments
+ the expected term of the option granted is deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
« the value of the instruments granted 15 esttmated and fixed at grant date, and
+ the expense 1s recognized with a corresponding increase in equity

Cash-settled instruments

« the expected term of the instruments granted 15 deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument
for vested rights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractuat term of
the instrument for unvested nghts,

s the value of mstruments granted 1s mitially estimated at grant date and is then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense 1$ adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date,

« the expense 1s recognized as a prowision, and

+ moreover, as plans settled i cash are primanly denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost s allocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivalent
instruments granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the 1ssuance of Vivends shares which are in the process
of vesting 1s reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend elected to retrospectively apply IFAS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
plans for which rights remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with [FRS 2
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14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
sharehaolders exercising joint control over group |oint ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exercise exclusive control, joint control,
or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidiaries over which the group exercises control are not included in the intersegment operations {a list of
the principal consolidated subsidiaries s presented n Note 27) Moreover, commercial refationships among subsidianies of the group,
aggregated 1n operating segments, are conducted on an arm’s length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered
by third parties The operating costs of Vivendi SA’s headquarters, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group's
businesses, are mcluded in the Corparate operating segment (Please refer to Note 2 for a detailed descnption of the transactions between the
parent company and the subsidiaries of the group, aggregated by operating segments)

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivend) and 1its subsidiaries prepare detaled reperis on all matenal contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obhgations, for which they are jointly and severally Yiable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal controf procedures are carmed out, including {but not imited to) the review of

+ minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in
respect of matters such as contracts, itgation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures,

= pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,

= pending hitigation, claims {in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
intemnal and/or external legal counsels,

« tax exammner's reports and, If applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for pnor years,

* nsurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,

e related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or receved commitments, and more generally

s major contracts and agreements

1.6  New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

The IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published by the IASB and endorsed n the European Union, which are not yet
effective but which have been applied i anucipation are detailed in Note 11

Among IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations i1ssued by the IASB/IFRS IC at the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivendi has not elected for an earlier application, the main standard which may
have an impact on Vivend: 1s IFRS 15 ~ Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 1ssued by IASB on May 28, 2014, which applies mandatorily
from January 1, 2017, and still being endorsed in the EU Vivends 1s currently assessing the potential impact en the Statement of Eamings, the
aggregate comprehensive income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financia! Statements in applying this standard
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Note 2 Segment data

21 QOperating segment data

The Vivend: group comprises several businesses that are leaders 1n content and media Each business offers different products and services
that are marketed through different channels Given the unigue customer basg, technology, marketing and distnbution requirements of each of
these businesses, each business 1s managed separately and represents the base of the internal reporting of the group The Vivend) group has
the following main businesses

*  Canal+ Group publishing and dsstribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-air channels in France,
Poland, Africa and Vietnam as well as production and distnbution of cinema film and TV series in Europe In 2014 and 2013, Canal+
Group notably acguired Red Production Company (November 22, 2013), Mediaserv {February 13, 2014} and Thema {October 28,
2014), and

o  Umiversal Mustc Group sale of recorded music {physical and digital media), exploitation of music publishing nghts as well as
arnst services and merchandising tn 2014, UMG notably acquired Eagle Rock Entertainment Limited (April 8, 2014)

Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and altocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating Indicators (segrment earmings and cash flow from operations) Segment earmings relate to the EBITA of each business segment

Additionally, segment data 15 prepared in accordance with the following principles

» the operating segment "Vivendi Village” includes other operations, notably Vivend: Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick),
Wengo (expert advisary services), and Watchever (platform in broadcasting of audiovisual works),

o the operating segment “Corparate” includes the headquarter’s costs, net of the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the
businesses,

+ intersegment commereial relattons are conducted on an am's length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties, and

« the operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the information given to Vivend's Management Board

In addition, Vivend's interests in SFR and GVT, discontinued businesses as of December 31, 2014 {please refer to Note 3), are no longer
reported in segment data as a result of the apphcation of IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
- the 2013 Consolidated Statement of £arnings and 2013 Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows were adjusted 1o ensure consistency
of information, and
- GVT's assets and hiabilities were reclassified as unallocated assets as of December 31, 2014

For a detailed description of the adjustments made to the previously published Financial Statements, please refer to Note 21

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: also presented data categorized according to four geographic regions, inciuding France and the United
States
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Consohidated Statements of Earnings
Year ended December 31, 2014

{in milkons of euros)

External revanues
Intersegment revenues
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding amortization and deprectation
EBITDA
Restructunng charges
Gans/(losses) on sales of tangible and intangible assets
Other non recurnng tems
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangibla assets extleding those acquired through business
combinations
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA)
Amortization of intangible assets acgurred through business combinations
Impament losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Other income
{ther charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (ERIT)
Income from equity affiliates
Interest
Ingome from investments
Other financial income
Gther financial charges
Provision for income taxes
Earnings from discontinued operations
Earnings
Of wihich
Earnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners
earmngs from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivand: SA
shareowners
eamings from discontinued oparations attnhutable to Vivends SA sharsowners

Non controling interests

Year ended December 31, 2013

{in millions of euros)

External revenues
Intersegrment revenuss
Revenuss
Operating expenses excluding amortization and depreciation
EBITDA
Restructuning charges
Gains/(losses) on sales of tangible ang intangible assets
QOther nan recurring items
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangbie assets excluding those acquired through business
combinations
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA}
Amertization of evtangible assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment iosses on intangibla essets acquired through business cembinations
Other income
Other charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Income from equsty affiliates
interest
Ircome from investments
Other financig! income
Other financial charges
Provision for incoma taxes
Earnings from discontinued operations
Eamings
Of which
Earnings stiributable to Vivend: SA shereowners
earnings from continuing operations annbutable to Vivend: SA
shareowners
earnngs from discontinued operations attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners

Non-tontrolling interests
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
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Universal

Canal+ Group Vivendi Village Corparate GVT SFR Total Vivends
{in millions of euros) Music Group » P
December 31, 2013
Segment assets (a) 1829 8677 154 5,696 22 556
Unallocated assets {b) 13,182
Total Assets 35,738
Segment liabiliues (c} 2509 3,463 129 2404 - 8605
Unattocated habilities {d) 4145
Total Liabilities 12,750
Increase in tangible and intangihle assets 205 47 7 - - 259
Capial expenditures, net {capex, net){e) 190 45 7 - 243
December 31, 2013
Segment assets (a) 7500 8256 25 154 4674 18304 39,139
Unallocatad assets (b 10,041
Total Assets 49,180
Segment liabe/tres (c} 2542 3402 78 2213 548 5913 14,696
Unallocated liabilites {d) 15,454
Total Liabilities 30,150
Increase in tangible and intangible assets FAK] 54 8 1 776 1 665 2717
Capital expenditures, net {capex, net) {e) m 25 8 - 769 1810 2624

Additional operating segment data 1s presented in Note 3 "Goodwill”, and Nota 10 "Content assets and commitments”

a  Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, other intangble assets, property, plant and sguipment, (nvestments In equity
affiliates, financial assets, inventories and trade accounts recevable, and ather

b Unallocated assets include deferred tax assets, current tax recevables and cash and cash equivalents As of December 31, 2014, they
also included GVT's assets of discontinued businesses for €5,393 million As of December 31, 2013, they also included Maroc Telecom
group’s assets of discontinued businesses for €6,562 million and the remaining 83 million Activision Blizzard shares held by Vivend,,
valued at €1,078 million (please refer to Note 3}

¢ Segment liabihties include provisions, other non-current liabilities, and trade accounts payable

d  Unallocated habilities include borrowings and other financial lhabilites, deferred tax habilities and current tax payables As of
December 31, 2014, they also inciuded GVT's liabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses for £1,094 mithon (excluding
financial liabihties to Vivendi SA} As of December 31, 2013, they also included Maroc Telecom group’s habilsties associated with
assets of discontinued businesses for £2,429 million (please refer to Note 3)

e Helates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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22 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by customer location

Year ended December 31,

{in mallions of euros) 2014 2013
Revenues
France 4,482 4% 4491 4%
Rest of Europe 2,505 25% 2,462 24%
United States 1,748 17% 1,883 18%
Rest of the World 1,354 14% 1416 14%
10089 0% 10252 160%
{in milfions of euros) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Segment assets
France 11,774 2% 24,950 4%
Rest of Europe 2,519 1% 2,483 6%
United States 7.660 3% B,549 17%
Braail 3i 0% 4,725 12%
fest of the World 572 3% 432 1%

22,556 100% 39,139 100%

In 2014 and 2013, acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets were mainly realized in France by Canal+ Group

Note 3 Discontinued operations

in compliance with (FRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reposted in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations m accordance with the following
terms

+ Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of
GVT As a resuit, GVT has been reported in the Consohidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
operation as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contribution to each line of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the lines "Assets of discantinued businesses” and “Liabtlities associated with assets of
discontinued businesses”’

+ Completed sales as of December 31, 201§ Vivend: deconschdated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

The adjustments to previously published data are presented in Note 31
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31 Sale oi SFR
On November 27, 2014, pursuant to an agresment entered into on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the french Competition Authority

on October 27, 2014 subject to conditions {see befow), Vivend! announced the closing of the combination betwean SFR and Numencable
The marn terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash praceeds €13 5 billion, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivend: receved
€13366 bithon in cash and, on December 3, 2014, Vivendt made a contnbution of
€200 million to the financing of the acquisition of Virgm Motile by Numencable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated 1s based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes in the net working capital, SFR's net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and 15 subject to a
contradictory accounting analysis in accordance with the contract

Vivend!'s Interest in the combined entity | 20% of Numencable - SFR (publicly-listed)

Altice’s interest in the combined entity Approximately 60% of Numericable - SFR (approximately 20% free float)

Eam-out Earn-out of €750 mithon 1f the EBITDA-Capex aggregate of the combined entity 1s equal to
or higher than €2 billion during any fiscal year, ending not later than December 31, 2024

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Governance - Minonty representation for Vivend on the Board of Directors, or 2 out of 10 directors,

subject to Vivendi retaining a 20% interest m Numericable - SFR {1 director ff Vivend:
holds an terest between 10% and 20%)

Veto nights on certain sxceptional matters subject to Vivend retaining a 20% interest n
Numericable - SFR

Numericable - SFR has notably given the French Competttion Authority an undertaking
not to disclose any strategic information on the pay-TV market, the distribution of pay-TV
services, or ultramarine telecommunications markets to Vivend:

Standard 180-day lock-up period, inctuding restrictions an any disposal or transfer of
shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of settlement-delivery of the nights
issue of Numencable Group {on November 20, 2014}, at the request of the underwniting
banks

Lock-up period untd the end of November 2015, after which Vivendi may sell or distribute
its Numenicable - SFR shares, without restrictions, with a nght of prionty granted 1o
Altice {pre-emption right or right of first offer)

Vivend has agreed not to acquire any Numencable - SFR shares, directly or indirectly,
until June 30, 2018

Subject to Vivend: retaining its shares, Altice will have a call option at market value
{subject to a floor'} on Vivend:'s interest, exercisable in three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%} over
one-month window penods starting on June 1, 2016, June 1, 2017 and June 1, 2018

- Tag-along rights for Vivend: If Altice sells its shares

As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented tn the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in the
Statement of Financial Pos:tion of Vivendi as a discontinued operation The data presented below relates to the contribution of the operating
segment “SFR” until the effective divestiture date, which includes SFR S A and its subsidianes, as well as the interest held by Vivendi,
through 1ts subsiciary, SiG 50, in the telecommunication products and services distribution operations

Liquidity - Lock-up perod

Recognition of 20% interest in Numericahble - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivendi sold 100% of its interest in SFR to Numericable and received €13 166 billion in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represemts a 20% mterest and voting nights Simnce that date,
Vivend! deconsohdated SFR Gwven the significant restrictive nature of the commitments given by Vivendi and Numencable - SFR to the
French Competition Authonty with respect to all Numericable - SFR's operations, Vivendi's minonity representation on Numericable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nghts granted to Vivendi by Numericable - SFR's governance (see above) helps Vivend
adequately protect its proprietary interests as & minonty shareholder Vivendi considers that it does not have the nght to participate in
Numericable - SFR's financial and operational pohicy-making processes, according to IAS 28 Without having a significant influence, the 20%
interest in Numernicable - SFR was recognized as an “available-for-sale secunties” in Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
and, in accordance with |AS 33, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (€3,987 millien as of December 31, 2014) as
the unrealized gains or losses were directly recognized in equity From November 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vivendi's interest in Numericable - SFR resulted 1n an unrealized gain of €743 mullion {before taxes)

" Volume Weighted Average Price {VWAF) of Numericable Group’s share price over the 20 busiess days before the closing date fwhich occurred on November 27 2014)
€23 45 grossedup at an annual rate of 5% during the period ranging from the closing date until the date of exercise of the call option
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Capital gain on the sale of SFR

In accordance with IFRS, the capital gain on the sale of SFR was calculated as the difference between the sale price of 100% of SFR and the
value of SFR’s net assets, as recorded in Vivendi’s Consolidated Financiat Statements on the date of the sale The compenents of the sale
price are 1} the €13 166 bilhon cash proceeds, and (i1} the value of a 20% interest i the new combined eniity Numericable-SFR, valued at
the stock market’s price on November 27, 2014 (€33 315 per share), or €3 244 billion The eam-out (€750 million} was excluded from the
calculation at this stage, due to its contingent nature On this basts, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €2,378 million (after
taxes), recognized In the Consolidated Statement of Eamings under the line “Earnings from discontinued operations” Excluding the
discontinuation’ of amartization since Apnil 1, 2014, in accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €3,459
million

Guarantees related to the sale of Maroc Telecom group

Vivend: has agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that may be clatmed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in relation
with the sale of ts interest in Maroc Telecom
« with respect 1o the sale agreement entered into with Eusalat, this commitment will expire at the expiry of Etisalat’s night to make
a claim against Vivench and SFR, 1 e , on May 14, 2018, and
s this commitment, which will also cover any amount that SFR may be required to pay to any third-party other than Etisalat, will
expire in the absence of any request from Numer:cable Group within the applicable statutes of limitations

3.2 Plan to sefll GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivend's Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Telefonica to sell GVT After receiving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, on September 18, 2014 1t authorized the execution of an agreement with Telefonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are described below, represents a total enterprise value of €7 45 bilkion (based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiations were entered nto with Telefonica), corresponding to a
2014 estimated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction is subject to certain conditions, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory authonities, and 1s expected to occur during the second quarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completion date €4 66 bithon subject to the sale prnice adjustment, based, amang other things, on exceptional
changes n net working capital, GVT's bank debt {approximately €480 million), as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actual numbers as of the completion date, the
amount of cash consideration paid, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 million The net sale price is estimated at
approximately €3 75 hillion

Consideration shares 7 4% interest in Telefonica Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and 57% interest (8 3% voting nights) n
Telecom ltalia

Financing Capital increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Telefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction is subject to obtaining approvals from ANATEL (Agéncia

Nacional de Telecomunicagfes} and CADE {Conselho Administrativo de Defesa Econdmica) in
Brazil, and other conditions customary In this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Liquidity With respect to Vivendr's interest in the combined VIVO/GVT entity

maximum 180 day lock-up periog starung as from the completion date of the
transaction, and

tag-along nghts

Govemnance No specific governance nights in VIVQ/GVT and Telecom italia

As from the third quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of this transaction, GVT was presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Earmings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in Statement of Financial Positwon of Vivend: as a discontinued operation

2 When an achwty 15 discontinued IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation's tangible and intangible assets Therefore for SFR reported as a
discontinued operation since March 31 2014, Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resufting in a posttive
impact attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareholders of €1 081 rmilan on eamings from discontinved operations from Aprif 1 to November 27 2014
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33 Sale of Maroc Tefecom group

On May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered into on November 4, 2013, Vivends sold its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom to Etisalat
and receved £4,138 million in total cash proceeds from sale, after a contractual price ad;ustment {-€49 mullion) On the same date, Vivendi
deconsolidated Maroc Telecom and recorded a capstal gain of €786 million {before taxes and net of costs related to the sale), which 1s
presented under “Eamings fram discontinued operations™ in 2014 The agreements contained representations and warranties customary to
this type of transaction The main terms of the sale were the fallowing

¢ Vivend: provided certain customary representations and warranties to Etisalat relating to SPT {the holding company of Maroc
Telecom group), Maroc Telecom and (ts subsidianes Vivend also granted a number of specific guarantees,

s the amount of compensation to be paid by Vivendi in respect of indemnifiable losses incurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its
subsidiaries was determined in proportion to the percentage of ownership held \ndirectly by Vivendi in the relevant company on
the closing date {1 e , 53% for Maroc Tetecom),

« Vivendi's overall obligation to indemnify was capped at 50% of the snitial sale price, and this threshold was icreased to 100% in
respect of claims related to SPT,

s the commitments to indemnify provided by Yivends, other than those in respect of taxes and SPT, will remain in effect for a
24 month penod following completion of the transaction (May 2016} Claims for tax-related \ndemnitres must be made by January
15, 2018 The indemnity refated to SPT remams in effect until the end of a four-year perod following the closing (May 14, 2018),
and

« to guarantee the payment of any specific ndemnity amounts referenced above, Vivendi delivered a bank guarantee to Etisalat in
the amount of €247 million, expiring on February 15, 2018 On July 8, 2014, Vivendi received a discharge of this guarantee for the
amount of €229 miltion

3.4 Sale of Activision Bhzzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered nto on October 11, 2013, the 83 mullion Activision Blizzard shares retained by Vivendi were
subject to a two-tiered lock-up provision

»  from October 11, 2013 untl Apnl 9, 2014, Vivend: cannot selt, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Activision Blizzard
shares directly or indirectly, from Apnil 10, until July 9, 2014, Vivend can sell Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the lesser of {i) 50% of Vwendi’s 83 million remaining shares and {n) 9% of the outstanding shares of Activisien
Blizzard, and

«  from July 10, 2014 until January 7, 2015, Vivendi was subject to another lock-up provision, as from January 7, 2015, Vivend) may
self its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Considening the mitial intention of Vivendi Management to se!l these shares at the end of the lock-up periods if market conditions were
favorable, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vivend sold a first tranche of 41 5 millton Actvision Blizzard shares for $852 million (€623 million} The €84 million capital
gain 1s presented 1n “Earmings from discontinued operations” Taking tnto account the capstal gain of €123 mithon recorded in 2013, the
capital gain realized by Vivend: with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 million

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining nterest of 415 million Actvision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 milhon (€689 million} was
reclassified in “avalable-for-sale securities” as Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this intergst in the immediate future As of
December 31, 2014, the unrealized capitat gain with respect to this interest amounted to €273 million {before taxes), directly recognized in

equity
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35 Earnings from discontinued operations

In compliance with IFRS 5, the line "Earmings from discontinued aperations” presented i Vivendi's Consclidated Statement of Eamings
includes the operations of GVT {for the years 2014 and 2013}, SFR {for the year 2013 and until the date of the sale on November 27, 2014),
Maroc Telecom group (for the year 2013 and untl the date of the sale on May 14, 2014), and Activision Blizzard {until the date of the sale on
October 11, 2013) as well as the capital gain on completed divestiture with respect to discontinued operations

2014 contributions
GVT SFR Mams Telecom Other Total
{in milion of euros} roup
Revenues 1765 8981 969 - 1715
EBITDA 702 2129 530 - 3,361
Adjusted earmings befare interest and income taxes (EBITA) 367 689 360 - 1416
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization {a) 478 1732 531 2
Earmings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 457 1,676 531 - 2,664
Earnings before provision for income taxes 393 1487 527 2407
Provision for income taxes (89) {188} {120} {397}
Earnings 304 1,299 407 - 2010
Capital gam on completed divestiture na 2,378 786 84 (b} 3,248
Other (2) 6 4
Earnings from discontinued operations 302 3,677 1,193 0 5,262
0f which attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 302 3663 979 90 5034
non-controlling interests - 14 214 228
2013 contributions
VT SFR Maroc Telecom Activision Total
Group Blizzard
{in mili:ons of euros)
Revenues 1708 10,199 2,559 2,328 16795
EBITDA 707 2766 1453 989 5015
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 405 1,073 984 871 3333
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization {a) 405 1,073 1.215 895 3588
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 359 (1.427) {c) 1,202 891 1021
Easnings before provision for income taxes [ {1689) {c) 1,168 846 447
Prowision for income taxes (32} {315) (473) {154} {974)
Earnings B9 {2.004) {c) 696 692 {521
Capital gamn on completed divestiure na na na 2,915 2915
Gain in value of the remaiming nterest na na na 245 245
Earnings from discontinued operations 7 (2,004} (c) 696 3,852 2,633
==
Of which attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 89 {2,030} {c} 261 3584 1924
non-controlling interests - 6 435 268 709
na not applicable
a In compliance with IFRS 5, Vivend discontinued the amartization of tangible and intangible assets of
- GVT as from September 1, 2014,
- SFR as from April 1, 2014,
- Maroc Telecom group as from July 1, 2013, and
- Activision Blizzard as from July 1, 2013
b Includes the capital gain on the divestriture of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares, completed on May 22, 2014
¢ Includes the impairment of SFR's goodwil for £2,431 million
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3.6 Assets and liabilities of discontinued businesses
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In comphiance with IFRS 5, the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabilities assocrated with assets of discantinued businesses”
presented 1n Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position report the contribution of discontinued operations at the closing date

GVT as of December 31, 2014, and
Maroc Telecom group as of December 31, 2013

{in millions of euros)

Goodwall

Intangible assets

Property plant and equipment

Trade accounts receivable and other
Cash and cash equivalents

Other

Assets of discontinued businesses

Provisions
Borrowings and other financial habitities
of which Borrowings from Vivend: (a}
Trade accounts payable and other
Other
Liabilitres
Borrowings fram Vivend (a)
Liabihties associated with assets of discontinued businesses

December 31 2014

GVl

1,676
m
2,694
657
179
16
5393

67
1506
1110

510

121
2204
{1110}
1,094

4,299

a  This borrowing from Vivend: wrll be redeemed on the date of GVT's sale completion

{in mitlions of euros)

Goodwall

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Trade accounts receivable and other
Cash and cash equivalents

Other

Assets of discontinued businesses

Prowisians

Borrowings and other financial lrabtlities

Trade accounts payable and ather

Other

Liabilitres associated with assets of discontinued businesses

December 31 2013
Maroc Telecom
Group

2,392

386
2,468
845
396
77
6.962

78
EAlY
1.541
100
2429

4,133
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3.7 Statement of Cash Flows of discontinued operations
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In accordance with IFRS 5, the line “Cash Flows of discontinued operations” of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows takes into
account GVT (for the years 2014 and 2013), SFR (for the year 2013 and until #ts effective sale in 2014), Maroc Telecom group (for the year
2013 and until 1its effective sale in 2014), and Activision Bhizzard {untit its effective sale in 20113}

2014 contributions
T SER Marog Telecom Total
{in millions of euras) roup
Operating activities
Gross cash prowided by operating actwities before mcome tax paud 710 1846 345 2901
Other changes in net working caprtal (40) 1320} 27 {333)
Net cash provided by operating activities 51 1339 302 2.2
Investing activities
Capital expenditures net 817} {1238} {146) (2,001}
Change n financial assets net 2 (35) - (33)
Net cash provided byf{used for) investing activities (615) {1273} (146} (2,034)
Financing activiies
Dwidends pad to non controlling ntarests - 0] (200 {27
QOther transactions with non controlling interasts - - 1Al mj
Intgrest pard net on financings (z2) {6) - {z8)
Interest patd on borrowings from Vivend: 13 [141) - {154)
Qther transactions on borrowings and other financial kabilities {25) {410) (101) {336}
Net cash provided byf{used for) financing activities excluding intersegment transactions (60} {564) (132} {756)
Transactions with Vivend: on borrowings and other financial liabilsties 110 237 - 347
Net cash provided byf{used for) financing activitres 50 {327} (132} {40%)
Foreign currenty transiation adjustments (2) (2) 4
Change 1n cash and cash equivatents 26 {261) 22 {213}
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the penod 154 KEZ 395 944
Atend of the pened 180 1313 48 731
2013 contributions
o SF Mamé Telecom A;:ltmssrgn Total
{in millions of auros) roup \zza
Operating activities
Gross cash provided by operating actwities before sncome tax paid nz 2565 1448 9a? 5637
Qther changes In net working capital 39 (305) 29 (624 {839)
Net cash provided by operating activities 575 1961 1,110 307 34953
investing activitios
Capial expenditures net {769) (1610 (434} {44} {2.857)
Change in financial assets net (4 (28) 5 11 479) {1 506)
Net cash provided by/{used for) investing actvitios {13) (1,638} {429} {1,523} (4,363}
Finoncing activities
Thvidends paid 10 non controlling interests []] (328} {66 1397)
Interest paid net on financings 123) (16} {29} 1 167)
Interest paid on borrowings from Vivend 0 2 1222
Qther transactions on borrowings and other financial lapiities 43 (46} {13} 1719 1703
Not cash proveded hy/{used for) financing actraties excluding intersegmant transactions 10 @2m {370} 1.654 1017
Diadends pard to Vivend: (982) (98} 11,080
Transactions wath Vivend: on borrawangs and other financial liabilities 184 1063 1247
Not cash provided by/{usad for) financing actreitres 194 {196} {370) 1.556 1184
Foreign curmency translation adjustmants (28} iH [43) {72)
Change m cash and cash gquivalents {32 127 30 7 02
Cash end cash equivalents
At beginning of the penod 186 267 B 2589 354
At end of the penod 154 354 3% 3206 4230
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Note 4 EBIT

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31,
{m mullions of suros) 2014 2013
Product sales net 4,701 5,028
Services revenues 5322 5,196
Other 66 28
Revenues 10,089 10252
Cost of products sold, net {2.365) {2,514}
Cost of service revenues (3.748) (3 576}
Other {B) {7
Cost of revenues {6.121) {6,097}

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros except number of employees) Note 2014 2013
Annual average number of full-time equivalent employees {in thousands) 15.0 146
Selanes 1,015 1043
Socsal secunty and other employment charges 251 241
Capttatized personnel costs (3] (3)
Wages and expenses 1,263 1281
Share hased compensation ptans 201 {8) 29
Employee benefit plans 191 10 17
Gther 4z 34
Personnel costs 1,307 1,361

Addrtional information on operating expenses
Advertising costs amounted to €407 mulhion in 2014 {compared to €442 million in 2013}

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to senvice contracts related to sateliite transponders amounted to €115 mullion
in 2014 {compared to €108 million in 2013)

Net expense recorded :n the Statement of Eamings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €104 mullion in 2014 {compared to
€97 million 1n 2013}

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Amortization {exciuding intangibie assets acquired through busmess combinations) 307 310
of which property plant and equipment 12 232 228
content assets 10 14 22
other intangible assets ) 61 50
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinauons 344 350
of which content assels 10 334 339
other iniangible assets 2 10 17
Impairment Josses on intangible assets acquired through business combmnations 1noh g2 (al 6
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 743 666

a  Primarily relates to full impairment losses of goodwilt related to Digitick for €43 millon and Wenga for €48 million {please refer to
Note 9)
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Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31,

{in mifltons of euras) 2014 2013
Capitat gain on financial (nvestments 194 f{a) 37
Capital gawn on the divestiture of businesses - 3
Other 9 48

Other income 203 BE
Downstde adjustment on financial investments (17 {28}
Other (13) {22)

Other charges {30) {50)

Net total 173 k]

a Includes the capital gain of the sale of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 milion)

Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest

Year ended December 31
{in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
(Charge)/Income
Interest expense on borrowmngs A fz83) {494)
Interest ncome on SFR's loans 159 212
Interest income on GVT s loans 13 0

tnterest expense net of borrowings f11) 1272)

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 15 §

Interest from continuing operations (96) (266)

Prermum paid and other costs relatad to the early redemptions of bonds (a) {698} (202)

(794} {468)
Other financtal income and charges
Year ended December 31,

(in millions of ewros) Note 014 2013
Expected retum on plan assets fefated to employee benefit plans 192 12 13
Foreign exchange gain 7 -

Other financial income 19 13
Premium paid and other costs retated to the early redemptions of bonds (a) {698) {202)
Effect of undiscounting fiabiines (b} {8l (12)
Interest cost related to employee benefi plans 192 31 (31

Foreign exchange foss {8 (45)

Change i value of derivative instruments - {1)

Other (6] {9

Other ftnancial charges {751) {300}

Net total (732) (287)

a  Includes net premium paid related to the early redemption of bonds
a net amount of €642 million 1n 2014, following the completion of the sale of SFR, and
a net amount of €182 million 1n 2013, following the sale of 88% of Vivend:'s interest in Activision Blizzard

b Inaccordance with applicable accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 1s matenial, assets and liabilities are
inttially recerded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent penod, the present value of such assets and habilities 1s adjusted to account for the passage

of time As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, these adjustments only applied to habilties {manly trade accounts payable and
provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, until December 31, 2011 inclusive, from the
Consolidated Giobal Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 quinguies of the French Tax Code Since January 1, 2012, Vivend:
only benefits from the French Tax Group System

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivend (s entitled to consolidate 1ts own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned directly or tndirectly by it, and that are lacated in France for 2014, this mainly applied
to Universal Music in France and Canal+ Group In 2014, SFR 1s no lenger part of Vivendi's tax group foliowing its sale to
Numericable Group at the end of November 2014

Until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System entitled Vivend to consolidate its own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owned directly or indirectly by it, and located in France or
abroad, 1 e, other than the French companies that were at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivendi Actwision Blizzard,
Uriversal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and 1ts subsidianies, as well as Société d'Editien de Canal Plus
(SECP} As a reminder, on May 19, 2008, Vivend: lodged an appeal with the French Mimistry of Finance in relation to the renewal of
ts authonzation to use the Consoldated Global Profit Tax System and an authorization was granted by an order dated
March 13, 2009, for a three-year period beginning with the taxable year 2008 and ending with the taxable year 2011

In addition, as a reminder, on July 6, 2011, Vivend: lodged an appeal with the French Ministry of Finance in relation to the renewal
of 1ts autharization to use the Consol:dated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year period, from January 1, 2012 to December 31,
2014

The changes in French Tax Law in 2017 terminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September B, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carried forward at 80% of taxable income Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses camed forward 15
capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest is imited to 85% of financial charges, net (75% as from January
1,2014)

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consol:dated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivendi's tax attributes (tax losses and
tax credits carned forward) are as follows

as Vivendi considers that its entittement to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authonzation granted by the French Ministry of Finance, including fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivendi filed for a refund of €366 million with respect to the tax saving for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 As this
request was denied by the tax authonties, in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivend: accrued a
€366 million provision for the associated nsk, unchanged as of December 31, 2013 On October 6, 2014, the Administrative Court
of Montreull ruled in favor of Vivendi Pursuant to this ruling, on December 23, 2014, Vivend receved a €366 million refund and
maratorium (nterests of €43 million which were received on January 16, 2015 On December 2, 2014, the tax authonties appealed
this ruling As a result, in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivend maintained the provision related
to the €366 miilion principal refund increased by €43 miliion with respect to moratorium interests (please refer to Note 6 6),
moreover, cansidenng that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be carmed forward upon the end of
the authonization on [ecember 31, 2011, Vivendi requested a refund of taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the year
ended December 31, 2012, or €208 mulion, brought to €220 million, in 2013 when filing the tax return with respect to fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012 This position was challenged by the tax authonties as part of an in-process control procedure and
Vivendi accrued the associated nsk for a principal amount of €208 nullion in pravision in its Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012, brought to €220 mullion as of December 31, 2013 In 1ts Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014, Vivend: mantained the €220 million pnincipal refund, increased by an additional default interest of €11 million
{please refer to Note 6 B},

in the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, the 2014 tax results of the subsidiaries within the scope of
Vivendi SA’s French Tax Group System were estimated, and as a result, the amount of tax attributes as of December 31, 2014
could not be reliably determined Taking into account the impact of the estimated 2014 tax results and before the effects of the
engoing tax audits [please refer to Note 6 6) on the amount of tax attributes, Vivend: SA may achieve €1,400 million in tax savings
from tax attnbutes (undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%), and

as of December 31, 2014, Vivendi SA valued its tax attributes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of one year's
forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivend: would achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System in an amount of €126 miflion {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%)
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6.2 Provision for income taxes

{wrr millhons of euros)
(Charge}/income

Current

Use of tax losses and tax credits
Related to Vivend: SA's French Tax Group System and to the Consolidated

Global Profit Tax System
Related to the US tax group

Adjustments to prior year's tax expense
Consideration of nisks related to previous years' Income taxes

Other income taxes items

Deferred

Impact of Vivendi SA’s French Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Global

Profit Tax System
Impact of the US tax group

Other changes in deferred tax assets
Impact of the change(s) in tax rates

Reversal of tax abdities

Qther deferrad tax income/(expenses)

Prowision for mcome taxes

Frday, february 27, 2015

Year ended December 31,

6.3 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area

{in millions of eurcs)
(Charge)/income
Current
France
United States
Othes countries

Deferred
France
Uruted States
Other countries

Prowvision for income taxes

Income tax (paid)/cotlected
France
United States
Other countries

Income tax (paid)/collected

Note 2014 2013
61 147 415
66 25
(21} {22)
{3 133
{283) {375)
(94) 176
61 (37 (161}
21 i
- 34
- 12
{20) {46}
(36) {159)
{130) 17
Year ended December 31,
2014 03
(44 159
5 8
{59) {31
(84) 1716
{61) {163}
{58) {4B)
83 50
(36} (159)
{130 17
320 217
{5) (8)
(35) {64)
280 205
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6.4 FEffective tax rate
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Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros except %) 2014 2013
Earmings (before non-controfling interests} 5,025 219
Elrmination

Income from equity affiates 18 2

Eamings from discontinued operations (5 262 (2,633)
Prowision for income taxes 130 17
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes (89) 150
French statutery tax rate 3800% 3800%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate M {57}
Recenciliation of the theoretical and efiective provisien for income taxes

Permanent differences bl (28)

of which other differences from tax rates on eammgs 12 4
mmpaets of the changes in tax rates - 34

Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivend: SA's French Tax Group System

and to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System {37} {161)

Other tax losses and tax credits (175} {205}

of which  use of unrecognized losses and tax credits 46 -
unrecogmized losses 221) {205)
Other temparary differences 42 317
of which  reserva accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation Jitigation i the United States 341
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense {33) 130
of wiich consideration of nsks related to previous years' income taxes {3 145
Caprtal gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial
investments or businesses {35) 2)
of which impairment of Digitick goodwilf {17) -
impanment of Wengo goodwiil {18}

Other - B
Provision for income taxes (130} 17
Effective tax rate -146 1% -113%

6.5 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Changes in deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net
Year ended December 31,
(in millions of euros}) 204 2013
Opening balance of deferred tax assets/{habilies) 53 454

Provision for income taxes (a) {53} {437}

Charges and income directly recorded in equity 54 - {h}

Business combinations 9 183

Divestitures in progress or completed (20} {206)

Changes in fareign currency translation adjustments and other 10 79
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 53 53

E] Includes mncome/{charges) related to taxes from discontinued operations 1n accordance with IFRS 5, these amounts were reclassified
to the ling “"Eamings from discontinued operations” in the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Earmings

b Includes -€43 million recognized m other iterms of charges and income directly recognrzed in equity for the year ended

December 31, 2013 (please refer to Note 8)

Financiat Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Vivend /82



Components of deferred tax assets and hahhties

{in millions of euros)

Deferred tax assets
Recognizable deferred taxes

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Tax attributes {a) 2,437 2,591
of which Vivend: SA (b} 1,400 1,527
US tax group (¢} 419 354
Temporary differences (d) 704 1,105
Netting {124) {501)
Recogmzable deferred taxes 3,017 3,195
Deferred taxes, unrecognized
Tax atinibutes {a) (2,155} (2,262)
of winch Vivend: SA {h) {1274) {1,364}
US tax group (c) (419 (364}
Temporary differences {d} {152} (200
Deferred taxes, unrecognized {2.307) {2.462)
Recorded deferred tax assets no 7133
Deferred tax habihties
Asset revaluations (e} 484 591
Other 297 590
Netting (124) {501)
Recorded deferred tax habilities 657 630
Deferred tax assets/(liabilitres}, net 5 53

Friday, February 27, 2015

The amounts of tax attnbutes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junsdictions which
are significant for Vivend:, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1% and September 15" of the following
year at the latest, respectively The amounts of tax attributes reported i this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities
may therefore differ, and if necessary, may need to be adjusted at the end of the following year in the above table

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivend: SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€1,400 mill:on as of December 31, 2014 (please refer to Note 6 1), of which €1,115 mullion related to tax losses and €285 million
related to tax credits, taking into account the estimated impact (-€110 mullion} of 2014 transactions [taxable income and use or
expiration of tax credits) but before taking into account the effects of ongoing tax auds (please refer to Note 6 6)

In France, tax fosses can be carried forward indefinitely and Vivend: considers that tax credits can be carried forward for a minimum
period of five years upon exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System In 2014, €265 million tax credits matured as of

Refates to deferred tax assets recognizable n respect of tax attributes by Universal Music Group, Inc in the United States as head of
the US tax group, representing $509 million as of December 31, 2014, taking into account the estimated impact {-$68 million} of the
2014 transactions (taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, but before

As a reminder, with respect to the divestiture of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard and in accordance with US tax rules,
Vivend: allocated to Activision Blizzard the acquirer of the majonty of the Activision Blizzard shares transferred in the transaction, a
fraction of 1Its tax losses estimated at more than $700 million In addition, Universal Music Group Inc replaced Vivendi Holding | LLC

In the United States, tax losses can be carried forward for a period of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carned forward for a period
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2021 and no tax credit had matured in 2014

Manly relates to the deferred tax assets associated with non-dedueted provisions upon recognition, including provisions relating to

a
b
December 31, 2014
c
taking into account the final outcome of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6}
{formerly, Vivendh Holding 1 Corp ) as head of the Tax Group System in the United States
d
employee benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans
e
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6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended on December 31, 2014 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authonties in the junsdictions in
which Vivend: has or had operations Various tax authonities have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior years It 1s
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of these
audits Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits should nct have a matenal unfavorable impact on the financial position or
hiquidity of the group

Regarding Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the consolidated income reported for fiscal years 2006, 2007,
and 2008 1s under audit by the French tax authorities This tax audit began in January 2010 In addition, in January 2011, the French tax
authorities began a tax audit on the consolidated income reported for fiscal year 2008 and in February 2013, the French tax authorities
expanded the audit to include the consohdated ncome reported for fiscal year 2010 Finally, the audit of Yivend SAs tax group System for
the years 2011 and 2012 began in July 2013 As of December 31, 2014 all of these audits were ongoing Vivend: Management believes that
it has sold legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable mcome for the fiscal years under audit In any event, a pravision
for the tmpact of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 has been accrued (€409 million}), notwithstanding the decision of the
Administrative Court of Montreuil on October 6, 2014, subject to the appeal filed by the Tax Authorities (ptease refer to Note 6 1), as well as
a provision for the impact in relation to the use of tax credits in 2012 (€231 mullion)

In respect of the US tax group, the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were under a tax audit The fina! outcome of this
tax audit did not matenally impact the amount of tax attnbutes Vivendi’'s US tax group was also under audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 This tax audit has now been completed and its final outcome did not matenally impact the amount of
tax attnbutes In June 2014, the US tax authonties began a tax audit for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, and in December 2014, stated that they
undertook a tax audit for fiscal year 2013 As of December 31, 2014, the audit with respect to these fiscal years was ongoing Vivend:
Management believes that «t has solid !egal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under
audnt

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Earnings (in millions of euros)

Earnings from continuing operations atinbutable to Vivend SA sharegwners (290) [280) 43 43
Earnings from discontinued operations attrbutable to Vivends SA shareowners 5,034 5034 1924 i 921
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners 4744 4744 1,967 1,964
Number of shares (in millions}

Weighted average numbrer of shares outstanding {a} 1,3458 1,3458 13306 £ 3306
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation {b) - 55 - 47
Adjusted waeighted average number of shares 13458 13513 13306 13353
Earnings per share (in euros)

Earmings from cantinuing operations attnbutable to Vivendh SA shareowners per share 022) 022 003 ¢03
Earmings from discontinued operations attnibutable to Vivends SA shareowners per share 374 373 145 144
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 352 351 148 147

a  Net of treasury shares (please refer to Note 17}

bt Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, which could be potentially dilutive The balance of common
shares in connect:on with Vivends SA’s share-based compensation plans 1s presented m Note 20 2 1
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Note 8 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{in milkons of euros)

Actuanal gains/{losses) related to employee defined bengfit plans
ttems not reclassified to profit or loss

Fareign currency translation adjustments (a)

Unrealized gainsflosses)
Change i fair value (b)
Transferred to profit or loss of the period (c)
Other (d)
Assets avallable for sale

Cash flow hedge instruments

Change in fair value

Transferred to profit or loss of the pertod
Net mvestment hedge instruments

Change i fair value

Transferred to profit or loss of the pertod

Hedging (nstruments

Other impacts
ltems to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly ragogmized 1n aquity

{in miltions of euras)

Actuarsal gains/losses) related to employee defined benefit plans
Hems not reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currancy transtation adjustments (e)

Unreahzed gains/{losses)
Change in fair value
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Assets available for sale

Cash flow hedge instruments
Change in fair value
Transferrad to profit or ioss of the period
Net investment hedge instruments
Change in fair value
Transferred to profit or loss of the perod
Hedging instruments

Other impacts
ltems to be subsequently reciassified to profit or loss

Charges and ircome directly recognized in equity

Friday, February 27 2015

Year ended December 31, 2014

Note Grass Net

19 {33} 25 {68}
{93) 25 (68}

78 - kL]

907 29 936

920 {5} 915

{95) 36 {59

123 - 123

4 948 31 979
15 m 14

§ 1} 5

5 g
(56) {586}
{56} {56)
22 [41) m (42)
{94) - (94)

1,591 29 1,620

1,498 54 1,552

Year ended December 31 2013
Note Gross Net

19 {22) (1 (23)
(22) i ()

{1,429) - (1,429)

99 ) 58

120 {42} 78

i - !

14 121 {42} 79
2 1 3

16 - 16

{14} 1 {i3)

(24} - {24)

15 - 5

{39} - {39}

22 122) 1 21
16 {1) 15

1,313} (42) {1,356)
{1.336) {43) (1379}

a  Manly relates to foreign currency translation adjustments due to fluctuations in exchange rates at UMG (€730 muflion)

b Primanly includes unrealized capital gains related to 97 4 million shares in Numernicable - SFR from November 27 to December 31, 2014
for €743 million (please refer to Note 3 1) and 41 5 million shares in Activision Bhzzard 1n 2014 for €150 million {please refer to Note
34) In accordance with 1AS 39, these available-foi-sale secunties were valued on stock market price at each reporting date, relevant

unrealized gains and losses were directly recognized 1n equity and will be reclassified to profit or toss upon their sale, if any
¢ Relates to the reclassification to profit or loss of the gain reahized on the sale of the interest in Beats by UMG in August 2014

d  Relates to the unrealized gain generated from October 11 to December 31, 2013 with respect to 41 5 mdlion Activision Bhzzard shares
held by Vivendi as of December 31, 2014 following their reclassification from assets held for sale to available-for-sale securties as
Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this interest in the immediate future As of December 31, 2014, this interest amounted to
$836 million (€689 millwon) and the unrealized capital gain with respect to this interest amounted to €273 millions

e Includes the changes in foreign currency translation adjustments relating to discontinued operations for €685 million and the
reclassification in earnings for €555 million as part of the sale of 88% of the interest in Actvision Blizzard
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Note 9 Goodwill

{in milvons of euros)

Friday, February 27, 2015

December 31 2014

December 31 2013

Goodwill, grass 22,622 31539

Impairment losses {13,293) {14,392)

Goodwill 9,329 17,147
Changes in goodwill

December 31 Davestizwres in progress Crianges in forergn December N
Impairment losses Business combinations currency translatan
03 or tomgleted adwstments and oth 2014

{in milhions of euros) JUSLMBN:S B GLer

Canal+ Group 4464 110 {a} - n 4573
Universal Music Group 4100 6 - 550 (b} 4 656
Vivend Village 185 {81} {c) - - [ 100
GVT V676 - {1676) -
SFR 6722 7 6799)

Total 11947 (71} 183 {B.475) 555 9329

Dacember 31 Drvestrtures in progress Changes in foreign December 31
2012 Impaiment losses Business combinations o comples edﬂg currency translation 2013

{in millions of euros} %) s and ather

Canak+ Group 4,513 - (45) - 3 4464
Universal Music Group 4138 5 B4 (d} 5 {102} 4100
Vivend Village 184 - 2 - n 185
GVT 2006 - - (330} 1676
SFR 9153 (2 431} - B 722
Maroc Telecorn Group 2407 - (2 392) {15) -
Actwisian Blezzard 2255 - (2208) {47}

Total 24,656 {2435} 20 {4,595) (498} 1,147

a Notably includes goodwill attributable to Mediaserv and Thema acquired by Canal+ Overseas on February 13, 2014 and October 28,

2014, respectively

b Includes €549 million related to foreign currency transiation (EUR/USD)

c Relates to full impairment losses on the goodwill of Digitick and Wengo {€43 million and £48 million, respectively)

d Manly relates to a €57 million adjustment to goodwill attnbutable to EMI Recorded Music, recorded within the 12-month penod for
the purchase price allocation as required by IFRS 3 The final goodwili of EMI Recorded Music amounts to €358 million
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Goodwiil impairment test

In 2014, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to its cash-generating units (CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation metheds
consistent with previous years Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded their carrying value
{including goodwill} The recoverable amount 1s determined as the tigher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {discounted cash flow method {DCF})) and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, companson wath the value attnbuted to similar assets or companies (n recent transactions) For a
descrption of the methods used for the impaiment test, please refer to Note 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs testad
Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU}
Pay-TV in Mainland France

CGU or groups of CGU tested

Pay TV and free-to-air TV.in

Canal+ Groug

Canal+ Qverseas (a)

France, Africa and Vietnam (b}

Free-to-air TV
nc+{Poland) nge
Studhwocanal Studiocanal

Universal Music Group

Recorded music

Artist services and merchandising

Music publishing

Universal Music Group

See Tickets See Tickets
Vivend: Village Digiick Digitick
Wengo Wengo

a  Relates to pay-TV in France overseas, Africa and Vietnam

b The process of integrating free-to-air TV operations {D8/D17 channels acquired on September 27, 2012} with pay-TV operations in
mainland France, as well as the devefopment of pay-TV in Vietnam reflects the further convergence of pay-TV and free-to-a:r TV
operations in French-speaking countries in which Canal+ Group operates As a result, as of December 31, 2014, Vivend: performed a
goodwill smpairment test related to pay-TV and free-to-air TV aperations in France, Africa and Vietnam by aggregating the CGU of pay-
TV n Maland France, Canal+ Overseas and free-to-air TV, which corresponds to the level of monitonng the return on such
Investments

Buring the fourth quarter of 2014, Vivendi performed a goodw il impairment test on each cash generating un:t {CGU} or groups of CGU, on
the basis of valuations of recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of thid-party appraisers, for pay-TV and free-to-air TV in
France, Africa and Vietnam as well as Unversal Music Group and wternal valuations for nc+ in Poland, Studiocanal, See Tickets, Digitick
and Wengo As a result, Yivend Management concluded that, as of December 31, 2014, except for the cases of Digitick and Wengo {see
above), the recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded the:r carrying value

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2013, Vivend examined the value of goodwill of pay-TV i Maindand France and Canal+ Overseas
(previously Canal+ France), using the usual valuation methods and concluded that its recoverable amount, based upon the DCF method, using
the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group, exceeded its carrying value at that date Since November 5,
2013, Vivendh holds a 100% interest in pay-TV operations of Canal+ in France and Afnica pursuant to the acquisition of Lagardére Group's
20% interest tn Canal+ France for €1,020 million, in cash In accordance wrth IFRS 10, this transaction was recognized as the acquisition of a
non-controlling interest and the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying value of the acquired non-controlling interest
was recorded as a deduction from equity attributable to Vivendi SA sharepwners

As a reminder, n respect of SFR as of December 31, 2013, Vivendi examined the value of SFR's goodwiil SFR's recoverable amount was
determined upon the basis of the usual valuation methods, 1n particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash
flow forecasts, and financial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated to take into account the
strong impact on revenues of the new pricing palicies decided by SFR in a competitive environment, partially offset by cost savings which
were consistent with expectations under SFR’s transformation plan, while maintaining hugh capital expenditures, notably due to SFR's
acceleration of very-high speed mobile network investments As a result, Vivend's Management concluded that SFR's recoverable amount
was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2013 and decided to record a goodwill tmpairment toss of £2,43% millian
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Presentation of key assumptions used for the deterrmnation of racoverable amounts
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The value tn use of each CGU or groups of CGU s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2015 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment, on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate and
EBITA as defined in Note 1 2 3, capital expenditures, the competitive and regulatery environments, technological developments and level of
commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on ts value in use i accordance with
the main key assumptions set out below

Vatuation Method Dizcount Rate (a) Perpstusl Growth Rate

0 CGU or groups of CGU tested 2014 ik 2014 2013 2014 013
:a‘\; ;\.laa;:n:m o-air TV in France Afnica OF & comparables wodal bl o !d} " "
Canak: Group e o W a75% ) 300% (o
Studiocanal DOF OCF 975% 900% 100% 0 00%
Universal Music Group Unwersal Music Group DCF &c les modal | DCF & comparabies modal 890% 915% 100% 1.00%
See Tickels OCF DECF 11 50% 1150% 200% 200%
Vivend Villaga Digitick OcF DCF 1150% 1150% 200% 200%

Wango OCF OCF 13 20% 15 00% 200% {L'

GVT GVT (] DCF 0] 1178% 1] 400%
SFR SFR i} OCF & compaiables madel {1 730% in 050%

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Pay-TVinMainland France and Canal+ Overseas DCF & comparables model
Free-to-ar TV DCF

¢ Pay-TV-Mamland France 804% France overseas 904%, Africa 10 04%, Vietnam 10 88%
Free-to-ar TV 95%

d  Pay-TV - Mainland France 8 3%, France overseas 9 3%, Afnica 10 3%
Free-to-air TV 95%

e  Pay-TV-Mamland France 1 5%, France overseas 15%, Africa 3 14%, Vietnam 4 5%
Free-to-ar TV 2%

f  Pay-TV-Mainland France 1 5%, France overseas 2 2%, Afnca 3 17%
Free-to-ar TV 2%

g As of December 31, 2013, no goodwill impairment test in respect of nc+ {pay-TV in Poland} was undertaken given that the completion date of
the goodwill of “n”, acquired en November 30, 2012 was close to the closing date, and considering that no tnggenng event had occurred
between those dates

h  Asof December 31, 2013, the tenminal value was determined by using an EBITDA multiple

I Considenng the current plan to sell GVT, and n accardance with [FRS 5, GVT has been classified as a discontinued operation since the third
quarter of 2014

| SFR was sold on November 27, 2014 {please refer to Note 3 1)
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Sensitivity of recoverable amounts
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December 31 2014

Biscount rate

Ferpetuat growth eate

Oiscounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate

Decrease in the perpetual growth rate

Decrease n the distounted cash flows

Apphed n order for tha recovesable amount Applied 0 order for the recoverable amount n ordes for the recoverable amount
fate to be equal to the caryng amouat iate 10 be equal to the carrypng amaunt ta be equal to the carrying amount
{n %) {in number of paints) {m %} {in number of ponts) (in %]}

Canal+ Group

Pay TV and Free to-av TV in France Africa
020 pt 4
and Vietnam 2} o it 0395 %
nc+ 975% +§ 31 pts 300% 1025 pts -49%
Studiocanal 975% + 85 pt 100% 257 pts 18%
Universal Music Group 890% +062 pt 100% QM pt 4%
Degember 31 2013
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discoumed cash flows

Increasa nthe discount rate Decrease inthe perpetual growth rate Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Applied 1 order for the recaverable amount Applied n order for the recoverable amoont n order for the recovesable amount
rate to be equal to the carrying amount rate to be equal to the camying amount 1o be equal to the carnaing amount
fin %) {in number of points) {in %] {in nurber of points) {in %)

Canal+ Group
:,Live;: Maintand Fsance and Canals . e i op 3
Free to-ar TV 950% +1 84 pt 20% 274 21%
Studiocanal 900% +219pts 000% 353pis 1%
Universal Mysic Group 515% +226 pts 100% 298 pts 2%
GVT 1 24% +1 26 pt 4 00% 257 pts 20%
SFR 730% {e) 050% fe) (e}

a Pay-TV-Manland France B04%, France overseas 904%, Afica 10 04%, Vietnam 10 88%

Free-to-ar TV 95%

b Pay-TV-Manland France 15%, France overseas 15%, Africa 3 14%, Vietnam 4 5%

Free-to-air TV 2%

¢ Pay-TV-Manland France 8 3%, France overseas 93%, Africa 10 3%

Free-to-arr TV 2%

d Pay-TV-Mainfand France 1 5%, France overseas 2 2%, Afrca 317%

Free-to-arr TV 2%

e  SFRwas sold on November 27, 2014 (please refer to Note 3 1)
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Note 10  Content assets and commitments

101 Content assets

December 31 2014

Accumulated amostization
Content assets gross and imoament o Content assets
[in millons of euros) P2 sses

Film and television costs 6003 {5,244) 759
Sports nghts 4an - m
Music catatogs and publishing rights 7897 {6 031) 1,866
Advances 10 arbists and repertoire owners 642 - 642
Merchandising contracts and artists services 27 {20} 7
Content assets 14,980 (ﬂﬂ 355
Deductron of current content assets {1 155) 20 {1,135}
Non-current content gssets 13,825 {11,275} 2,550

December 31 2013

Accumulated amortization
Content assets, gross and smoanment 10Sses Content assets
{in milltons of euros) P

Film and telewision costs 5678 {4,875} B03
Sports rights 380 - 380
Mustc catalogs and publishing rights 6,992 (5,032} 1960
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 621 - 621
Merchandising contracts and artists services 25 {17} 8
Contant assets 1% !9!924! 3,772
Deduction of current content assets {1,176) 27 {1 149)
Non-current content assets 12,520 {9.897) 2623

Changes in ma:n content assets

Year ended December 31

{in milhons of euros) 2014 2013
Opemng balance 3m 43N
Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations {14} {81)
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations 1334 {344}
Increase 2339 2495
Decrease {2352} 12,332)
Business combinations 27 3
Dwvestitures 1n progress or campleted - {347)
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 247 7
Closing balance 3685 m

10.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position content habilities

Content [ighilities are mainly part of ‘Trade accounts payable and other” or part of "Other non-current habilities” whether they are current or
non-current, as applicable (please refer to Note 15}

Minimum future payments as of December 31 2014 Total minsmum futura
Total Oue payments as of

{in muliions of eures) 2015 2016 2019 After 2019 December 31 2013
Film and television rights {a) 193 193 - . 08
Sports nghts 400 400 - - 402
Music royaltias to artists and repertoie owners 17 1699 22 - 1614
Creative talent employment agreements and others 119 42 75 2 111
Content Liabilities 2433 2334 97 2 2335
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Off halance shest commitments given/{received)

Mrnimurm futyre pavments a5 of December 31 2014 Total mnimum future
Total Due in payments a5 of

{in millions of euros} 2015 2016-2019 After 2019 December 31 2013
Fim and tefevision nights {a) 2443 982 1416 45 2383
Sports nghts {b} 3087 635 2452 - 1350
Creative talent employment agreements and others (¢} 807 367 401 39 754
Given commitrents 6337 1,984 4,269 B4 4,981
Fiim and telewision nghts () (189} {85) {89 (25) [179)
Sports nghts (3 (3 - (10)
Creative talent employment agreements and others () ot available

Receved commitments (202) (88} {89) (25} (189)
Total net 6,135 ﬁ 4180 59 4298

a  Manly includes contracts vahd over several years for the broadcast of fiim and TV productions (mainly exclusivity contracts with major
US studios, as well as the license agreement entered into on March 29, 2013 in respect of the antire HBO new series, for 5 years, as
of May 2013} and pre-purchase contracts relating to the French mowvie industry, Studiocanal film production and co-production
commitments {given and received) and broadcasting nghts of Canalsat and ne+ multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as
content assets when the broadeast 1s avaifable for initia! release or after the iitial sigmificant payment As of December 31, 2014,
provisians recorded relating to these commitments amounted to €73 million, compared to €71 mlion as of December 31, 2013
In addition, ths amount does not include commitments n relation to channel nght contracts, ISP {Intemet Service Provider) royalties
and non-exclusive distnbution of channels, under which Canal+ Group has not granted or received minimum guarantess The vanable
amount of these commitments cannot be reliably determined and 1s not reported in the Statement of Financial Position or in
commitments and 15 instead recorded as an expense for the period in which 1t was incurred Based on the estimation of the future
subscriber number at Canal+ Group, commitments in relation to channel night contracts would have increased by a net amount of
€342 million as of December 31, 2014, compared to €354 million as of Dacember 31, 2013
Moreaver, accarding to the agreement entered Into with grgamizations of cinema professicnals on December 18, 2009, Société
d'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP} 15 required to invest, every year for a five-year penod {2010-2014), 125% of its annual revenues in the
financing of European films With respect to audiovisial, in accordance with the agreements entered into with producers and authors’
organizations, Canal+ Group 1s required to invest, in France, a percentage of its revenues in the financing of heritage work every year
Agreements with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ organizations are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estmate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined

b Notably includes broadcasting rights of Canal+ Group for the following sport events
- the French professional Soccer League 1, for the 2015/2016 season (€427 million} and the four seasons (2016/2017 to 2019/2020)
awarded on April 4, 2014 for the two premium lots (€2,160 million), compared to €854 million as of December 31, 2013 with
respect to the two seasons 2014/2015 and 2015/2016,
- the Soccer Champions Leagus for three seasons (2015/2016 to 2017/2018) awarded an Apnl 11, 2014 for one lot,
- the Soccer English Premier League for the 2015/2016 season, renewed in January 2013 for thres seasons, and
the Formula 1 World Championship awarded in February 2013

These commitments will be recognized n the Statement of Financial Positien either upon the start of every season or upon a
significant initial payment

Moreover, on January 18, 2015, following to a call for tenders carried out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive nghts related to all of the Naticnal French Rugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches These nghts, which include all seven
games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015/2016 to 2018/2019

¢ Primanly refates to UMG which routinely commits te pay agreed amounts 10 artists and other parties upon delivery of content or ather
praducts {"Creative talent and employment agreements”) Until the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
1s obligated to delwer a content or other product to UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be
reliably determined and, thus, is not reported i received commitments
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Note 11 Other intangible assets
December 31, 2014
Other intangible assets,  Accumutated amartization Other ntanaible assets
(in milkons of euros) gross and imparment losses ¢
Software 242 (204) 38
Customer hases 230 (178) 52
Trade names 44 (25) 19
Other 337 (217) 120
853 {624) 2
December 31 2013
Other ntangible assets,  Accumulated amortization
{in miflions of euros) qross and impairment logses Other mtangible assets
Software 5,158 {3,906) 1,252
Telecom licenses 2505 {620) 1,885
Customer bases 956 31 145
Trade names 167 (51} 116
Other 1825 911 908
10,611 {6.305) 4,306

Changes tn other intangible assets

{in mithons of euros)

Opening balance

Depreciation

Acquisitions

Increase related to internal developments
Destitures/Decrease

Business combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other
Closing balance

a Relates to the depreciation of other intangible assets as published n the 2013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted to take

Year ended December 31

2014 2013

4,306 5,190
{278) (924) (a)

275 a7

169 764

(1 )

60 3

14,3100 (678)

18 {52}

229 4,306

Into account the impact of the application of IFRS 5 to Maroc Telecom group

Depreciation of other intangible assets related to continuing operations (pnmarily Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of

revenues and n selling, general and administrative expenses {-€61 million in 2014 and -€60 mllion in 2013}

Depraciation of other intangible assets related to discontinued businesses was recognized in the line “Eamings from discontinued

operations” for -£207 mithon 1n 2014 and -€853 million in 2013 {of which -€729 milhion related to SFR}
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Note 12

{tn mullians of euros}

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Set top boxes
Construction-tn-progress
Other

{in millions of euros)

Land

Buidings

Equipment and machinery
Set top boxes
Construction-in-progress
Other

Changes n property, plant and equipment

{in miflions of euros}

Opening balance

Depreciation

Acquisitions/Increase
Divesutures/Decrease

Business combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Changes 1n foreign currency translation adjustments and cthar

Closing balance

Property, plant and equipment

Fnday Febuary 27, 2015

Gecember 31, 2014

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment losses

Property plant and
gquIpMent gross

Property plant and equipment

4 - 4
133 {101} 32
488 {402) 86
976 {584} 392
36 - 36
597 {430} 167
2234 (1& ni
Dacember 31 2013

Accurmulated
depreciation and
impairment losses

Property plant and
equipment gross

Property plant and equipment

82 {2} 80
3052 {1718} 1334
8768 {4 704} 4064
2197 (1,224} 973

353 - 353
2109 {1372} 737
16,561 {9,020} 7541

Year ended December 31,

2014

2013

7,511
{643)
1,404
(42)
25
{7,542)
{26)

9,926
(1851} {a)
2,448
{115)
{40)
{2,381)
(446)

n?

1,541

a Relates to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as published in the 2013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted
for the impact on the Consolidated income Statement of the application of IFRS 5 to Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as

well as SFR and GVT {please see below}

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to continuing operations (primarly Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of
revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses for -€232 million in 2014 and -€228 millhon i1 2013 1t mainly consists of set top
boxes (-€129 mullion in 2014, compared to -£125 million in 2013}

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to discontinued operations was recognized as earnings from discontinued operations
It amounted to -€411 million in 2014 and -£1,624 million in 2013 and primarily pentains to SFR and GVT for -€212 million and -€199 mullion,
respectively in 2014 (compared to -£€932 million and -£281 million, respectively, in 2013}
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Note 13  Investments in equity affiliates

Voting mterest Value of equity affiliates
(in mulhons of euros) Decerber 31 2014 December 31 2013 December 31,2014 December 31 2013
N-Vision (a) 49% 49% 213 215
VEVO 48% 471% n 58
Numergy - 47% - 95
Other na na 22 78
306 446

na not applicable

a  As of December 31, 2014, N-Vision, which indirectly owns a 51% interest in TVN (FTA broadcaster in Potand), was held by Canal+
Group {49% interest} and ITI (51% interest) On October 16, 2014 Canal+ Group and IT| announced that they were jointly considering
strategic options in respect of their interest m TVN

Note 14  Financial assets

{in millions of guros) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Available-for-sale securities {a) 4881 360
Other loans and recevables 1,160 (b} 206
Derivative financial instruments 139 126
Cash deposits backing borrowings - 2
Other financial assets 13 5
Financial assets 6,193 699
Deduction of current financial assets {49) (45)
Non-current financial assets 6,144 654

a  Asof December 31, 2014, available-for-sale securities notably included

- 97,387,845 Numencable - SFR shares valued at stock market price on the closing date, or €40 94/share, for an aggregate value of
€3,987 milhon {please refer to Note 3 1), and

- 41,498,688 Activision Blizzard shares valued at stock market price on the clasing date, or USD$20 15/share, for an aggregate value
of $836 million (E689 million) (please refer to Note 3 4)

As of December 31, 2013, available-for-sale secunities included securities held by UMG in Beats for €161 millon On August 1, 2014,
these securities were sold for a net amount of €250 million resulting in a €179 million net gain on sale

Available-for-sale securities did not include any other publicly quoted secunties as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and
were not subject to any impairment with respect to fiscal years 2014 and 2013

b Relates to the cash deposits of €975 milbon as part of the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment and €45 mullron ($55 million) as
part of the securities class action in the United States Please refer to Note 26
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Note 15

Changes n net warking capital

{in millions of eures)

Inventortes

Trade accounts recenabla and other
Working capital assets

Trade accounts payable and other (c)
Other non current habshbes
Workeng capital lisbilities

Net working capital

{1 millians of euros)

Inventenes

Trada accounts racervable and other
Working capital assets

Trade accounts payable and other (c}
Other ron currgnt habihtias
Working capital hatilities

Net werking capetal

Net working capital

Friday, February 27, 2015

Changes i
December 31 Changes in Business Divestiures ia fareign currency Decembar 31
operating working progress or Other {b)
03 combinations translation 2014
capital {a) completed
——adustments _
330 16 19 {257) 114
4898 135 lﬂl {3218) 42 19 1583
5228 151 126 {3.475) 48 19 2097
10 416 20 138 (5422} 156 12) 5 306
157 8 {8 {576) 13 73) 121
1M1 | 130 {5.998) 169 {75) 5427
{5,945} 123 (8) 253 {121} E2] {3,330}
Changes in
December 31 Changas n Business Duwesttures n foreign currency Dacember 31
cperating working progress or Other (b}
Wz combinatons transtation 2013
capital (a} comploted
adjustments
738 1200 {3) {376} 9 330
6587 L]} {192) {1419} 179) g 4998
135 (28) {155} {1795} (88} 9 5228
14196 {252) {8) {3 506} 21} 197 10416
1002 (84} 17 {12} 123) {143) 757
15,198 1336) 9 (3518} (234) 54 1173
(7873} N8 1208) 1.8 146 145) (5.945)

a  Excludes content investments made by Canal+ Group and UMG In 2013, related to amounts as published in the 2013 Annual Report,
does not :nclude the adjustments from the impact of the application of IFRS 5 to Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as well
as GVT and SFR on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

b Mainly includes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures, and other investments

c Includes trade accounts payable for €2,215 million (€5,454 million as of December 31, 2013) as well as music royalties to artists and
repertoire owners of UMG whose matunty 1s tesser than one year for €1,693 million as of December 31, 2014 (£1,598 milhon as of
December 31, 2013) Please refer to Note 10 2

Note 16

{in mulhons of euros)

Cash
Cash equivalents
of which UCITS

Term deposits and interest-bearing current accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Oecember 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
240 525
6,605 516
4,754 48
1,851 470
6,845 1,041

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding cash and cash equivalents of Vivendi amounted to €6,845 milhion, of which €6,524 mullion 1s held by

Vivend: SA and invested in the followsng financial institutions with at |east an AZ/A rating

e €4.754 mithion in ten UCTIS menetary funds, managed by five management companies, and

e €1,770 mullion i term deposits and interest-beanng current accounts within eight banks Term deposits with initial maturities
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any tme and present an insignificant risk of changing in value
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Note 17  Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands) December 31 2014 December 31 2013
Common shares outstending (nominal value €55 pes share) 1,351,601 1,339,610
Treasury shares 150} {51}
Voting nghts 1,351,551 1,335,559

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: held 50 thousand treasury shares, representing a non-significant partion of its share capital These shares
are backed to the partial hedging of performance share plans As of December, 31, 2014, the market value of the portfolio amounted to
approximately €1 mullion

In addition, as of December 31, 2014, approximately 42 7 million stock aptions were outstanding, representing a potential maximum norninal
share capital increase of €235 million{i e, 3 16%)

Non-controlling interests

{in millions of euros) December 3t, 2014 December 31, 2013

Canalt Group 369 368
Maroc Telecom Group (a) 1,176
Other 13 2
Total 2 1,573

a On May 14, 2014, Vivend sold its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Note 3 3}

Distributions to shareowners of Vivendi SA

On June 30, 2014, Vivend: SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to 1ts shareholders from additsional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of
€1,348 milhon, considered as a return of capital distnbution to shareholders

On February 11, 2015, the date of Vivend's Management Board's meeting which approved the Consoiidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2014 and the appropriation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, Vivendr's Management Board decided to propose 1o
shareholders an ordinary dwvidend of €1 per share, compnsing €0 20 relative to the Group’s business performance and a €080 return to
shareholders as a result of the disposals of assets Based on Vivendi's share capital outstanding shares as of December 31, 2014, this
dividend would represent a total distnbution estimated at approximately €1 4 billion, to be paid 1n cash on Apnl 23, 2015, following the
coupon detachment on April 21, 2015 This proposal was presented ta, and approved by, Vivendi's Supennsory Board at its meeting held on
February 27, 2015

Share repurchase program

In addition to this distnbution, a share repurchase program will be submitted to shareholders’ approval, within the legal limit of 10% of the
share capital, for approximately €2 7 bithon in accordance with the market regulations on share repurchases The program will run over a
period of 18 months
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Note 18 Provisions

Fnday February 27 2015

Owestitures changes in

Decembar 31 Business {oresgn currency December 31
Nota k] Additon Uthzation Reversal combinatons  translation adustments 2014

{in millions of euras) and other

Employee benefits (3} 674 26 [EE] {514 4 ED 654
Restructuring costs (b) 156 il {121) (42) 72
bingations (o) 2% 13718 276 {116} {45} 3 1291) 1206
LOSSES 0N DREIOUS CoNtracts 128 an 143} m 124
Cantingent Lizbilities dua to disposal (6) 24 7 m (13} 17
Cast of dismantling and restoring sites 75 n {74)

Other {e) 1 087 10 (52) (53} 1 14 1105
Provisions 3523 538 {387) (163} ] (341) XL
— —

Deduction of currant provisions 1619) [325) 165 66 4) 427 290
Non-current provistons 2,504 23 [Fz5] 197} [ 85 2,888

Dwvesttures changes in
December 31 Business foreign cusrency December 1
Note 2012 Additian Uulzation Reversal combinabons  translation adjustments 203

{in millsons of euros) and othel
Employee benefits {a} 115 3 [56) {16) i0 12} 5]
Restructuring costs [b) 258 19 1286) m (5) [39) 156
Litigaticns fc) %6 1357 143 (58) 1) 13 [35) 1373
Losses on onefous contracts 143 13 62 (1 35 128
Contingent habilities dus to cispasal {d) 24 3 )] 2
Cost of dismantling and restanng sites ix) (4) - ) 7%
Gther fe) 1 389 99 (11} [245) i {791 1087
Provistons 3969 480 {547} (307) 87 {159 3523

e sanm— = —
Deduction of current provisions 711) {277 23 130 7} ] {619)
Non current provisions 3258 2-‘0-.3- TaTéT [Liz]] [1] _I‘Eﬁl. 2,904

a  Includes deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€608 million as of December
31,2014 and €619 milhon as of December 31, 2013, please refer to Note 18 2}, but excludes employee termination reserves recorded

under restructuring costs

b  Asof December 31, 2014, mainly relates to provisions for restructuring at UMG (€38 million} As of December 31, 2013, mainly relates
to provisions for restructuring at SFR (€85 mitlion) and UMG (€67 mrllion)

e Notably includes the reserve accrual n relation to the Liberty Media Corporation Iitigation and securnities class action in the United
States for €345 million and €100 mitlien, respectively

d  Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions These provisions are not significant and the

amount 18 not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend,

e  Notably includes litigation provisions for which the amount 1s not detatled because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend:
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Note 19  Employee benefits

191 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The tabfe below provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financial component The total cost of defined
benefit plans Is set forth in Note 19 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,
{in mithons of euros) Note 2014 2013
Employee defined contribution plans 20 18
Employee defined benefit plans 18922 {10} 1
Employee benefit plans 10 17

192 Employee defined benefit plans

1921 Assumptions used in the evaltuation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions undertying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made n compliance with the accounting policies presented I
Note 13 8 and have been applied consistently for several years Bemographic assumptions (including netably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific Financial assumptions {notably the discount rate} are determined by independent actuaries and other
indspendent adw:sors and reviewed by Vivendi's Finance Department The discount rate 1s therefore determined for each country by
reference to yields on notes 1ssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and maturities identical to that of the valued
plans, generally based on relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine 2 best estimate by
Vivend:'s Finance Department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments

in accordance with amended IAS 19, the expected return on plan assets 15 estimated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year

In weighted average

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate (a) 29% 36% 18% 45%
Rate of compensation increase 20% 20% 30% 29%
Duration of the benefit obhigation {in years) 147 142 108 160

a A 50 basis point increase for a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) to the 2014 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 million 10 pre-tax expense {or an mcrease of €1 million, respectively) and would have led to a decrease in the abligations of pensien
and post-retirement benefits of €66 miilion {or an increase of €73 million, respectively)

Assumptions used in sccounting for pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 175% 4 50% 375% 450% 200% 300% 200% 300%
Rate of compensation increase (weighted average) na na 500% 500% 200% 200% 343% 336%

na not applicable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-vetirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 375% 450% 375% 4 50%
Rate of compensation increase 350% 350% na na

na not applicable

Financial Report and Audrted Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /98



Alfocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2014 (a)

December 31 2013 {a}

Equity secunties 3% 4%
Debt secunties 45% 48%
Diversriied funds 36% 31%
Insurance contracts 4% 5%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Friday, February 27 2015

a  Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets acuvely traded in organized financial markets

Pension plan assets which were not transterred have a imited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupled
buildings or assets used by Vivendi ner shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evalution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuning post-retirement benefits, Vivend: assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 6 7% for the under B5 years of age and 65 years of age and older categories in 2014, to 4 5% in 2022 for
these categories In 2014, a one-percentage-point increase :n the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement
benefit obligatians by €11 mihon and the pre-tax expense by £1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cast
evolution rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €9 mithon and the pre-tax expense by €1 mullion

1922  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid
Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits Total
{in millions of euros) 2014 2013 2014 M3 2014 2013
Current service cost 14 12 - 14 12
Past service cost (a) {25) {5 - (25) (5}
{Gains)losses on settlements 7} - {7
Qther 1 1 1 1
Impact on selling, administrative snd general expenses (10) 1 - - (10} 1
Interest cost 25 25 B 6 k] kil
Expected return on plan assets {12) {13) - {12) [13)
Impact on other financial charges and income 13 12 [} [} 19 18
Net benefit cost recogmzed m profit and loss 3 13 6 6 9 19

a  The recorded past service cost relates to the change of part of the group’s management team since June 2012

In 2014, benefits paid amounted to {1} €45 million {compared to €35 milhion in 2013} with respect to pensions, of which €18 million (compared
to €9 million i 2013) was paid by pension funds, and {n} €9 million {compared to €10 millien n 2013} was paid with respect to post-

retiremant benefits
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1923 Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement henefits

Changes in value of benefit ohhigations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

Employee defined benefi plans
Year ended Decernber 31 2014

Benefit obligation  Fawr value of plan Net
assets {provision)/asset
recarded In the
statement of
financial posiion
(in msllons of euros) Note ) 1B} (BHA)
Opentng balance 966 56 (610}
Current service cost 20 {20}
Past service cost {26) 26
{Gans)/tosses on settlements (1 (1
Other —_—
Impact on selling. admimstrative and general axpensas 5
Interest cost 3 (33)
Expected retum on plan assets 12 12
Impact on ather financial charges and income {21)
Net benefit cost recogmized in profit and loss {16)
Experence gains/losses} (a) 24 2]
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions 0 7
Actuanal gains/losses! related to changes in finangial assumptions 122 (122)
Adjustment related to asset ceiling
Actearial gains/{losses) recognized 1n other comprehensive income {9t
Contributions by plan participants 1 1
Contributions by employers 43 43
Benefits paid by the fund {18} {18)
Benefits paid by the employer (36) {36)
Business combinations 1 - 1]
Divestiwres of businesses {b) (102} - 102
Transfers -
(ther {of which foregn currency translation adjustments) 51 23 (28
Reclassification to assets held for sale -
Clasing batance 1.005 04 {601)
of which wholly or partly funded benefits 558
wholly unfunded benefits {c) 447
of which assels related to employee beneflt plans 7
provisions for emplayee benefit plans (d) 18 {608)
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{in millions of euros)

Opening balance
Current service cost
Past service cost (e}
[Gains)/losses on settlements
QOther
Impaoct on seling, administrative and genersi expenses
interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Impact on other financial charges and mcome
Net herofit cost recogrized in profit and loss
Expertence gans/{losses) (a}
Actuarial gans/{lnsses} related to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuanal gains/{losses} related to changes in financial assumptions
Adjustment related to asset celling
Actuarial gains/(lossas) recognized in other comprahensive income
Contiributions by plan participants
Coniributions by employers
Benefits paid by the fund
Benefits paid by the employer
Business combinations (f)
Divestitures of businesses
Transfers
Other {of which foreign currency translation adjustments)
Reclassification to assets held for sale (g)
Closing balance
of which whally or partly funded benefits
wholly unfunded benefits {c)
of which assets related to employee benefit plans
provistons for employee benefit plans (d)

a  Includes the impact on the benefit obligation resulting from the difference between actuanal assumptions at the previous year-end
and effective benefits dunng the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the

actual retern on plan assets duning the year

b Relates to the impact of the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014

t  Inaccordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets As of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, such plans principatly comprise supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and post-

retirement benefit plans in the United States

¢ Includes a current hability of €48 mithon as of December 31, 2014 {compared to €55 milkion as of Decemnber 31, 2013)

e In2013, past service costs mainly related to the effect of decreases related to restructuring at SFR, as welt as the renewal of some
members of the group’s management team since the end of June 2012

f Relates to the adjustment in 2013 to account for the impact of the acquisition on September 28, 2012 of EMI Recorded Music on the
value of the obligations, plan assets, and underfunded obhgation

g  Relates to the impact of the reclassification of Maroc Telecom group as a discontinued operation, in accordance with [FRS 5

Note

18

Friday, February 27, 2015

Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31 2013
Benefitabhigation  Fair value of plan Net
assets {provisionl/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financtal position
{A) {B) [BHA)
1,020 367 {653}
2i 21)
[18) 18
(29) (22) 7
1 {1 |
3 |
35 (35}
13 13
{22)
{19}
12 {1 (13)
2 {2)
5 {5)
20)
1 1
45 46
19 {9
136) (36)
i2 9 {3
(20) 112) 8
(31) N
966 356 (610}
467
479
g
(619}
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Benefit obligation, fair vafue of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Friday February 27, 2015

Pension benehts (a) Post-retirement bengfits (b) Total
{in mtlons of euros) December 31 Ogcember 31 December 31
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Benefit ohhigation
US companies 125 107 138 120 61 il
UK companias 298 23 1 1 97 pL)
German companies 209 190 - - 209 190
French companies 157 233 - - 157 233
QOther 65 67 15 15 81 82
830 153 138 1.005 96

Fair velue of plan assets
US compantes 57 48 57 48
UK companies 252 0 252 o
German compantes 3 3 3 3
French companies 54 (3] 54 55
Qrther 38 33 38 ki

%04 356 . 04 5%
Underfunded ohligation
US comparntes 168) {59) {138} {120 {204) (179)
UK companes (44) (32) ] i {45) 133)
German companies (208) (187) {206) {187)
French campanies f103) {168} - (103) (168)
Other {27) {28) {16} {15) {43} 43)

(448) 474) (153} {135) {601} {610)

a No employee defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligations and of the underfunded

obligation of these plans

b Pnimanly relates to medical coverage {(hospitahzation, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and life insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the United States In accordance with the current regulation in relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan is not funded The main nisks for the group relate to changes in discount rates as well as the

increase In the cost of benefits [please refer to the sensitivity analysis described i Note 192 1)

1924 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2015, hedge fund contnbutions and benefit payments by Vivends to retirees are estimated to be €40 miflion in respect of pensions, of
which €22 million relates to pension funds and €8 million relates to post-retirement benefits
Estmates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi {in nominal value for the following

10 years) are as follows

Post-retirement
Pension benefits

{in millions of euros) benefits

2015 43 9
2016 32 9
2017 3z g
2018 29 g
2019 29 9
2020-2024 162 44
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Note20 Share-based compensation plans

201 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{in millions of euros) Year ended December 31
Charge/{income} Note 2014 2013
Stock opions performance shares and bonus shares q 15
Employes stock purchase plans 8
Stock Appreciation Rights {SAR) I
Vivend stock instruments 202 9 24
UMG equity unit plan 203 17 5
Charge/{Income) related to share-based compensation plans {8 29
Equity settied instruments 9 23
Cash-settled nstruments {17) &

202 Plans granted by Vivendi

Vivendr grants several share-based compensation plans each year based on Vivend: shares to officers and employees of the group stock
option plans {without discount), performance share plans, as well as a capital increase reserved for employees and retirees (classic and
leveraged plans)

In 2013, the Supervisory Board decided, upon the recommendation of the Management Board and after the advice of the Human Resources
Comm:ttee, to stop granting stock option plans In addition, in 2013, Vivend: put into place a capital increase reserved for employees and
retirees (employee stock purchase and leveraged plans)

In 2014, due to the changes In the scope already completed or in progress, Vivend did not grant any annual plan to its employees and only
granted 380,000 performance shares to a member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidianes

The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are descnbed in Note 1310 More specifically, the risk-free
mterest rate appled 15 the rate of French fungible treasury bonds or "Obligations Assimilables du Trésor” {OAT) with a matunty
corresponding to the expected term of the instrument at the valuation date, and the expected dividend yield at grant date 1s based on
Vivend1's dividend distribution policy

2021 Equity-settled instruments

Transactions on outstanding instruments, which have occurred since January 1, 2013

Stock optiens Performance shares
Number of outstanding Weighted average strike Nurnber of outstanding
price of outstanding stock
stack options performance shares
options
{in thousands) {in euros) {in thousands}
Balance as of Decembar 31, 2012 53,406 205 3884
Granted - na 2782
Exercised {3362) (a) 133 {1 409)
Forfeited 1354) 129 na
Cancelled (194) 159 {199)
Adjusted {b) 3339 194 286
Balance as of December 31, 2013 52835 197 5344
Granted na 380
Exercised {11 264) {a) 175 {1 600)
Forferted 77 175 na
Cancelled () {571) 137 {440)
Adjusted {b 2439 191 183
Balanco as of Deceamber 31, 2014 42,722 {d} 193 3,867 (e}
Exercisable as of Decamber 31, 2014 40,263 19.8 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2014 40.413 198 B45

na not applicable

a  Asof the dates of exercise of the stock options, the weighted average share price for Vivendi shares was €19 68 {compared to €16 21
for stock options exercised in 2013)
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h In accordance with legal requirements, the number and strke price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares
were adjusted to take into account the impact for the beneficiaries of the following distributions {please refer to Note 17}
« onMay 17, 2013 adividend distribution of €1 per share from reserves with respect to fiscal year 2012, and
« onJune 30, 2014 an ordinary distribution of €1 per share from additional paid-in capital
These adjustments have no impact on share-based compensation expenses refated to the relevant stock opt:on and performance share
plans

¢ At its meeting on February 21, 2014, after review by the Human Resources Committee, the Supervisory Board approved the level of
satisfaction of objectives for the cumulative fiscal years 2012 and 2013 for the performance share plans and the last stock option plan
granted m 2012 it confirmed that not all the criteria that had been set were satisfied for fiscal year 2013 The final grant of the 2012
performance share and stock option plans represents 88% of the onginal grant Consequently, among the instruments cancelled in
2014 were 335,784 stock options and 239,207 performance shares granted in 2012

d  The total intrinsic value of outstanding stack options was £98 million

&  The weighted-average remaining period before delivering performance shares was 0 8 year

Please refer to Note 17 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivend SA of the outstanding stock options, the performance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock options as of December 31, 2014

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock options
Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average
Range of strike prices Number remaining Number
strke price strike prica
contractual ife
{in thousands) {1n euros) {in years) {in thousands) (in euros)
Under €15 2,454 119 73 145 18
£15-€17 10,980 158 48 10,980 159
€17-€19 92886 185 20 9286 185
€19-€21 7012 02 33 7,012 202
€21-€23 6,413 229 13 6413 229
€23-€25 8.577 247 23 6577 247
€25 and more - - - -
42,722 193 32 40,413 198
Performance share plans

in 2014, due to the changes (n the scope already completed or in progress, Vivendi did not grant any annual plan to its employees and only
granted 380,000 performance shares to a member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidianes

On February 22, 2013, 2,573 thousand performance shares were granted The share price was €14 91

After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 8 3% of the share price on February 22, 2013 and an expected dividend yield of
6 71%, the farr value of each granted performance share was €11 79, corresponding to an aggregate fair value of €30 mitlion This value 1s
estrmated and 15 set at grant date

These nghts vest at the end of a two-year period, the compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a straight-ling basis gver the vesting
period Granted performance shares are then available at the end of a two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares
of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders are entitled to the dwidends and
voting nghts attached to these shares from the end of the two-year vesting period The recognized compensation cost corresponds to the
value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the difference between the fair value of the shares to be receved
and the discounted value of dividends that were not received over the vesting period

The definitive grant of performance shares 15 subject to the satisfaction of performance cenditions Such performance conditions nclude an
external indicator, therefore following the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code The objectives relating to the performance
conditions are determined by the Supervisory Board upon proposal by the Governance, Nominating and Hurnan Resources Committee

The abjectives relating to the performance conditions are assessed on a two-year penod {three-year period for plans granted since June 24,
2014) The definitive grant is effective upon the satisfaction of the following perfarmance conditions
s nternal indicators (with a weighting of 70%} for corporate head office, the group’s EBITA margin and for each subsidiary, its
EBITA margin, as a function of the cumulative income from fiscal years 2013 and 2014, and
s external indicators (with a weighting of 30%) performance of Vivend's share pnice over two consecutive tradmg years,
compared to a basket of indices, the STOXX® Europe 600 Media and the STOXX® Europe 600 Telecommunications
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At the meeting held on February 27, 2015, after review by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Committee, the Supemvisory
Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives for the cumulative fiscal years 2013 and 2014 for the performance share plans granted
in 2013 It confirmed that not all the critena that had been set were satisfied for fiscal year 2014 The final grant of the 2013 performance
share plans represents, depending on the subsidiaries of the group, between 62% and 80% of the onginal grant Consequently, a portion of
performance shares granted in 2013 will be cancelled

50 bonus share plan

On July 186, 2012, Vivend: granted a 50 bonus share per employee plan for all the group’s French subsidianies 727 thousand shares were
issued on July 17, 2014 at the end of a two-year vesting period The compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on 2 straight-line basis over
the vesting period These shares will only be available at the end of another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary
shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders have been entitled to the
dividend and voting rights relatimg to these shares since July, 17, 2014

2022 Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

In 2014, no capital increase, reserved for employees of participating group compantes that have joined an employee stock purchase and
leveraged plans, was put into place by Vivend

In 2013, Vivendi made a capital increase reserved for employees (stock purchase and leveraged plans) that allowed substantially all of 1ts
employees and retirees to subscribe for Vivend) shares These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restnctions, may be
subscribed by employees for a maximum discount of 20% on the average opening market price for Vivendi shares during the 20 trading days
preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase by the Management Board and the subscription price of new shares to 1Ssue
The difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share price on that date represents the benefit granted to the
beneficiaries Furthermore, Vivend applied a discount fer non-transferability in respect of the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the
shares duning a five-year penod, which 15 deducted from the benefit granted to the employees The value of the subscribed shares 15
estimated and fixed at the date of the subscnption price for new shares 1o Issue

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2013, the apphed valuation assumptions were as follows

2013
Grant date June 28
Subscrigtion price {in euros} 1240
Data at grant date
Share price (in euros) 1455
Discount to face value 1682%
Expected dividend yield 687%
Risk free interest rate 119%
S-year interest rate in fine 6 08%
Repo rate 036%

Under the employee stock purchase plans, 2,055 thousand shares were subscribed in 2013 at €12 10 per share After taking mnta account
a 152% discount to the share price on the grant date for non-transferability, the fair value per subscnbed share was €0 24 on June 28,
2013

Under the leveraged plans, 9,758 thousand shares were subscribed in 2013 After taking mto account a discount for non-transferatulity
measured after the leveraged impact, the fair value per subscribed share on June 28, 2013 was €2 23

The leveraged plans entitles virtually all employees and retirees of Vivend) and its French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivends
shares through a reserved share eapital increase, while obtaming a discounted subscription price, and to ultmately receve the capital gan
(calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the ptan) corresponding to 10 shares for one subsenbed share A financial institution
mandated by Vivendr hedges this transaction

In 2013, the charge recognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €8 million

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resufted in a capital ingrease (including 1ssug premium} with an aggregate value of €149 milhon on July
25,2013
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2023 Cash-settfed instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vwend granted specific snstruments to its US resident managers and employees, with economic features stmilar to those
granted to non-US resident managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settled in cash only The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted 1s mitially estimated as of the grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date untl the payment date
and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date All of the nights for these plans were
definitively vested as of Apri 2010

Stock appreciation nght plens

When the istruments entitle the beneficiarigs thereof to recerve the appreciation in the value of the Vivendi share price, they are known as
"stock appreciation rights” {SAR) which are the economic equivalent of stock options Under a SAR plan, the beneficiaries will receive a
cash payment upon exercise of their rights based on the Vivend: share price equal to the difference between the Vivend share price upon
exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year penod

As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding SAR was 4,427 thousand {compared to 2,980 thousand as of December 31, 2013} All nghts
related to SAR were vested and thesr aggregate intrinsic value amounted to $6 million As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amount
accrued for these instruments was non-significant

203 UMS long-term incentive plan

Effective from January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are
awarded phantom equity units and phantom stock apprec.ation rights whose vatue 15 intended to reflect the value of UMG These units are
simply account units and do not represent an actual ownership interest in erither UMG or Vivendi The equity units are notignal grants of
equity that will be payable in cash upon settfement no later than 2015 or earhier under certain circumstances The stock appreciation nights
are essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the term

Payouts under the plan generally concide with terms of employment, but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upon third party valuations While the participanis’ nghts vest at the end of a fixed vesting peniod,
compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense is recogmized based
on the portion of the vesting penod that has elapsed and the fair value of the umits calculated using an appropreate grant date model i
accordance with IFRS 2

During the third quarter of 2014, one executive, who benefited from the pfan, ended his employment coniract The phantom equity units and
phantom stock appreciation rights that were awarded to him were therefare cancelled Conseguently, the amaunt previgusly accrued for
these nghts was reversed (€19 million}

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining amount accrued under these arrangements was €12 million (€26 miliion as of December 31,
2013) No payments have been made to date
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Note 21 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Note December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
{in rmllions of euros) Total tong-term Short-term Total Long-term Short term
Bonds 2t 1,950 1,950 7.827 6633 1,194
Bank credit facilimes {drawn canfirmed) Falrd - - - 2075 2,014 61
Commercial paper ssued - - - 1,906 1906
Bank overdrafts 168 - 168 143 - 143
Accrued interest to be paid 27 - 7 186 186
Other 54 5 49 73 53 20
Nominal valus of horrowings 2199 1955 744 12210 8,700 3510
Cumulative effect of amortized cast and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting 28 28 B 8 -
Commitments to purchase nan-controlling interests B7 79 8 22 2 -
Denvative financiat instruments 22 33 12 21 26 7 19
Borrowings and other fingncial habiliwes 2347 2073 213 12.266 8,737 3529
211 Bonds
Interest rate {%) Decembsr Maturing during the following penods December
nominal  effectve Maturity 31 After 3
{in mullions of euros) 2004 2015 2016 207 218 209 2019 2013
€750 million (March 2010} 4 000% 415% Mar 17 50 750 750
£700 midhon {December 2009) 48975%  495% Dec 19 700 - 700 760
€500 milion {December 2009) 4250% 439% Dec 16 500 - 500 - 500
€300 milion - SFR {July 2009) 5000% 505% Jul 14 - - 300
€1 120 mullson {January 2009} 7750% 769% Jan-14 - la} - - - 894
Bonds without make-whale option 1,950 - 500 750 . 700 - 314
€750 milhon {July 2013) 2315% 251% Jan 18 - - 750
€700 rmullion (December 2012} 2500% 2 65% Jan 20 - - 700
$650 mdhan (Apnt 2012} 3450%  356% Jan 18 - - 69
$80C m:lhien (Aprd 2012} 4750% 491% Apr 22 - - 189
€1 250 mullion {January 2012} 4125% 431% Jul 17 . - - 1250
€500 mulhion {November 201 1) 4875%  H00% Nov 18 - - - 500
€1 050 meltion {Suly 2011} 4750% 467% Jub - - - 1.050
$700 mullion {Aprd 2008} 6625%  685% Apr 18 - - 175
Bonds with make-whaole option {b) . - - - . - - 4,683
Nominal value of honds 1,950 - 500 750 700 1827

a Redemption at matunty in January 2014 of the 7 75% bond 1ssued i January 2009 for €894 mullion

b Vivend: allocated a portion of the SFR sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its euro and U S dallar
denommated bonds with a make-whote option, representing an aggregate principal amount of £4,250 milhion and $595 million
{€420 milion} This transaction, completed in December 2014, resulted in a presmum payment of £642 millwon {net of gains on nterest
rate nisk hedgng) in addition to the principal amount of €4,670 mitlion

The bonds denominated in euros are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

Bonds 1ssued by the group contasn customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment {pan-passu
ranking) In addition, bonds 1ssued by Vivendh SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change in control tngger if, as a result of
any such event, the long-term rating of Vivendi SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status (Baa3/BBB-)

212 Bank credit facilites

On November 27, 2014, following the recerpt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivend cancelled all of its existing bank ¢redit facilities
for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 bilhon bank credit facility, maturing in five years {2019} and with two one-year renewal options As of
December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

The €2 billion bank credit facility contains customary prowisions relating to events of default and covenants relating to negative pledge,
divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivend) SA 1s required to comply with a Proportionate Financial
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Net Debt” to EBITDA* financral covenant over a 12 manth rolling period not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loan Non-compliance with
this covenant coutd result in the early redemption of the facility «f it were drawn, or its cancellation As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi SA
was in compliance with its financial covenant

The renewal of Vivendi SA’s confirmed bank credit facility when it 1s drawn is contingent upen the 1ssuer rerterating certain representat:ons
regarding 1ts abihty to comply with its financial obligattons with respect to loan contracts

In additron, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 mitlion, maturing i March 2018, was 1ssued in connection with Vivend:'s appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Note 26) This letter of credit i1s guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 intemational banks with
which Vivendi signed a Reimbursement Agreement that includes an undertaking by Vivend! to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credt On July 16, 2014, Vivend: strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement
Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €975 mllion in an escrow account This cash deposit could be used in prionity against a claim made
against Vivend, if any, and if the banks were called with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which sigmificantly reduced the letter of
credit’s financing cost, resulted m a €975 million decrease in the group’s Net Cash Position Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-balance sheet financial commitment, with no impact on Vivendi's Financial Net Debt

21.3 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by maturity
{in millions of euros) December 31, 20014 December 31 2013
Matunity
< 1year{a) 244 1% 3,510 29%
Between 1 and 2 years 505 23% 588 5%
Between 2 and 3 years 750 H% 1562 13%
Between 3 and 4 years - - 2,085 17%
Between 4 and 5 years 700 32% 1,008 8%
>5years - - 3,480 28%
Nomtnal value of borrowings 2,189 100% 12210 100%
—_—

a  Asof December 31, 2014, short-term borrowings (with a matunty of less than one year) primanly included bank overdrafts for £168 million As
of December 31, 2013, they mainly included commercial paper issued for €1,906 million (with a 17-day average remaining period), Vivendi SA's
€894 mullion bord, matuning in January 2014, SFR's £300 million: bond, maturing in July 2014, and bank overdrafts for €143 milkion

As of December 31, 2014, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts on available medium
term cred:t ines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was 4 9 years (compared to 4 2 years at year-end 2013}

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

fin millions of guros) Note Oecember 31 2014 December 31 2013
Fixed interest rate 1935 91% 7,830 64%
Floating interest rate 204 9% 4380 36%

Norminal value of borrowings before hadging 2,198 100% 12,210 160%

—_— —————3

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450

Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1 450/ {2,600}

Net position at fixed interest rate 222 {1,008) 2. 150)

Fixed interest rate 995 45% 5680 47%
Floating interest rate 1,204 55% 6530 53%
Nomnal value of borrowings after hedging 2,199 100% 12,210 100%

? Relates to Financial Net Debt as defined by Vivend:
¢ Relates to EBITDA as defined by Vivendr plus dmidends recerved from unconsolidated compames
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Breakdown by currency
{in mithons of euros) Nate Becember 31 2014 December 31,2013
Euro - EUR 2162 8% 11,396 93%
US dollar - USD - 433 4%
QOther (of which BAL and PAN) 37 2% 38 3%
Nominal value of horrowings before hedging 2199 100% 12210 100%
—_—m —_—
Currency swaps /S0 748 1468
Other currency Swaps 152} {199)
Net total of hedging instruments 222 636 1,269
Euro - EUR 2858 130% 12,665 104%
US dollar - USD (748) 34% {1035} 4%
QOther (of which BRL and PLN) 89 4% 580 5%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 2,199 100% 12.210 100%
f—— |}

214 Credit ratings

As of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December
31,2014, Vivend)'s credit ratings were as follows

Rating agency Type of debt Ratings Outtook
Standard & Poor's Long term corporate debt BBB
Shart-term corporate debt A2 Positive
Semor unsecured debt BBB
Moody's Long term semor unsecured debt Baa? Stable
Fitch Ratings Long terer: sentor unsecured debt B3B Stable
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Note 22  Financial instruments and management of financial risks

22.1 Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments, as assets under Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position, include financial assets measured at fair value and at
historical cost, trade accounts recewvable and ather, as well as cash and cash equivalents As liabilities, they include bonds and bank credit
facilities, other financial liabilities (including commitments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and
ather non-current hiabiities In addstion, financtal mstruments include dervative instruments {assets or hahilities)

Accounting category and fair value of financial mstruments

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
{in millions of guros) Note value valug
Assets
Availablefor-sale secunties 4881 4881 360 360
Derivative financal nstruments 133 139 126 126
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 13 5 5
Financial assets at amortized cost 1,160 1160 208 208
Financial assets 14 6193 6193 699 699
Trade accounts recewvable and other, at amoruzed cost 15 1,983 1,983 4898 4,898
Cash 240 na 525 na
Term deposits and interest-bearing current accounts 1851 na 470 na
ucs 4754 4,754 48 46
Cash and cash equivalents 16 6,845 4754 1041 46
Liabilities
Borrowings at amortized cost 2227 2,483 12218 12721
Dervative fimancial instruments 33 33 26 26
Commitments to purchase noncontrolling interests 87 87 pz4 22
Borrowings and other financial lrabilities 2 2,347 2,803 12,266 12,769
Other non-current liabilities at amortized cost kil 121 757 757
Trade accounts payable and other, et amortized cost 19 5308 5,308 10,416 10,416

na not applicable

Valuation method for financial instruments at fair value

The following tables show the fair value method of financial instruments according to the three following levels
- Level 1 fair value measurement based on quoted prices in active maikets for identicat assets or liabilities,
- level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quoted prices mcluded within Level 1), and
- level 3 fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
cbservable market data

As a reminder, the other financial instruments at amortized cost are not included in the following tables

December 31, 2014

fin milhons of ewos) Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assgets

Avallable-for-sale securities (a) 14 4881 4676 162 43
Dervative financial instruments 222 139 - 139 -
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12 5 - 8
UcITS 16 4754 4,754

Liabthties

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests g7 - - a7
Denvative financral mstruments 222 33 - 33
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December 31, 2013

{rn millions of euros} Note Total Level 1 Level 2 leval 3
Assets

Avallable-for-sale secunties 14 350 - 304 56
Denvative financial instruments 222 126 - 126 -
Other financial assets at far value through profit or toss 5 5 -

UcITs 16 46 48

Lisbihties

Commitments to purchase non-controlling enterests 22 - - 22
Dervative financial instruments 222 26 - 2%

a  Asof December 31, 2014, available-for-sale secunties primanly included secunties hetd by Vivend), valued on stock market price at that
date an interest 1n SFA - Numericable for €3,987 maflion and an interest in Activiston Bhizzard for €689 million

In 2014 and 2013, there was no transfer of financial instruments measured at fair value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, financial instruments measured at level 3 fair value did not :nclude any significant amount

222 Management of financial risks

As part of its business, Vivend\ 1s exposed to several types of financial risks market risks, credit nsks, counterparty risks, as well as liquidity
rnisks Market nsks notably include interest rate nisks, foreign currency risks and equity market value nisks Vivendi's Financing and Treasury
Department centrally manages financial nsks for the group and its subsidianes, reporting directly to Vivendr's Chief Financial Officer The
Department has the necessary expertise, resources (notably technical resources), and information systems for this purpose The Treasury
Committee monitors, on a bi-monthly basis, the lquidity positions in all business units and the exposure to main financial risks, n particular
counterparty nsk, equity market value rnsks as well as foreign currency nisks and interest rate risks Finally, short- and [ong-term financing
activities are performed at the group’s headquarters and are subject to the prior approval of the Management Board and Supervisory Board,
in accordance with the provisions of thewr Internal Regulations

As of December 31, 2014, the financral position of Vivend) may be summed up as follows

- due to the sale of 88% of Vivend)’s interest in Activision Biizzard in October 2013, the sale of Maroc Telecom n May 2014 and
mainly the sale of SFR in November 2014, Vivend: has a Net Cash Position of €4 6 bidlion, of which €6 8 billion in cash and cash
equivalents and €2 2 billion in gross financial debt, prmarily in bonds for €2 0 billion Vivend has a bank credit facihity available
for €2 0 billion, undrawn as of December 31, 2014,

- Vivends held a portfolio of quoted and unguoted mimonty interests, notably Numencable — SFR, Activision Blizzard and TVN in
Poland, as welt as at UMG (Spotify, Vevo, Deezer}, which represented an aggregate market vatue of approximately €5 1 billion
(before taxes) as of December 31, 2014, and

- as part of the current appeals in connection with Liberty Media Corporation and secunties class action lstrgations in the United
States, Vivend: put into place cash guarantee deposits for an aggregate amount of approximataly €1 bilhon

In addition and as a reminder, once the sale of GVT has been completed {expected during the second quarter of 2015), Vivendi's portfolio of
securities will increase with the minonty nterests it will recerve in Telefonica Brasil {VIVO/GVT) and Telecom Italia, which represented an
aggregate market value of approximately €2 8 billion (before taxes) as of August 28, 2014 (starting date of the exclusive negotiations with
Telefonica}

Derivative financial instrument values on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2014 December 31 2013
{in millions of euros) Note  Asssts Liabilities Assets Liabilires
Interest rate risk management 2223 75 12} 88 m
Pay-fxed interest rate swaps - 12) - 7
Pay floating interest rate swaps 75 - 83 -
Foreign currency nisk management 2224 43 [21) 17 (19)
(Other _ 2 21
Denvative financial instruments 139 {33} 126 (26}
Deduction of current denvative financial instruments {40} 21 {17} 19
Non-current denivative financial instruments 99 {12} 109 1]
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2221  Investment nsk and counterparty nisk management

Vivendi's policy for investments manly aims to minimize 1ts exposure to counterparty nsk Consequently, Vivendi 18 mainly commutted within
highly rated mutual funds and commercial banks, and allocates investments among selected banks and hmits the amount of each such
investment

As of December 31, 2014, cutstanding cash and cash equivatents of Vivendi amounted to €6,845 million, of which €6 524 million 1s held by
Vivendi SA and mvested in the following financial institutions with at least an A2/A rating
»  £4.754 miihon in ten UCTIS monetary funds, managed by five management companies, and
e £1,770 milion in term deposits and interest-beanng current accounts within eight banks Term deposits with initial maturities
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any time and present an msignificant nisk of changing in value

As of December 31, 2014, the average interest rate on Vivend|'s investments was 0 43%

In addition, Vivend: does not consider there to be & significant nsk of non-recovery of trade accounts receivable for its business operations
the large individual customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business
operations {mainly Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group) enable to mimimize the nsk of credit concentration related to trade accounts
receivable

2222 Equity market value nsk management

Vivendr's cash mvestment policy prohibits equity investments However, following divestiture or acqussition, Vivendi may hold non-
consolidated interests as part of an opporturust strategy in more or less long term As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi held shares in the
following listed companies, recognized as “Available-for-sale secunties® in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position, for an
aggregate amount of £4,676 million

¢ 97 4 million Numericable - SFR shares, 1 e, a 20% interest held following the sale of SFR to Numericable Group on November 27,
2014, valued at €3,987 million as of December 31, 2014 These shares are notably subject to a lock-up provision please refer to
Note 31, and

* 415 million Activision Blizzard shares valued at €683 million as of December 31, 2014 These shares were subject to a fock-up
provision, which matured on January 7, 2015 please refer to Note 3 4

Vivend: 15 thus exposed to the risk of fluctuation tn the value of these shares As of December 31, 2014, the unrealized gain with respact to
these shases amounted to €1,015 millon, directly recognized in equity An unfavorable and unsform change of 10% in all of these shares
would have a negative impact of £468 million on Vivendr's equity

In add:tion, Canal+ Group holds 95 mitlion shares in TVN (free-to-aiw TV i Poland) indirectly held by N-Vision and consohdated under the
equity method by Canal+ Group On October 16, 2014, Canal+ Group and IT1 Group announced they were jaintly considenng strategic options
in respect of their interest in TYN (please refer to Note 13)

Finally, as part of the plan to sell GVT, which (s expected to be completed durning the second quarter of 2015 {please refer to Note 3 2},
Vivend: should receive Telefonica Brasd (VIVO/GVT) and Telecom Itahia shares, valued at €1,830 mullion and €360 million, respectively, based
on the stock market price and currency exchange rate on August 28, 2014 {starting date of the exclusive negotiations with Telefonica),
representing an aggregate amount of €2 8 tillion

2223 Interest rate nsk management

Vivend!’s interest rate nsk management seeks to reduce i1ts net exposure to interest rate increases Therefore, Vivendi uses pay-floating and
pay-fixed interest rate swaps These instruments enable thus the group to manage and reduce volatibity for future cash flows related to
interest payments on borrowings

In December 2014, concomitantly with the redemption of the bonds with make-whole optien, Vivend: early settled pay-floating mterest rate
swaps with a notional amount of €750 million and €400 million As of December 31, 2014, the portfolio of Vivend: s interest rate hedging
instruments included the following swaps

o pay-fixed interest rate swaps with a notional amount of €450 million, maturing in 2017, set up in 2012,

s pay-floating interest rate swaps with a notional amount of €450 million, matunng in 2017, set up in 2010, and

+ pay-floating interest rate swaps with a notional amount of £1,000 million, maturing in 2016, set up in 2011
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December 31 2014

Notiona! amounts Fair value
After
(in mllions of euras) Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 Assets Liabilines
Pay-fieed interest rate swaps 450 450 - (12)
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1 450} {1 000} {450} 75
Net position at fixed interest rate ‘1m1 !1.01!]! - {a) 75 (1__2_!'
I wn by ntirg category of rat Ing Instrumen

Cash Flow Hedge -

Fair Value Hedge {1,000} {1,000) 35

Economic Hedging {b) - {a} 40 (12}

December 31 2013
Notional amounts fan value
Total 2014 2015 2016 017 2018 After Assets  Liabiliies
{in mitlions of euros) 2018
Pay-fixed tnterest rate swaps 45) 450 {7
Pay floating inserest rate swaps {2,600 11 400) {450} {750) B8
Net position at fixed interest rate !2,150! _ [1400[ - (a) {750} 88 {7}
reak gecounting category of rat Ing Instruments

Cash Fiow Hedge - -

Fair Value Hedge {2150 (1 400) {750) 46 .

Economic Hedging (k) - - {a) 42 n

a Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed interest rate swaps far a notional
amount of €450 milhion, maturing 1n 2017, qualified as economic hedges

b  The econormic hedging instruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
1AS 39

2224 Foreign currency risk management

Excluding GVT, the group’s foreign currency risk management 15 centralized by Vivendi SA's Financing and Treasury Department and
pnmarily seeks to hedge budget exposures (at an 80% level} resulting from monetary flows generated by activities performed in currencies
other than the euro as well as from external firm commitments {at a 100% level), pnmarily relating to the acquisition of editonal content
(including sports, audiovisual and film nights) and certain capital expenditures (e g , set-top boxes), realized in currencies other than the euro
Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunity of less than one year Considenng the
foreign currency hedging instruments established, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% agamnst all foreign currencies in position
as of December 31, 2014, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earmings {below €1 mitlion) In additien, the group may
hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financial assets and liabilities Moreover, due to their non-
significant nature, net exposures related to subsidianies’ net working capital {internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are
generally not hedged The relevant risks are settled at the end of each month by translating the amounts mto the functional currency of the
relevant operating entities

The principal currencies hedged by the group are US dollars (USD) and British pounds (GBP} In 2014 and 2013, to hedge against a possible
depreciation of its net investment in certain subsidiaries in the United Kingdom due to an unfavorable change in GBP, Vivend set up a hedge
using forward contracts for a notional amount of £832 million, or €1,046 million From an accounting perspective, these hedge nstruments
were considered as net investment hedges
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The following tables present the foreign currency nsk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be recewved, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be detivered

December 31 2014

Notignal amounts Farr valug
{in mthons of guros) Total usD PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales aganst the euro 1.233) (52} (56) (1 062} (63) 2 g
Purchases against the euro 1908 n7 Bl 1020 120 40 {2)
Other - 59 - ] {60) 1
675 72 5] @) 1) [ 1)
Breakdown nting catenory of fore T hedqing mstrumen
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales aganst the euro (67) {9) 149) (2} {1m 2 1)
Purchases against the eurp kK] kx} - 2 -
Other - - - -
(34} ) {45} (2) [k} L n
Fair Value Hadge
Sales agamst the euro |68} {43} {1 (14} - {1}
Purchases agamnst the euro 275 275 - - - 14 .
Other - 3 - 1 {4) - -
207 235 {11} f13) {1) 14 )
Net lnvestment Hedge
Sales against the eure {1046) {1,046) {a) . th]
Purchases against the euro - - - -
QOther - - - -
{1.046) - - (1,046) . - (17)
Economic Hedging {h)
Sales against the euro (52} - - - {52}
Purchases against the euro 1 600 409 51 1020 120 24 [2)
Other - 56 - - {56} 1
1,548 465 51 1020 12 25 {2)
[ecember 31 2013
Notional amounts Fai valve
{in milkons of euros) Totat UsD PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales aganst the guro {1,060) {49) {105} {834) {72} 2 (10)
Purchases against the euro 2329 1330 bal 1] 1 7}
Other - 187 (B1} i4) {102} 4 (2}
1,269 1,468 (165} 50 (84) 17 {19
Breakd ning cate f foreign currency hedging ngtrumen:
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against tha eurp 73 {1} 142) 0] n3) -
Purchases against the eurg 85 85 - 1 m
Other 168 {75} - (33) 4 {2)
12 242 [TH]) (] 1106) 5 {3
Feir Value Hedge
Sales aganst the eurp {93} (38) [51) (4) 1 2
Purchases against the euro 450 432 18 - {6}
Dther 8 {6) {4) 2 -
357 402 (57) 10 2 1 (8}
Neot Investment Hedge
Sales agawmst the euro (823} (823) (a) - 8)
Purchases aganst the euro - -
Qther - - -
{823) - - {823) - - (8)
Economic Hedging {b)
Sales against the euro 7 {12) - 159) 1
Purchases agamst the euro 1794 813 21 870 90 10
Other - 11 - - {11) -
1,13 [+1] 9 810 F.i] 1 -

a Relates to the hedge of the net mvestment in certain subsidianes i the United Kingdom for a notional amount of £832 million as of
December 31, 2014 (£692 million as of December 31, 2013)

b The economic hedging instruments refate to derivative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39
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2225 Liquidity risk management
Vivend: SA centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash poaling) of all controlied entities {a) that are not subject to local regulations restricting the

transfer of financial assets or {b} that are not subject to other contractual agreements

As of December 31, 2014, the future undiscontinued cash flows related to boerrowings and other financial lablities amounted to
£2,623 milion {compared to a carrying value of €2,347 million} and are presented in Note 251 within the group’s contractual minimum
future payments

As of February 11, 2015, Vivend: cansiders that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its cash and cash equivalents, as well as
the amounts availlable through its current bank credit facility will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital expenditures,
service its debt, pay its Income taxes, dividends and share repurchases, if any, as well as to fund its investment projects, if any, for the next
12 months

Note 23 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

231 Adjustments

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
ltems related to operating actvities with no cash impact
Amoruzation and depreciateon of intangible and tangible assets 4 743 666
Change  provision, net (125) 72}
Other non-cash items from EBIT n {2
Qther
Other income from EBIT 4 (203) (88}
Other charges from EBIT 4 30 50
Proceeds from sales of property plant equipment and miangible assets 2 3 3
Adjustmeants 447 557

232 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of its nterest In SFR to Numencable and recewved €13 166 biltion in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares n the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts This 20% interest in
Numericable - SFR was valued at the stock market's pnce on November 27, 2014 {€33 315 per share}, or €3,244 million As of December 31,
2014, the value of this interest in Vivend:'s Consohidated Statement of Financial Position amounted to €3,987 mithon {please refer to Note
31)

In 2014, there was no significant financing activity with no cash impact

In 2013, there was no significant investing or financing activity with no cash smpact
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Note 24  Transactions with related parties

241 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 24, 2014, Vivend’s General Sharehalders’ Meeting notably appointed three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgon and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Vivendt's Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board also appeinted Mr Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, who had
chaired the group since 2002, as Honorary Chairman The Board appointed Mr Daniel Camus as Chairman of the Audit Commuttee, and Mr
Philippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration Committee

On June 24, 2014, the Supervisory Board alsc appointed the members to the Management Board, which 1s comprised of Messrs Arnaud de
Puyfontaine, who serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe, and Stéphane Rousse!

The Supervisory Board 15 currently comprised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative

Compensation of corporate officers

« The current members of the Management Board received, In respect of therr position as Corporate officers in 2014, a fixed
compensation of €16 milhon and, except for (ts Chairman, extraordinary compensation of €06 millien hinked to the proper
implementation of the divestiture of SFR, previously granted in respect of thewr position as Corparate officers and paid in respect of
therr current position The vanable compensation with respect to 2014 will be paid in 2015 for an aggregate amount of
€2 2 million, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 27, 2015

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr Amaud de Puyfontaing, renounced his employment contract At the General
Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 17, 2015, a proposal will be made to grant him a contractual severance package in the
event of forced departure and subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions

In additton, with respect to 2014, the members of the Management Board in office until June 24, 2014 receved a fixed and
variable compensation in 2014 for an aggregate amount of £2 1 mill:on, and the variable compensation of €1 0 mill:on with respect
to 2013, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 21, 2014

in 2013, the members of the Management Board n office received a fixed and variable compensation with respect to 2012 for an
aggregate amount of €2 3 mill:on in addition, the members of the Management Board in office until June 28, 2012 recewved In
2013 the prorated variable compensation component with respect to 2012, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 22,
2013, for an aggregate amount of €4 6 mithion {excluding any severance payments}

e The aggregate charge recorded by the group with respect to equity-settled share-based compensation plans {perfermance shares,
stock options, and employee stock purchase plan) granted to the members of the Management Board, in office on the grant date,
amounted to €2 million i 2014 {compared to €2 miltion in 2013}

e The amount of net pension obligations toward the current members of the Management Board amounted to €52 million as of
December 31, 2014 On June 24, 2014, the former Chairman of the Management Board exercised nght pension benefits after
23 years of service within the greup and a debnt on plan assets was recorded for €9 4 million

e The amount of the current Chairman of the Supervisory Board's compensation 1s €400,000 per year, subject to the same
performance conditions as the members of the Management Board On February 27, 2015, the Supervisory Board approved the
level of satisfaction of objectives and dec:ded to set the compensation of the current Chairman of the Supervisory Board at
€207,778 for the period from June 24 to December 31, 2014

o  The fixed compensation paid to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board in office until June 24, 2014 amounted to €338,333 in pro-
rata temports (compared to €700,000 paid in 2013}

s The aggregate amount of directors’ fees paid fo the members of the Supervisory Board with respect to 2014 was €1 1 million
{€1 2 mullion with respect to 2013} In addition at its mesting held on April 4 and 5, 2014, the Supervisory Board decided to award
additional compensation of £130,000 to members of the ad fioc Committes, owing to the workload due to its mandate and the high
quality of the work they had contributed

Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detailed descniption of the compensation policy and the compensation and benefits of corporate
officers of Vivendi SA, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code, as amended in June 2013
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242 Other related parties

Excluding corporate officers, Vivends main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive or joint
conteol, and companies over which Vivend) exercises a significant influence (please refer to Note 27 for a list of its main subsidianes, fully
consolidated or accounted for under the equity method), and non-controlling interests that exercise significant influence as of December 31,
2014 on group affihates 1, TVN, which owns 32% of nc+ {a subs:diary of Canal+ Group) as well as corporate officers of the group and its
related subs:diaries, in particular Havas Group and Bolloré Group

Excluding the following transactions with related parties, there are no transactions between Vivend, Havas Group and Bolloré Group and
their corporate officers

immilhions of euros) 2014 2013
Assets
Trade accounts recervable and other 32 35
Of which Havas i1 15
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable and other 12 2
Of winch Havas 5 7
Statement of earings
Operating income 100 88
Of which Havas 2 1
Gperating expenses {r) 70
Of winch Havas (24) 24)
Boiloré i9) (7
Contractual obligations, net off balance sheet 66 B3
Advertising transactions
Of which Advertising sales realized via Havas' agencies 89 88
Media costs realized viz Havas’ agencies 62 {62)

Some subsidiaries of Havas Group render operating services to Vivend and its subsid:aries under arm’s length terms
Regarding Canal+ Group
- as pan of advertising campaigns, customers ¢f Havas Group entered inte transactions through media space with Canal+
Group for an aggregate amount of €89 million in 2014 (€88 million n 2013},
as part of advertising campaigns developed for Canal+, Canalsat, and Canalplay, Canal+ Group entered into transactions with
main media companies through Havas Group and its media spaces for €62 millign in 2014 (€62 million 1n 2013),
- transactions excluding medsa, production, broadcast nights and fees were completed by Havas Group and its subsidiaries for
€9 million in 2014, and
- Havas Group and its subs:diaries developed and designed advertising campaigns in favor of Canal+ Group for €13 milkion in
2014

In addition, Havas and Universal Music Group {UMG) announced the following agreements
- on September 29, 2014 dwgital brand integrations i select UMG music videos by using Mirnad's Academy Award-winning video
technology, and
- onJanuary 5, 2015 formation of Global Music Data Alliance (GMDA) related to consumer’s data
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Note25 Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivendi's matenial contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

* contracts entered into, which relate to the group's business operations, such as content commitments {please refer to Note 10 2),
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded 1n the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases, off-
batance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as fong-term service contracts
and purchase or investment commitments,

= commitments related to the group’s consolidation scope contracted through acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or
sale commitments, contingent assets and habilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture ar
acquisition of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders” agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over
Vivendi's assets,

* commitments related to the group’s financing undrawn confirmed bank credit faciities as well as the management of interest rate,
fareign currency and hguidity nisks {please refer to Notes 21 and 22), and

* contingent assets and habilities related to Itigation in which Vivend| and/or its subsidiaries are either plaintiff or defendant (please
refer to Note 26)

251 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments
Mimmum future payments as of December 31 2014 Total mimrtum future

Total Payments dus in payments as of
{in millons of euros) Note 0i5 20162019 Aftar 2019 December 31, 2013
Borrgwings and other financial abilties 2623 363 2228 3 13967
Content habihites 102 2433 2334 97 2 2335
Consolidated statement of financial posttion items 5,056 2,697 2,326 3 16 302
Contractual content commitments 102 6135 1896 4180 59 4298
Cammereral commitments 2511 1150 325 589 247 2208
Operatng lsases and subleases 2512 640 [:h] 2839 270 2700
tems not recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position 1.935 2302 5057 576 9207
Costractual ohhigations and commercial comatitments 12991 4,999 1383 609 25,509

2511 Off balance sheet commercial commitments
Munimum future payments as of Decernber 31 2014 Total minimum future
Total _ Dug in payments as of

{in millions of euros} 2015 2016- 2019 After 2019 December 31,2013
Satellite transponders 752 18 399 235 685
Investment commitments 85 55 30 1078
Gther 510 235 253 16 732
Gven commrtments 1347 408 588 b 2,49%
Satellite transpanders {187} {83} {100} {4) {159)
Other - - {128)
Receved commitments {187} {83) {t00) {4) (287)
Net total {a) 1,160 325 588 247 2209

a

The decrease n off balance sheet commercial commitments was mainly related to SFR sold on November 27, 2014, and GVT, whose
sale by Vivend) 15 underway (€932 mullton and €127 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2013}
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2512 Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Minmum future ieases as of December 31, 2014 Total - minsmum future
Total Due in leases as of December
(in millions of euros} 2015 2016- 2019 After 2019 3, 2013
Buldings 652 B4 298 2710 2,695
Qther 6 3 3 - 221
Leases 658 87 m 270 2916
Buildengs (18} ] 112} - {216)
Subleases {18} {6} (12} - {216)
Net total {a) 640 81 789 270 2,700

a  The decrease in the amount of off balance sheet operating leases and subleases was mainly related to SFR sold on November 27,
2014, and GVT, whose sale by Vivend: 1s underway (€1,790 mitlion and €451 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2013)

252 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Ref |Context Characterstics {nature and amouni) j_ Exptry
- iGwvelt commitmentss - B g ' RS N . B P = 5]
Indmdual nghts ta training for French employees Approxsmately 0 4 million hours [+ 6 million hours as of December 31 2013)
Obligatons in connection with pension plans and post retirement benefits|Please refer 1o Note 19
{a} {Other guarantees given Cumulated amount of €83 milkkon icompared to €156 million as of December 31 2013]
. _iRecéwved conimiiments - - A ]
{b} |Agreements on the digstal distnbuton of mesic nghts Minimum guarantees
Other guarantees recerved Mo impact as of December 31 2014 [compared to €1 milkion as of December 31 2013)

a  Vivend: grants guarantees in various forms to financial institutions on behalf of its subsidianies in the course of their operations
b Manly relates to commitments recaived by UMG from third parties in connection with agreements subject to minimum guarantees on
the digital distnbution of music nghts

253 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connaction with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivend: has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
securities

» (n September 18, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered inte with Telefonica, Vivendi committed to sell GVT (please refer to Note
32),

o the hquidity rights related to Vivendi's interest in Numericable - SFR are described in Note 3 1, and

o the liquidity nights in respect of the strategic partnership between Canat+ Group, IT1, and TVN are detailed in Note 255 below

Vivendr and 1ts subsidianies have granted or recewved purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affiliates and unconsolidated
Investments
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254 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the

divestiture or acquisition of shares

Ref. [Context Ch ics (neture and ) Exgig
R T T Y e R D Py R T 7 = A SCRICIk V5"
{a)  |Acquisition of Ballord Group s channels (September 2012} Commitments undertaken in connection with the authenzanon of the acquisition with
the French Competition Authonty and m?
the French Broadcasting Authenty 2015
{Mergar of Cyfra+ and *n platforms (November 2012) Reciprocal guarantees in faver of TVN
PLN 1 bilion in the event of a bréach of any represantation or warranty or covenants and 015
PLN 300 milhon 1r the event of a breach of speaifi; representation or warranty
(&) ]Canal+ Group s pay TV actiwires in France [January 2007 July 2017) New approval of the acquistbion of TPS and CanalSatelkite subject to compliance with injunctions eedered by 2037
tha Franch Competiton Authanty
(&) |Drvastiture of Canal+ Nordic {Octobaer 2003) Distribution guarantees expired as of December 31 2014 given in faver of Czneal Dignal and Telenor Broadcast | 2014
Holding by a formet subsichary
{d) |Dvestitura of NC Numericabla (March 2005) Speciic guarantees capped at €241 million (incfuding tax and secial nsks) expired as of December 31 2014 20t
Dwvestiture of PSG {June 2006) Unlirited specific guarantess 2018
Divasuture of UMG manufactunng and distnibution eperations (May 2008) |Vanous commitments for manufactunng and distnbution services 2018
{8} JNBC Unwversal transaction {May Z2004) and subsequent amendments {2005 {- Breaches of tax reprasentations
2010} Obligation 0 cover the Most Favored Nation provisions and
Claims related to remedia! actions on May 11 2014 at the latest 2014
() {Dvasuture of Sithe (Decembar 2000 Speciic guarantees capped at 3480 milion
{g) [Sate of real estate assets (June 2002 Autanomous first demand guarantees capped at €150 milon in tosal {tax and decannial guarantees) 07
{h) |Divastiture of PTC shares (Dacember 2610) Commitments undertzken in orer to end libigation over the shate ownership of PTC in Faland
{1} |Sale of Actsion Blizzard [October 2013} unliited general guarantees and

Sale of Maroc Telecom group (May 2014|
Sale of SFR (November 2014}
Other contingent lizbekies

- tax guarantees capped at $200 million under ¢ertain circumstances
Commitments undgriaken in connection with the sale {please reter to Note 3 3)
Commitments undertaken in connaction with the sale [please refer to Note 3 1)
Cumulated amount of 7 matlion {unchanged compared ta December 31, 2013

(a)

(d)

[]]

[Contingentfassuts]
Acquistion of Boltoré Group § channefs (September 2012}
Acquisition of 40% of N Vision {Novembar 2012)

Margar of Cyfra+ and *n platform (November 2012}

Acquisivon of Kinowelt {Apnil 2008}
Drvastiture of NC Numaricable (March 2005)

Acquisitzon of EMI Recorded Music (September 2012)

Divestiture of Xfara {2003}
Other contingent assets

Guarantees capped at €120 million

{Guarantess mada by Tl capped at spproximately

- €28 mullion for general guaranteas expired on May 30 2044 and
€277 mullion for specific guarantees including tax matters free and full ownership of shares soid
authanzations / approvals for the exercise of the actvity)
Retiprocal gusrantess in favor of TYN
PN 1 bdhon in the event of a breach of any 1epresantation or warranty or covenants
PLN 300 mullion in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty and
PLN 145 milkon related to Meowision s unutilzed tax losses carned forward
Specific guarantaes notably on film nghts ware granted by the sellers
€151 million counter guaranteed by Orange expired as of December 31 2014

Commutments ralating to full pension abligauens n the Urited Kingdom assumed by Citr and

Guaranteas relating ta losses stemming from taxes and htigation claims 15 particular those related to pension
obligatiens in tha United Kingdom
Guarantess amount to €71 milhon

Cumulated amauni of €86 million {comparad to 870 million as of Decembar 31 2013)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabilities described above

a
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As part of the French Competition Authonity’s approval of the acquisstton of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and
D17, respectively} on July 23, 2012, Vivend: and Canat+ Group gave certain commitments These commitments provide for restrictions
on the acquisition of rights for American movies and television series from certain Amencan studios and for French movies, the
separate negotiation of certain nghts for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series, imitations on the acquisition by D8 and
D17 of French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of rights to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air channels
through a competitive bidding process These commuitments are made for a five-year period and are renewable once if the French
Competition Authorty, after having performed a competition analysis, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authonty {Conser! Supérieur de FAudiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obhigations, transfer nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares for
a minmum period of two and a half years

On December 23, 2013, the French Council of State annulled, with a delayed effect as from July 1, 2014, the French Competition
Authority's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed DB and D17, respectively), which had been
approved on July 23, 2012 On January 15, 2014, Vivendi and Canal+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition
Authority On Apnil 2, 2014, the French Competition Authonty reapproved the transaction, subject to comphance with commitments
given by Vivendi and Canal+ Group These commitments are similar to the ones contained in the previous 2012 authorization except
for an addrtional comm:itment relating to the acquisition of broadcasting rights covering second and thurd extubition windows for
French films Ali commitments are binding for a period of five years starting July 23, 2012 In 2017, the French Competition Authority
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will have the opportunity to request a renewal of these commtments for the same duration, If deemed necessary, after a new
competitive analysis

On August 30, 2008, the merger between TPS and the Canal+ Group was authorized, in accordance with the merger control
regulations, pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Econamy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivend: and Canal+ Group
complyng with certain undertakings for @ maximum period of six-years, with the exception of those commitments conceming the
availability of channels and VOD, which could not exceed five-years

On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authonty opened an enquiry in respect of the implementation of certain undertakings
given by Canal+ Group In connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivendi and Canal + Group’s filed motions requesting the annulment of
the French Competition Authonty’s dectsions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 million fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 milion Under the second motion, the transaction was once again cleared, subject to
comphance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has mplemented 2 number of these injunctions, some since July 23, 2012 and others since October 23, 2012 The
injunctions mainly focus on
¢ Acquisition of movie nights
- by imtting the duration of output deals to three years, requining separate agreements for different types of nghts (first pay-TV
window, second pay-TV window, seres, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- by the Canal+ Group divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Senes — OCS SNC or by adopting measures limiting 1ts influence
over Orange Cinema Series — OCS SNC On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with
injunction 2(b} ordered by the French Competition Authonty on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Seres - OCS
SNC’ Board of Directors resigned from their positions As a result, Multithématiques appainted by letter with an effective
date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to Multithématiques to the Board of Directors of
Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC
o Distnbution of pay-TV channels
- by the distnbution of a minimum number of iIndependent channels, the distnbution of any channe! holding prem:um nights, and
by drafting a mode! distribution deal relating to independent channels included in the Canalsat offer,
- by the obligation to promote, in a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving mare than 500,000 subscribers, and
- by making all its own movie channels distributed by Canal+ Group (Ciné+ channels) available to third-party distributors
{unbundling}
¢ Video-on-demand {VOD} and subscription videg-on-demand {SV0D)
by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD rights on a non-exclusive basis, and not combining
them with rights purchased for hinear distribution on pay-TV,
by offering Studiocanal's YOD and SVOD rights to any interested operator, and
by forbidding exclusive distnbution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service Providers
platforms
These njunctions are imposed for a peniod of five-years and are renewable once At the end of the five-year penod, the French
Competiion Authonity will review the competition situation to determine whether the injunctions should be kept n place If market
condttions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be bited or partially or totally
revised An independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authonity on September 25, 2012,
will be responsible for manitoring the implementation of the injunctions

In connection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nordic i October 2003, Canal+ Group had retained distribution guarantees given in favor
of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary These guarantess, which were covered by a counter-guarantee
gwven by the buyers, expired on December 31, 2014

As part of the divestiture of NC Numericable an March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 million
cap {including tax and soctal nisks) Specific risks relating to cable networks used by NC Numenicable were included in this maximum
amount and werg counter-guaranteed by Orange for up to €151 million As of December 31, 2014, all of these guarantess were
expired

As part of the NBC Universal transaction which occurred n May 2004, Vivend) and General Electric (GE} gave certain reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transaction, and Vivend: retained certain liabilities relating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivendi and GE undertook to indemnify each other against losses resulting from, among other things, any breach of their respective
representations, warranties and covenants

Netther party will have any indemnification obligations for losses arising as a result of any breach of representations and warranties
{1} for any indvidual 1tem where the loss 1s less than $10 mullion and {1} 1n respect of each individual item where the loss 1s equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of all losses exceeds $325 millign In that event, the liable party will be
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required to pay the amount of losses which exceeds $325 milhon, but In ne event will the aggregate indemnification payable exceed
$2,088 milhion

In addition, Vivend: will have indemnification obligations for 50% of every US dollar of loss up 1o $50 million and for all losses 1
excess of $50 million relating to liabilities ansing out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth in certain contracts As part of
the unwinding of IACI's nterest 1n VUE on June 7, 2005, Vivendi's commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivendi's liability 1s now subject to a de minimis exception of $10 million and a payment basket of $325 million

The representations and warranties given as part of the NBC Universal transaction other than those in respect of authonization,
capitahization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of emvironmental claims related to remediatien had to
be brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of imitations

The sale of Vivendr’s interest in NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

f In connection with the sale of its 49 9% :nterest in Sithe to Exelon in December 2000, Vivendi granted customary representations and
warranties Claims, other than those made in relatian to foreign subsidiary commutments, are capped at $480 milhon in addiion,
claims must exceed $15 million, except If they relate to foreign subsidiaries er the divestiture of certain electrical stations to Reliant in
February 2000 Some of these warranties expired on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments still exist and any
potential habilities retated to contamination nisks will survive for an indefinite period of time

g ln connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivend) granted two autonomous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several subsidiaries of Nexity (Nexim 1 to 6) The guarantees are effective until June
30, 2017

h On December 14, 2010, Vivend, Deutsche Telekam, Mr Solorz-Zak {Elektnm’s main shareholder) and Elektnm’s creditors, including
the Palish State and Elektrim’s bondholders, entered into varous agreements to put an end to the hiigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Poiska Teleforia Cyfrowa (PTC), a mobile telscommunication operator With respect ta these agresments, Vivend
notably entered into the following commitments

» \Vivend granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that was capped at €600 miltion, which expired 1n August
013,

*  Vivend committed to compensate the Law Debenture Trust Company {LDTC) against any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LDTC in cornection with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first €125 million,
46% between £125 m:lhon and €288 million, and 50% thereafter, and

¢ Viwvend committed to compensate Elektnm’s adrinistrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against it, in connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

As part of the sale of 88% of Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 {the "Closing Date”),
Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction
(representations, warranties and covenants} Vivendi, ASAC il LP, and Activiston Bhzzard undertock to iIndemnify each ether against
any losses stemming from any breach of their respective commitments  Such indemnification 1s unfimited as to t:me and amount

In addition, Vivend) has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other habilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary
Co {"Amber"), the Vivendi subsidiary acquired by Actvision Blizzard, relating to periods preceding the Closing Date Such
indemnification 15 unlimited as to tme and amount Tax attnbutes {mamly net operating loss} held by Amber and assurned by
Activision Blizzard were estimated at more than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax benefrt of approximately
$245 million Vivend: agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject
to a cap of $200 million mited to taxable years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

On May 22, 2014, in accordance with the agreements entered nto on July 25, 2013, Vivend: sold a fust tranche of 415 miltion
Activision Blizzard shares, representing 58% interest in this company Following this sale, Vivend) owns a residual interest of
41 5million Activision Bhizzard shares, which 1s subject to a lock-up restriction that expired on January 7, 2015 Since this date,
Vivendi 1s free to sell its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Actwision Blizzard agreed to file a registration statement prior to each sale window to enable Vivend: to sell the Activision Blizzard
shares in a public offering

Prior to any sale of Activision Blizzard shares by Vivend: in a market offenng that occurs prior to the second anniversary of the Closing
Date (October 11, 2015}, Vivend: must notify Activision Blizzard of 1ts intention to sell the shares and Activision Blizzard may, at its
election, offer to purchase some or all of the shares that Vivend: intends to sell in such market offering Vivendi may accept or decline
such offer at its sole discretion

ASAC Il LP was also subject to a lock-up provision which expired on Aprit 9, 2014

I Vivend: received guarantees in respect of the repayment of amounts paid in July 2007 (€71 million), in the event of a favourable
deciston of the Spanish Courts concerming Xfera's tax Iitigation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees include a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 mullion
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Several guarantees given in 2014 and during prior years 1n connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time
penods or statute of fimeations of certain guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabiings, in
consideration of share ownership, or given In connection with the dissolution or winding-up of cenain businesses are stili i effect To the
best of Vivend:'s knowledge, no material claims for indemnification against such frabrlities have been made to date

fn addition, Vivend: regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and litigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical in such transactions

255 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders” or investors’ agreements [primanly those relating to nct), Vivend: holds certain nights [such as pre-emptive
nights and prionty nights) that give 1t control over the capital structure of consolidated companies that are partially owned by minonty
shareholders Conversely, Vivend: has granted similar rights to these other sharsholders in the event that 1t sells its interests to third parties

In addition, pursuant to other sharsholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affihates or unconsolidated interests, Vivend:
and its subsid:anes have given or received certain nghts (pre-emptive and other rghts) entitiing them to mantamn their nghts as shareholder

20% interest in Numernicable - SFR

The main terms of the shareholders’ agreement between Altice and Vivendi resulting from Vivend)'s interest in Numencable - SFR are
described in Note 31

Strateguc partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN

The key liquidity rights provided under the strategic pantnership formed in November 2012 in relation to television services 1n Poland are as
follows

- Atthe level of N-Vision

»  Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire ITI's remaming N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time during the two three-
month periods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value

» conversely, In the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option on [11's mierest in N-Vision, IT) has a call option
10 acquire Canal+ Group's interest in N-Vision, exercisalble at any time during the two threg-month periods beginning May
30, 2016 and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June
30, 2018, at the then-prevatling market value, and

+  Canal+ Group and [Tl each has the fiquidity right, following the above call option penods, to sell its entire interest in N-
Vision

- Atthe level of nc+
»  Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% mterest in nc+ at market value, which 1s exercisable duning the two
three-month penods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016,
¢ (f Canak+ Group exercises its call aption, Canal+ Group will be required to acquire ITI's remaining nterest in N-Vision, and
& 1n the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has liquidity nghts in the form of an Initral Public
Offering of its interest in nc+

In addition, 1n compliance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Cammercial Code, it 1s stated that some nights and abligations of Vivends
resulting from shareholders’ agreements {nc+} may be amended or terminated in the event of a change i control of Vivend: or a tender offer
for Vivendi being made These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiahity provisions

256 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2014, no asset in Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mortgage for the benefit of third
parties

In addition, the amount of assets of GVT, a discontinued operation, which were pledged or martgaged for the benefit of third parties,
amounted to €183 mill:on as of December 31, 2014 (compared to €128 million as of December 31, 2013} This amount refated to assets
pledged with respect to judicial guarantees for various litigations

As of December 31, 2013, the amount of assets of SFR, sold on November 27, 2014, which were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of
third parties amounted to £84 mithon
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Note 26  Litigation

In the nomal course of its business, Vivend 15 subject to vanous lawswits, arbitrations and govemmental, admimstrative or other
proceedings {collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings™)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incwrred and when the
obligation can reasanably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount cf the prowision represents Vivend’s best estimate of the
nsk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such nisk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivendi for all claims and 1itigations amounted to €1,206 million, compared to €1,37% miflion as of December 31, 2013 {please
refer to Note 18)

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company’s knowtedge,
any pending or threatened proceedings tn which it 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company's and on its group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivendi's Financial Staternents for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivend itigation

Secunttes Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed agawnst Vivend, Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Gourt for the Central District of California On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decrded to consolidate these claims under its jurisdiction into a single action entitled in re Vivendr Universal SA Securities
Litigation

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securities
Act of 1933 and US Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consolidated class action suit that may banefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2807, the Court decided, concerning the pracedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class {"class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivend: (formerly Vivend Universal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the ciass certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivend: on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the indwvidual actions with the securities class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury retumed 1ts verdict it found that 57 statements made by Vivend: between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matensally false or misleading and were made in violation of Section 10{b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged “iquidity nsk” which
reached 1ts peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that nerther Mr Jean-Mare Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo ware
liable for the atleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the yury found that the price of Vivend:'s shares was artificrally inflated on each
day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and £11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action
The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Paris or New York markets {12 days) during the elass perod

On June 24, 2010, the US Suprems Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Momison v National Australia Bank case, that American
securities law only apphes to “the purchase or sale of a security histed on an Amencan stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other security in the United States ”

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the "Momisen” decision, confirmed Vivendi's
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendr's ordinary shares on the Pans stock exchange and Imited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi’s ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivend:’s post-tnial
motions challenging the jury’s verdict The Court also dechined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking o appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Coust of Appeals demed the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pans stock exchange
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In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Morrison decision, also dismissed the claims
of the individual plamt:ffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Paris stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationahities other than those covered by the cerufication
decision dated March 22, 2007

The clarms process commenced an December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file 2 claim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of therr claim These
claims are currently being processed and venfied by an independent claims administrator and by the parties Vivend: will then have the right
to challenge the ments of these clams On November 10, 2014, at Vivend:'s initiative, the parties filed @ mutually agreed wpon proposed
order requesting the Court to enter a partial frnal judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covering a substantial portion of the claims
Certain large claims were excluded from thrs proposed judgment order as Vivendi continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
those clams On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed its Notice of Appeal with the Second Circuit Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivendi's appeal in the Liberty Media case

Vivend! believes that 1t has solid grounds for an appeal Vivendi intends to challenge, among other i1ssues, the plantiffs’ theornies of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the tnal Several aspects of the
verdict will also be challenged

0On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing 1n the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles descnibed in Notes 13 1 (Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 (Provisions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2008, 1n an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivend: might have to pay to plamtiffs Vivend re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Secunities class action [itigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June 24, 2010 in the Momison case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as n 2009, Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at £100 rllion as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, If any, that Vivend: might have to pay solely to shargholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend: considers that this provision and the assumptions on which 1t 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivend might have to pay to the plantiffs could differ from the current estmate As 1s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on whrch this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend:

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Cerporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendi and Jean-Mare Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivend: Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certan contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consohdated with the secunties class action for pre-tnal purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avall themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action jury with
respect to Vivend's hahility (theory of “collateral estoppel”)

The Liberty Media jury returned 1ts verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivendi hable to Liberty Media for making certan false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained 1n the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Med:a in the amount of €765 million Vivend: filed certain post-trial motions challenging the sury's verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tnal

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of retum on one-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while it considered
two pending post-tnal motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivendi filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which 1t believes 1t has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Viverd) filled a motien in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously On Apr:l 4, 2013, the Caurt of
Appeals 1ssued an Order granting Vivendi’s motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Med:a case together with the Class Action Vivend filed its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivend: maintained as of December
31, 2014, the provision = the amount of €945 million recorded as of December 31, 2012
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Triat of Vivendi's Former Officers in Pans

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office (Parquet de Pans) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading infermation regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 200t Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivendi joined the proceedings
as a ol party

The tnal took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance {Trbunal de Grande
Instance de Par:s), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, in which 1t confirmed the previous recognition of Vivendi as a civil party Messrs Jean-Marie Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys recewved suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mare Messier and
Guillaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages te shareholders who are entitied to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend
Officers as well as some cwvil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Pans Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of €150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading information, & 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €£850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended prisen sentence and a fine of
€5 mullion for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for nsider trading On May 19, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal rendered 1ts judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissemination of false or misteading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the critena for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Mane Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for insider trading and they received fines in the amount of €850,000 (of which €425,000 1s suspended) and €5 million (of which
€2 5 million 15 suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set aside the fower court's order for the payment of damages (€10 per share) to
certain shareholders and former sharehalders of Vivend: (the "civil action™) With regard to Vivends, the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a cvii party to the proceedings, exonerated 1t from any responsibility and vorded the demand for damages brought aganst it by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court {Cour de Cassation) by certan of the
defendants and some civif parties

LBBW and al against Vivend

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional 1nvestors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, Italy, Sweden, Belgum and Austna filed a
complaint agawnst Vivend: with the Pans Commerctal Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they aflegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications 1ssued by Vivend in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Aprl 2002 Subsequently, on Aprif 5 and
April 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of Idaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment
Management Corporation aisc filed a complaint against Vivendi on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans
appointed a "third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their alleged holding of the securities

Calfornia State Teachers Retirement System and al agamnst Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier

On Apni 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complamt against Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier befare the Paris Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend: and 1ts former CEO,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs ioined these proceedings In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plaintiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appointed a “third party*
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence their alleged holding
of the securities

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , its Board of Directors, and Vivend)

In August 2013, a denvative actron was mitiated n the Los Angeles Supenior Court by an individual shareholder against Act:vision Blizzard,
Inc {"Activision Blizzard” or the "Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivend: The plaintff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend's share ownership
in the Company The pla:ntiff, Todd Miller, cfaims that the transactwon would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Bnan Kelly, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chainman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were arded and abetted by Vivend:

On September 11, 2013, a second derivative act:on based on essentially the same allegations was initiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonty shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minority shareholder, Douglas Hayes, mitiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Actwision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Detaware
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Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on Qctaber 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overtumed this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the menits

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions mto a single action entitied /o Re
Activision Bhizzard Inc Securities Lirgation

On March 14, 2014, a simwlar new action was initiated in the Delaware Coust of Chancery by a minonity shareholder, Mark Benston Thig
action was consolidated into the in Re Activiston Bitzzard Inc Secunities Litigation proceeding currently underway

In Navember 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced The Court is expected to approve the settlement agreement at an vpcoming heanng

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patrimoine to Unihail

Unibail has called its indemnification guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Pathmoine {a former subsidiary of Vivendi) in connection with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1999 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Anjou Patnmoine to tndemnify Urubail for a tax hiability ansing
from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims On October 31, 2008, the Versalles Court of Appeal reversed the High Court's
ruling, demed atl of Unibail's claims and ordered 1t to reimburse Anjou FPatnmoine for all sums paid under the first ruling On November 27,
2008, Uniba! appealed against this decision On September 11, 2013, the Franch Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2008 ruling of the
Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case 1o the Pars Court of Appeal The heanng will take place on Apnl 2, 2015

Vwvendi Deutschiand against FIG

Further to a clam filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi} against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berfin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the bwildings and to pay
damages Vivendi delivered a guarantee so as ta pursue settlement negotiations As ne settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment Qn April 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court rssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 Cn June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regiona! Berlin Court in April 2009, which decided in
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invahidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BiM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This decision 1s now final In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for add:tional damages In the
Berhin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of €3 9 milhon together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision

Telefonica aganst Vivendi in Braz|

On May 2, 2011, TELESP (now Telefonica Brazil), filed a claim against Vivendi before the Cvil Court of Sdo Paulo (3* Vara Civel do Foro
Central da Comarca da Caprtal do Estado de 530 Paulo) The company 15 seeking demages for having been blocked from acquinng control of
GVT and damages in the amount of 15 million Brazilian reals {currently approxmately €4 9 million) corresponding to the expenses incurred
by Teleforica Brazil in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September 2011, Vivend filed an objection to junsdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of Sdo Paulo to hear a case involving parties from Cuntiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was conftrmed on Apni 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Teleforuca's claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivend's responsibility for
Telefonica’s failing to acquire GVT The Court notably highlighted the inherently nsky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivendt's counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carried out against 1t by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court’s decision to the Sth
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Séo Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivend and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction {which is to be
signed on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT), the case has been suspended

Dynamo against Vivendi

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages agasmst Vivendi before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
{S&0 Paulo stock exchange) According to Dyname, a former sharehalder of GVT that sold the vast majonty of its stake in the company before
Novamber 13, 2008 (the date on which Vivend: took control of GVT), the prowision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 1s crossed (the "poison pilt provision”) should aflegedly have applied to the acquision by Vivend:
Vivendi, noting that this poison pill provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders” Mesting in the event of an acqusition by Vivend
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo’s allegations The arbstral tribunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
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Chamber should be scheduled shortly In parallel, en February 6, 2013, Dynamo filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janeiro to compe! CVM and Bovespa to provide the arbitral tribunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivend: This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitrat tribunal could make such an
application On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro Court of Appeal overturned the lower court's decision and authonzed the provision of
the above-mentioned information solely to the arbitral tribunal, denying Dynamo access to the information

Hedging-Griffo agatnst Vivend

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gnffo funds filed a complaint agawnst Vivend before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa (Sdo Paulo
Stock Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendi completed the
acquisttion of GVT in 2009 On December 18, 2013, the arbitral tnbunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs The
Hedging-Gnffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between tha price at which they sold therr GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivend! 1n connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the "poison pilf” provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend: believes that the decrsion taken by the Hedging-Griffo funds to sell theirr GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivendi aga:nst Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivend: It also denias any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as it was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend or Telefonica

Litigation invalving Vivendi subsidianes

Parahole Réumon

In July 2007, the Group Parabole Réunion filed a iegal action before the Panis Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nights
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decisien In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was unsuccessiul in its claims concerning the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunicn appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the context of this dispute, vanous junsdictions have taken the
opportumity ta apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channei, Canat+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a
channel of simitar attractiveness Noncompliance with this order would result i a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a
claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnbution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre {Trbunal de grande instance de Nanterre} seeking enforcement of this fine (a request for such enforcement having been previously
rejected by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November 6, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded 1ts claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Class:c, Cult and Star channels On Apnil 9, 2013, the enforcement
magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible  He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
legal obligation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion Parabole
Réunion filed an appeal against this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared the appeal filed by Parabole
Réumon inadmissible Parabole Réunion filed an appeal on ponts of law and filed a second appeal against the Apnl 9, 2013 decision

In parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages

On Apnl 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnibution before the Pans Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfili their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated into a single action On Apn! 29, 2014, the Pans Tribunal of First Instance recognized the
contractual liabilty of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quality of channels made available to Parabole Réunion The Trbunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Paris Tribunal of Fust Instance

BelIN Sports against the National Rugby League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Competition authority against Canal+ Group and the Naticnal Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting rghts to the “TOP 14" for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority imposed intenim measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreement with the Natienal
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new call for tenders process be orgamized Canal+ Group and the National
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Pans Court of Appeal
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On October 9, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
Natienal Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nghts to the TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision

Action hrought by the French Competition Authonty regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2008, further to s voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authonty sent Vivend! and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations it alleges that Canal+ Group has abused 1ts dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivendi and Canai+ Group colluded with TF1 and M6, on the one hand, and with Lagardere, on the other Vivend: and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authonty rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other aflegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authonity requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distrbution rights on channels broadcast by the Group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive rights on TF1, M6 and Lagardare channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On October 30,
2013, the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group agarnst TF1, M6, and France Téléwision

On December 8, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Tétévision groups in the French-language fitm market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption nghts into co-production
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competition  The French Competition Authority 1s examining the case

Canal+ Group aganst TF1, and TMC Regie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Regre fited a complaint with the French Competition Authonty against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie in the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertistng division and refusing to promote the D8 channel duning its launch The French Competition Authonity 1s examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a claim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre (Tnbuna! de grande instance de Nanterre) by Copie France
who 15 seeking compensation in respect of external hard drives used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
extemal drive used by Canal+ 15 "dedicated” to the set-tap boxes and therefore 1t should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France
believes that the applicable amount of the compensation 1s €45 per hard drive as opposed to €8 7

Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competibon Authority about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling tts satellite
subscription called “cards only” (enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled sateilite decoders,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston) In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston fited a request for injunctive relief
aganst Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Pans, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to termnate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of sateflite subscriptions called "cards only” On October 17, 2014, the Pans Commercral
Court 1ssued an order denying Aston’s requests  On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Panss
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted rts request and suspended the decision of Canat + Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Autherity renders its decision on the menits of the case

Complaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and Califorma against Umiversal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices n the context of sales of CDs and Interngt music downicads These complants have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process is underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on hne sales of music downloads and master ringtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions

Financiai Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivend /129




Friday February 27 2015

Capitol Records and EMI Music Pubhishing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing filed a joint complaint against MP3Tunes and its founder, Michae!
Robertson, fer copynght infringement on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The tnal was held in March 2014, and, on March
19, 2014, the jury retumed a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records It found the defendants hiable for knowingly allowing the
unauthorized content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages in the amount of $41 milhion On October 30, 2014 the
Court confimned the verdict but entered judgment In the reduced amount of $122 milon The defendants have appealed against the
tudgment

Mireille Porte against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefani Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireille Porte {AKA "Orlan”} filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefami Germanotta (AKA “Lady
Gaga”) and Universal Music France with the Pans Tribunal of First Instance {Tribunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alleged copyright
infringement of several of Orlan’s artistic works

James Clar against Rikanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clair filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Parts Tribunal of First Instance {Tubunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alleged infringement of his work

Litigation volving GVT (discontinued operation}

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

GVT, kike all other telecommunications operators, 1s party in several Brazilian States to various proceedings concemning the application of the
“ICMS” tax {Imposto Sober Circulagde de Mercadonas e Prestagdo de Servigos), wiich 1s a tax on operations relating to the circulation of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electnicity services

GVT 1s notably a party to libigation i varnous Brazilian States congcerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings initiated by GVT, ail have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes in Brazil

The Brazilian tax authorities argue that the assessment of the taxes known as "FUST” (Fundo da Universalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagtes), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazilian territory, including in
areas that are not econamically viable, and "FUNTTEL” (Fundo para Desenvolvimento Tecnoldgroco das Telecomunicagdes), a federal tax to
finance technological nvestments in Brazhan telecommunications services, should be based on the company's gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would |ead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT is challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authonty from the
tederal judge

Proceedings Brought against Telecommunications Operaters in Brazil Regarding the Application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were initiated against all the telecommunications operators in Brazil, sncluding GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” {Programa de Integragdo Social) and "COFINS” (Contribuigédo para Financiamento da Segunidade
Socral), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments n
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the histonic operators as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows it to
set its own tanffs
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Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity
method

As of December 31, 2014, approximately 540 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method (compared to
approximately 630 entities as of December 31, 2013)

Vivend) S A

Groupa Canal+ 5.A
Société d Ediwon ce Canal Plus (a)
Multithématiques SAS
Canaht Overseas SA S
03
Studiocanal S A
[Tl Neowision
TVN
VSTV (b}

Universal Music Group Inc
Uneversal Musi Group Holdings Inc
UMG Recordings inc
Vevo

S1G 104

Unwersal Intematienal Mustc BY
Universal Music Entertainment GmbH
Unwversal Music LLC
Unmversal Music France S A S
Unwversal Music Holdings Lsmited

EM Group Waorldwide Holding Lid

Vivendi Villags
Sae Tickets
Digitick
Wengo
Watchever Group S A

Watchever GmbH
Elektnm Telekomunikacja

Discentinuad businesses

Global Village Telecom § A (c)

SFR{d)

Maroc Telecom S A (g)

Note

3
5
3
3

C Consolidated, E Equity, na, not applicable

December 37 2014 December 31 2013

Country Accounting Voung Owriership Actounting Voting Ownership
Method interest lnterest Method Interest Interest

France Parent company Porent company
France c 100% 100% [H 100% 100%
France c 4% 43% C 49% 49%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Frarca c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France [ 100% T00% C 100% 100%
Paland c 51% 5% C 51% 8%
Poland E 9% 26% 3 45% 5%
Vietnam C 43% 49% C 49% 43%
United States c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Urnted States [ 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Urited States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United States E 43% 45% £ 7% 7%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Netherlands c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Germany C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Japan c 100% 100% C 100% 1680%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Uruted Kingdom c 100% 100% c 100% 160%
Unted Kingdom c 100% 190% c 100% 100%
United Kingdom c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France c 100% 100% c 100% 160%
France c 100% 0% c 100% 5%
France c 100% 100% o 100% 100%
Germany ¢ 100% 100% 100% 100%
Potand c 100% 100% c 00% 100%
Brazi C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Fzance na c 100% 100%
Morocco na c 3% 53%

a  Vivendi consoiidated Soctété d’Edition de Canal Plus since (1} Vivendi has majority control over the board of directers, (i1} no other
shareholder or shareholder group 1s 1n a position to exercise substantive participating nghts that would aflow them to veto or hlock
decisions taken by Vivendi and {111} Vivend: assumes the majority of nisks and benefits pursuant to an agreement with this company
through Canal+ Distnbution SA S Canal+ Distrbution SA S, wholly-owned by Vivend), guarantees thts company’s results in return
for exclusive commercial nghts to its subscriber base

b VSTV (Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 15 held 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a subsidiary of VTV (the
Vietnamese publrc television company) This company has been consolidated by Vivend: given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over 1t pursuant to a general delegation that was granted by the majonty shareholder and pursuant to the

company’s bylaws

¢ OnSeptember 18, 2014, Vivend: entered :nto a definitive agreement with Teleformca for the safe of GVT

d  On November 27, 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of SFR to Numericable Group

e  OnMay 14, 2014, Vivendi completed the sale of its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group
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Note 28  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivendi SA in 2014 and 2013 to 1ts statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms {including fees related to
discontinued operations in 2014 and 2013 at prorate temporis, if any) were as follows

KPMG S A Emst & Young et Autres

Amount Percentage Amgount Percentage Total
{in millions of suros) 2014 2013 2014 213 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Statutory audit, certification consolidated and
individual financial statements audit
Issuer 06 07 10% 10% 07 09 10% 13% i3 16
Fully consolidated subsidianies 41 42 73% B0% 55 56 75% 80% 96 98
Other work and services directly related to the
statutory audst
Issuer 05 04 9% 6% 03 4% - 08 04
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 01 07 2% 10% 05 01 7% 1% 06 08
Subtotal 53 60 4% 86% 10 66 96% 94% 123 126
Other services provided by the network to fully
consclidated subsidianes
Legal tax and soctal maiters 02 07 3% 10% 0?2 03 % 5% 04 10
Other 02 03 3% 4% 01 01 1% 1% 03 04
Subtotal 04 10 6% 14% 03 04 4% 6% o7 14
Total 57 10 100% 100% 1.3 70 100% 100% 130 140
i—— B —§——1
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Note29  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivendi SA has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidiaries, incorporated i England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, 1n order for them to claim exemptions from audit, with respect to fiscal year 2014, under section 4794 of the UK Companies Act
2006

Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
CENTENARY UK LIMITED 03478918
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 03506757
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 18329
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
EGW USD 8107589
EMI OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED 403200
EMI{IP) LIMITED 3984464
EMI CATALOGUE INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038313
EMI GROUP AMERICA FINANCE LIMITED 2415597
EMI GROUP DANISH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 2818%
EMI GROUP ELECTRONICS LIMITED 461611
EMI GROUP FINANCE DENMARK LIMITED 2422007
EMI GROUP HOLDINGS (UK} 3158108
EMI GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1407770
EMI GROUP WORLDWIDE 3158106
EMI INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038307
EMI LIMITED 83317
EMI RECORDED MUSIC {CHILE) LIMITED 07934340
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (ITALY) LIMITED 6420969
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (UK} UMITED 6407212
EMI RECORDS GERMANY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420927
EMI RECOROS ITALY HOLDCQ LIMITED 6420934
EMI RECORDS UK HOLDCO LIMITED £380003
EMIG 4 LIMITED 3038275
FLUM MANAGEMENT LIMITED 07908238
G RICORDI & CO {LONCON) LIMITED 228233
GLOBE PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 05489649
JAYDONE LIMITED 4631083
LOUDCLOTHING COM LIMITED 06854812
MAWLAW 388 LIMITED 3590255
RELENTLESS 2006 LIMITED 3967906
UMGHATW) LIMITED 05103127
UNIVERSAL MUSIC (UX) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383881
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 859087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384437
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 02037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGB LIMITED 02200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 05092413
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 7nzez
UNIVERSAL SAG {LiB4Q) LIMITED 05158521
UNIVERSAL SRG (W A R ) LIMITED 05221402
UNIVERSAL SRG ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 01890283
UNIVERSAL SAG GROUP LIMITED 00284340
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING COPYRIGHTS LIMITED 2873472
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED 02893402
UNIVERSAL SRG STUDIOS LIMITED 03050388
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 01862328
HNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698304
UNIVERSAL/ISLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC 2 LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
V2 MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 03205625
VIRGIN MUSIC GROUP 2259349
VIRGIN RECORDS QVERSEAS LIMITED 335444
VRL 1 LIMITED 3967682
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Note 30 Subsequent events

The significant events that occurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 (the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivendr's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014) were as follows

+  On January 19, 2015, following a cal! for tenders process carried out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive nghts related to all of the National French Rugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches These rights, which include all
seven games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Augby show, cover the seasons 2015-2016 to 2018-2018,
and

« In February 2015, Vivend announced the creation of Vivendi Cantents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Belmer, Chief Executive Officer
of Canal+ Group Vivend: Contents wiil be in charge of the design, leadership and development of new content support for music
and visuzl image, and will manage related investments

Note 31  Adjustment of comparative information

In comphiance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reported in Vivends's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the following
terms

= Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of
GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
operation, as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contnibution to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Positon, as of
December 31, 2014, has been grouped under the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabiliies associated with assets of
discontinued businesses”

e Completed sales as of December 31, 2014, Vivend: deconsohdated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actwision 8hizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Earmings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

As a result, the previously published Financial Statements were adjusted

311 Adjustments made to the main aggregates of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings
The adjustments to data published for the first quarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relata to GVT

2014
Three months Threg months ~ Six months ended
(e millians of euros) ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30,
Earntngs before interest and income taxes (EBIT} {as previously published) 176 436
Reclassifications related to the applicatien of IFRS 5 for GVT 76 -81 -157
Eamnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) (restated) 00 179 779

The adjustments to data published in the 2013 Annual Report are reported below and only relate to GVT and SFR

2013
Three months Three manths  Sw months ended
{in enillions of euros} ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30
Earnings before interest end income taxes (EBIT) (es publishad {a}} an 668 1,140
Reclassifications related 1o the application of IFRS 5 for GVT 85 84 -169
Reclassifications related o the application of iFRS S for SFR -3 - 360 -6N1
Earmings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) {restated) 76 [-1] 300
2013
Three manths Nine months Three months Year endad
ended September  ended September  ended December Becember 31
{in mithens of euros) 3o 30, 3
Earmings hefore interest and income taxes {(EBIT) (as published {e}) 610 1,750 {2,185} (435)
Reclassifications related to the application of IFAS 5 for GVT -90 - 25% -96 - 385
Rectassifications related to the application of (FRS 5 for SFR iy - 988 +2,415 +1427
Earmings before intarest and income taxes {EBIT) (restated) 23 503 13 637

a  As published in the 2013 Financial Report
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31.2 Adjustments made for the Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31 2013

Heclassificattons
related to
{in milkeons of euros) Published IFRS 5 {a} Restated
Operating activities
EBIT {435} +1072 637
Adjustments 4911 -4,354 557
Content investments, net {148} - {148}
Gross cash provided by operating activitias belore income tax paid 4328 -3.282 1.045
Other changes in net working capital {308) +344 36
Net cash provided by eperating activitigs before income tax pard 4020 -2938 1082
Income tax paid, net {197) +402 205
Net cash provided by operating sctivities of continuing operations 3823 -2536 1.287
Net cash provided by operating actrwties of discontinued operations 1,417 + 2,536 3,953
Net cosh provided by operating activities 5240 - 5240
Investing activities
Capital expenditures {2,679) +2,396 [278)
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash (43} +1 (42)
Investments i equity affiliates 2} +2 -
Increase in financial assets {106 +41 {65)
Investments 12.825) + 2440 1385)
Proceeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets 50 -17 33
Proceeds from sales of consefidated companies, after divested cash YL -9 2,739
Disposal of equity affiliates 8 - 8
Decrease tn financial assets 727 -3 724
Divostitures 3533 -29 3504
Dividends receved from equity affiliates 3 - 3
Dividends recerved from unconsolidated companies 54 - 54
Not cash provided by/{used for} investing activities of continuing opsrations 765 +2411 1176
Net cash provided by/{used for} investing actvities of discontinued aperations {1,952) -241 {4,263}
Net cash provided byf{used for) investing activities {1.187) - {1,187}
Financing activites
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share-based
compensation plans 195 - 195
Sales/{purchases) of Vivend SA's treasury shares - - -
Dividends pa:d by Vivendi SA to its sharegwners {1 325) - 11,325}
Other transactions with shareowners {1 046) - {1 (46}
Dwidends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controlling interests (37) +4 {33}
Transactions with shareowners 2213 +4 (2.209)
Setting up of tong term borrowings and increase an other long-term fnancial lrabilites 249 -86 2,405
Principal payment on leng-term borrowings and decrease in other long-term financial habilites (1,923} +13 (1,910)
Principal payment on short-term borrowings (5211} +50 {5,161)
(Othes changes in short-term borrowings and other financial habil ties n +5 36
Interest paid, net (528} +262 {266)
Other cash items related to financiat activities {349) +19 {330)
Transactions on borrowings and other financral habihitres (5,485) +263 {5226}
Nat cash provided by/{used for) financing activities of continuing operations {7.702) + 267 {7,435/
Net cash provided by/lused for) financing activities of discontinued operations 1,264 - 267 1017
Net cash provided byf{used for} finencing activities {6.418) - (6,418)
Foreign currency transtation adjustments of continuing operations {48} +28 {20)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of discontinied operations {44) -28 o
Change in cash and cash squivalents {2.457) - (2,457}
Reclassification of cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations {396} R {396)
Cash and cash equivelents
At beginning of the period 38M - 3894
At end of the period 1,041 - 1.041

a  Relates to GVT and SFR (please refer to Note 3)
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